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Group Structure

The REWE combine is an international retail and tourism group consisting of REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ
eG, Cologne (RZF), and its subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2019, the REWE combine comprised the parent company RZF and 266 (previous
year: 245) domestic and 149 (previous year: 149) foreign subsidiaries.

With effect as at 1 May 2019, RZF acquired all but eight shares with restricted transferability held by
the shareholders of RZAG. Following the transfer of shares, RZF holds a controlling interest of
99.9995 per cent in RZAG. RZF is expected to acquire the remaining eight shares in 2020.

The REWE Group operates in various business segments, which are divided into divisions and
segments.

Business Segments
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The Retail Germany business segment includes the REWE, Penny Germany and Retail Germany
Central Companies divisions.

The REWE division is active in both retail and wholesale, operating 1,760 supermarkets and
consumer stores under the REWE, REWE CITY, REWE CENTER and REWE To Go brands. The wholesale
business supplies 2,690 REWE and REWE Dortmund partner stores, REWE Dortmund stores and
nahkauf stores as well as other customers. REWE is also active in the online business via its REWE
delivery and mail order services at REWE.de.

The Penny Germany division operates 2,169 discount stores under the PENNY brand.
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In addition to the domestic real estate companies, the Retail Germany Central Companies division
also includes the production and sale of baked goods under the Glocken Backerei brand and the
production of meat and sausage products under the Wilhelm Brandenburg brand, as well as
domestic and international merchandising companies.

The Retail International business segment covers the Austrian Full-Range Stores, CEE Full-Range
Stores and Penny International divisions. The Austrian and CEE Full-Range Stores divisions operate
supermarkets and consumer stores at a total of 2,907 locations. In Austria, the stores are operated
under the BILLA, MERKUR and ADEG brands. In addition, the wholesale business supplies 371 ADEG
partner stores. The Retail International stores are also represented with the BILLA supermarkets in
Bulgaria, Russia, Slovakia, the Czech Republic and Ukraine. In addition, drug stores are also operated
in Croatia and Austria under the BIPA brand. In Lithuania, supermarkets are operated under the IKI
brand.

In the Penny International division, the PENNY MARKT and PENNY MARKET brands are operated at a
total of 1,550 locations in Italy, Austria, Romania, the Czech Republic and Hungary.

The Travel and Tourism business segment is organised into the Central Europe, Northern Europe,
Eastern Europe and Destination Areas divisions. It comprises a number of tour operators, travel sales
channels (travel agency chains, franchise sales channels and online portals) as well as destination
agencies and hotels under the DER Touristik umbrella brand. Travel and Tourism business segment
operates in the source markets of Germany, Austria, Switzerland, Eastern Europe, as well as
Scandinavia, Finland, France, the United Kingdom and the Benelux countries through the Kuoni units.
Travel and Tourism mainly trades under the brands ADAC REISEN, Apollo, Calimera, DER.COM, DER
Reisebiiro, DERPART, DERTOUR, EXIM Tours, helvetic tours, ITS, Jahn Reisen, KUONI, Iti and Meier's
Weltreisen. The Travel and Tourism business segment has a total of 792 travel agency offices. 670
locations are operated by franchisees.

The DIY Stores business segment operates 285 DIY stores in Germany under the toom Baumarkt and
B1 Discount Baumarkt brands. As part of the wholesale business, an additional 38 partner stores and
franchisees are also supplied.

Central services provided by the parent company and various subsidiaries for Group companies and
third parties are combined under the Other business segment. These services are essentially
procurement functions (merchandise wholesale business and warehousing), central settlement, del
credere assumptions, IT services, energy trading (EHA), online retail trade (ZooRoyal and
Weinfreunde), e-commerce services (REWE Digital) as well as coordination of Group-wide advertising
activities.
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Locations as at 31 December 2019

. Retail Travel and
Country Retail Germany ) . DIY Stores Total
International Tourism
503 285

Germany 3,929 -
Austria -- 2,141 - -
Czech Republic -- 617 42 -
Italy - 386 - -
Hungary - 223 8 -
Romania - 256 80 -
Slovakia - 150 14 -
Russia -- 172 - -
Nordic countries* - - 5 -
Bulgaria -- 130 - -
Switzerland - - 72 -
United Kingdom -- - 49 -
Lithuania -- 228 - -
France - - 18 -
Ukraine - 35 - -
Croatia - 119 - -
Poland -

- 1 -

* Denmark, Finland, Norway and Sweden.
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Economic Environment

1. MACROECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Trade disputes — not just between the USA and China but also involving other countries — led to a
reduction in the flow of goods. They also impact the global economy by fuelling uncertainties as to
the political conditions for international trade. Within Europe, trade was furthermore impacted by
the uncertainties surrounding the shape of future economic relations after the UK's withdrawal from
the EU (Brexit).

Changes in economic data for REWE Group countries

2018  2019p*  2019p 2018 2019p*  2019p

2018 2019p* | 2019p

Germany 1.5 13 0.5 1.9 2.0 14 3.4 3.0 3.1
Austria 2.7 2.2 1.6 2.1 2.1 1.6 4.9 4.6 4.6
Czech Republic 3.0 3.0 25 2.0 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.2 2.1
Italy 0.8 0.6 0.2 13 13 0.8 10.6 10.4 10.0
Hungary 4.9 33 4.6 2.9 31 3.4 3.7 35 3.4
Romania 4.1 34 4.0 4.1 35 4.0 4.2 4.2 3.9
Slovakia 4.1 4.1 2.6 2.5 2.4 25 6.5 6.0 5.3
Russia 2.3 1.6 1.1 2.9 51 4.7 4.8 53 4.6
Lithuania 3.5 2.9 3.4 2.5 2.7 2.4 6.2 5.8 6.1
Bulgaria 3.1 3.1 3.7 2.6 2.4 2.7 5.2 4.6 4.6
Switzerland 2.8 1.8 0.8 0.9 1.4 0.6 2.5 2.8 2.8
United Kingdom 13 15 1.3 2.5 21 2.0 4.1 4.4 3.9
Sweden 2.3 2.2 0.9 2.1 2.0 1.8 6.3 6.0 6.7
Norway 13 2.1 1.9 2.8 2.0 23 3.9 3.7 3.6
France 1.7 15 13 2.1 1.8 13 9.1 8.7 8.5
Denmark 15 1.9 1.7 0.7 15 0.7 5.0 4.8 4.9
Ukraine 33 2.7 3.0 10.9 7.3 8.7 9.0 9.2 8.7
Croatia 2.6 2.6 3.0 1.6 1.8 1.0 8.4 8.6 7.0

Sources: International Monetary Fund, World Economic Outlook Database October 2019, Update January 2020; Joint forecast (Autumn 2019)
p = projected; p* = projected in previous year
"Year-on-year GDP change in %

The economy in Germany cooled further in 2019. Gross domestic product (GDP) expanded by 0.5 per
cent (previous year: 1.5 per cent), however growth was significantly less pronounced than in the
previous year and the forecasts: Although capacity utilisation remained above the long-term average,
production has been on the decline for 18 months. This is primarily the result of economic
uncertainties caused by ongoing trade disputes and the lack of clarity with respect to Brexit, which
adversely affected investments worldwide. The economy was buoyed by consumer spending.
Inflation fell to 1.4 per cent in 2019 (previous year: 1.9 per cent) and was thus below the forecast of
2.0 per cent due to factors including lower energy prices. The unemployment rate fell slightly year on
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year to 3.1 per cent (previous year: 3.4 per cent). Despite this, the weak economy meant that jobs
were added at a significantly slower rate.

After several years of strong growth, GDP in Austria expanded by 1.6 per cent in 2019, well below
the prior-year figure (2.7 percent) and the forecast of 2.2 per cent. This was caused by weakening
global trade and the economic slowdown in Germany, which impacted the country's export
industries and stymied investment activity. The economy was boosted by private consumption,
which in turn was underpinned by fiscal stimuli and a healthy situation on the labour market. The
unemployment rate was 4.6 per cent in 2019 (previous year: 4.9 per cent). Inflation amounted to 1.6
per cent in 2019, significantly below the prior-year level (2.1 per cent).

Economic growth in Italy was close to stagnating in 2019, at 0.2 per cent (previous year: 0.8 per
cent). This was due to persistent weakness in the processing industries. The unemployment rate fell
to 10.0 per cent (previous year: 10.6 per cent). Inflation dropped to 0.8 per cent (previous year: 1.3
per cent), which was primarily due to the movements in energy prices.

The economies in the Central and Eastern European countries in which the REWE Group is
represented developed positively in 2019. Economic growth in Bulgaria and Croatia exceeded the
prior-year figures and the forecasts. Despite a slight year-on-year drop in growth, Hungary, Lithuania,
Romania and Ukraine succeeded in outperforming the forecasts, at times by a considerable margin.
Growth in Russia, Slovakia and the Czech Republic fell short of both the figures for the previous year
and the forecasts, in some cases significantly. In general, economic growth in the Central and Eastern
European countries was influenced by the slowdowns in other EU member states, for some Germany
in particular. Overall, however, GDP growth in the Central and Eastern European countries (with the
exception of Russia) outperformed the western and northern European countries of relevance to the
REWE Group, in part considerably. In the majority of countries the upswing was attributable primarily
to private consumption, which benefited from positive situation on the labour market and the
increase in real wages, as well as investments, which increased due in part to EU funding. The
sustained positive development is also reflected on the labour markets: All countries saw
unemployment fall, some markedly, although employment growth is also causing a shortage of
skilled workers. Inflation in Croatia, Lithuania, Romania and Ukraine fell, in part significantly,
compared with the previous year. Inflation rates rose year on year in all of the other countries except
Slovakia, where it remained unchanged.

In Scandinavia, Denmark and Norway recorded higher economic growth than in the previous year,
while in Sweden in particular the economy was hit hard by the slowdown in the global economy,
trade disputes and the uncertainties surrounding Brexit: The economy grew by just 0.9 per cent,
falling well short of the figure for the previous year (2.3 per cent) and expectations (2.2 per cent).
Overall, the economies in all three countries were bolstered by private consumption. The economic
development is also reflected on the labour markets: Denmark and Norway posted declining
unemployment, while the rate in Sweden was well in excess of the prior-year figure and the
forecasts. Inflation in Sweden and Norway decreased year on year, while it remained level in
Denmark.

The economy in Switzerland expanded at a moderate pace, with GDP growth of 0.8 per cent
significantly below the previous year (2.8 per cent) and the forecasts (1.8 per cent). This economic
slowdown had already become apparent in the second half of 2018. Exports of pharmaceutical
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products were a key growth driver, while other sectors were impacted by the global economic
slowdown. Unemployment rose moderately to 2.8 per cent (previous year: 2.5 per cent) in line with
the forecast. Inflation remained low at 0.6 per cent (previous year: 0.9 per cent).

Economic growth in the United Kingdom remained level year on year at 1.3 per cent in 2019, just
below expectations (1.5 per cent). Industry in particular responded to Brexit with uncertainty, for
instance by putting investment plans on hold. Unemployment fell to 3.9 per cent (previous year: 4.1
per cent), significantly below the forecast of 4.4 per cent. As such, the solid labour market coupled
with higher real incomes made private consumption a key economic driver. Inflation fell further to
2.0 per cent (previous year: 2.5 per cent).

The economic uncertainties caused by existing trade disputes and the lack of Brexit clarity had less of
an impact on France than on other large EU countries, with the French economy expanding at a
robust 1.3 percent in 2019 (previous year: 1.7 per cent). This was due to less dependency on the
export market and high domestic demand that was primarily driven by businesses making
investments. The economic growth was also underpinned by the government's steps to boost
purchasing power in the wake of public protests, as well as tax cuts and job creation, even if the
uncertainty (including in relation to the government's reforms) meant that the increase in purchasing
power was not fully used for consumer expenditure. Although the unemployment rate declined to
8.5 per cent (previous year: 9.1 per cent), it remained high compared to the rest of Europe. Inflation
fell significantly, dropping to 1.3 per cent from 2.1 per cent in the previous year.

2. DEVELOPMENT BY SECTOR

Food Retail Sector

Industry trend: revenue

Change in % Retail Retail Food retail Food retail
2019 2018 2019 2018
nominal nominal nominal nominal
Germany 151 121
Austria 2.0 2.6 2.4 2.5
Czech Republic 5.4 5.9 4.3 3.5
Italy 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.3
Hungary 9.1 9.3 8.7 7.0
Romania 10.2 11.3 10.8 10.5
Slovakia 0.8 6.4 4.4 4.1
Russia? 1.6 2.6 1.4 1.7
Lithuania 6.5 - 5.2
Bulgaria 3.8 7.5 3.5 10.2
Ukraine? - 7.0
Croatia 5.0 5.7 3.5 3.1

Sources: Eurostat; ! GfK; 2Retail Update Russia (Biweekly News Report - Published by PMR) Last update: January 2020; 3 No valid source available for 2019

Figures for revenue development in the German food retail sector increased year on year in analyses
prepared by GfK (nominal: +1.5 per cent; FMCGs excl. non-food) and by Nielsen/TradeDimension
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(nominal: +1.9 per cent). In this context, the Retail Germany business segment performed
excellently, with revenue growth at 2.7 per cent.

In 2019, the retail trade in Austria posted a revenue increase of 2.0 per cent in nominal terms

(1.2 per cent in real terms). The food retail sector posted a revenue increase of 2.4 per cent in
nominal terms (1.5 per cent in real terms). Growth thus slowed as against the prior year in nominal
terms, and improved year on year in real terms.

Retail sales in Italy increased by 0.8 per cent in both nominal and real terms in 2019. Households
recorded real losses in purchasing power as inflation exceeded wage increases. Revenue in the food
retail sector increased in nominal terms by 0.7 per cent (0.1 per cent decrease in real terms).

The food retail sector in the Eastern European countries in which the REWE Group is represented
developed for the most part positively. In the food retail sector, the highest growth rates in 2019
were recorded in Romania (nominal: 10.8 per cent; real: 5.8 per cent) and Hungary (nominal: 8.7 per
cent; real: 3.5 per cent). In nominal terms, overall growth in the food retail sector (with the exception
of Russia and Ukraine) was significantly higher than in the western European countries. Consumption
in these countries was boosted in part by rising real wages and the positive situation on the labour
market. In Russia, the increase revenue in the retail sector (1.6 percent in nominal terms) and the
food retail sector (1.4 per cent in nominal terms) was moderate and down on the previous year.

The German tour operator market recorded moderate revenue growth of 0.6 per cent to 35.4 billion
euros in 2019 and was unable to continue generating the healthy results of previous years. The key
growth segment was cruises, with revenue growth of 7.0 per cent and good development among
medium-sized players specialising in the segment. The bankruptcies of Thomas Cook and charter
airline Germania, and the uncertainty surrounding the future of Thomas Cook subsidiary Condor cast
a shadow over 2019. The sector was also impacted by the grounding of the Boeing 737 MAX, with
some airlines forced to lease replacement aircraft at considerable cost. As a result, traditional air
travel agencies generated only slight revenue growth of 1.9 per cent. The growth was mainly
attributable to non-European destinations (Turkey +28.8 per cent; Egypt +16.4 per cent; Tunisia +5.1
per cent). Those destinations that had been mired in crisis over the past three years (Turkey, Egypt
and north Africa) almost reached pre-crisis levels and are now recording only slight increases. These
were not enough to compensate for the slump in European Mediterranean destinations, and
Mediterranean destinations saw a decline overall. There was growth in long-haul travel due to the
appreciation of the euro against the dollar. Overland travel in Europe also experienced a decline in
revenue and was unable to live up to the healthy prior year.

The market for stationary travel agencies saw revenue decrease by a total of 3.1 per cent in 2019. In
that year, online travel sales recorded significant growth of 16.5 per cent. In addition, revenue
recorded by product portals (+12.7 per cent) and online direct sales of tourism service providers
(+14.5 per cent) rose significantly and are increasingly competing with their own sales channels via
tour operators and travel agencies. The specialised business travel organisations recorded a decrease
of 2.0 per cent. Overall, the travel agency market in Germany recorded a 2.7 per cent decline.

Developments in the various European tour operator sectors were very mixed in 2019.
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The Austrian tour operator sector saw the same moderate growth as its German counterpart, since
in over 80.0 per cent of cases these tours are put together from the same content used by German
tour operators.

By contrast, the Swiss tour operator sector recorded a slight decline in 2019. This was due mainly to
the consistently good summer weather, which caused Swiss holidaymakers to spend more time at
domestic destinations. The growth in autumn bookings was insufficient to compensate for the lack of
summer bookings.

The somewhat small French tour operator sector recorded only moderate growth. The long and
warm summer means that the French traditionally tend to organise holiday travel independently.

As in the previous year, the British tour operator sector suffered from the political uncertainty
surrounding the timing of Brexit. The price-sensitive high-volume Mediterranean destinations saw
declines, while upmarket bespoke tours to worldwide destinations held their own. Despite all of the
uncertainties, the British travel market proved remarkably resilient due to the largely positive
development in other domestic economic factors — wage growth outpaced inflation, employment
was high and interest rates were low.

The northern European travel markets were unable to build on their moderate growth in the
previous year. The long and warm summer last year, the increasing climate debate and "flight
shaming", as well as adverse movements in the Swedish krona/euro exchange rate caused demand
for bookings to falter.

By contrast, the Eastern European travel markets benefited greatly from the resurgent double-digit
increase in demand for budget travel to Turkey and north Africa following three years of crises.

According to information published by the German Association of DIY and Gardening Stores in
Cologne (BHB — Handelsverband Heimwerken, Bauen und Garten e. V.), the DIY retail sector posted
revenue growth of 3.6 per cent to 19.5 billion euros in 2019. While the good weather in February
caused significant revenue increases in the first quarter (+10.7 per cent in comparison with the prior-
year quarter), notably in garden products, this positive development was maintained but not
significantly improved on in the second quarter (+0.8 per cent in comparison with the prior-year
quarter). With revenue of 4.8 billion euros and year-on-year growth of 4.1 per cent, the third quarter
saw a strong performance until the weather changed as it drew to a close. The fourth quarter was
buoyed in particular by a strong November, with a 0.9 per cent increase in revenue as against the
prior-year quarter. Growth was recorded in both seasonal ranges and DIY products.
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Please note: The matters described below limit the comparability of figures for the current reporting
period with those for the previous year:

With effect as at 1 May 2019, RZF acquired 77.4 per cent of REWE - Zentral-Aktiengesellschaft,
Cologne (RZAG), thus obtaining control of the company. From that date, RZAG and its subsidiaries
were included in the RZF Group for the first time. The purchase price allocation performed at the
date of initial consolidation gave rise to non-recurring effects in the balance sheet and income
statement. In addition, all intragroup transactions between RZF and RZAG were eliminated from the
date of initial consolidation onwards. No eliminations were carried out in the previous year (see note
3 "Consolidation" to the consolidated financial statements).

The application of IFRS 16: Leases limits the comparability of the respective balance sheet and
income statement items in the year of initial application. In particular, this gives rise to material shifts
between EBITDA, EBIT and EBT in the income statement: The lease expense (other operating
expense) no longer applies with respect to leases to be recognised from 1 January 2019 onwards. On
subsequent measurement, these contracts are presented in the income statement by the
depreciation charge for the right-of-use asset and the interest expense on the lease liability. The
effect on the balance sheet is a material increase in total assets that is due in particular to
recognising right-of-use assets in non-current assets and lease liabilities in other financial liabilities.
The increase in liabilities also has a material effect on key figures such as the equity ratio and net
debt.
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1. COMPARISON OF THE FORECAST REPORTED IN THE PREVIOUS YEAR
WITH ACTUAL BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

The REWE combine's revenue development fell slightly short of expectations in 2019.

Internal EBITA? developed much better than forecast for 2019 in almost all business segments. This
was due among other things to income from corporate acquisitions and income arising from
restructuring the REWE Group.

Revenue in the Retail Germany business segment increased slightly year on year but did not fully
meet the budgeted expectations. This is mainly attributable to increased competition in the discount
market.

The business segment's internal EBITA was slightly above the budget projections. Increases were
primarily reported at REWE, while Penny was faced with intense competition in the discount sector
and fell short of expectations. Despite revenue growth at the Supermarkte Nord companies, the
integration into the REWE organisation continued to weigh on their earnings.

The revenue development of the Retail International business segment was slightly below budgeted
expectations. The Full-Range stores did not fully generate the expected revenue, which was primarily
attributable to their performance in Russia.

Penny International reported healthy revenue development, particularly in Eastern Europe, and
exceeded expectations.

The internal EBITA of the Retail International business segment was above budgeted expectations.
Penny and the Full-Range stores exceeded their internal EBITA target. With regard to the Full-Range
stores in Eastern Europe, Russia in particular fell short of expectations.

The development of the Travel and Tourism business segment was marked in particular by the
difficult development experienced across the sector in the Scandinavian tour operator business.
While the Travel and Tourism business segment increased its revenue year on year, it did not meet
its revenue expectations. The difficult revenue and margin situation meant that Travel and Tourism
was unable to meet the budgeted expectations for internal EBITA.

Revenue in the DIY Stores business segment increased year on year and outperformed the budget.
Despite the pressure on margins, internal EBITA in the DIY Stores segment exceeded the budgeted
expectations thanks to positive cost developments and savings.

Net debt increased somewhat more than originally budgeted in 2019. This was due to early payment
of the purchase price to acquire the Lekkerland Group, which was however primarily financed by
foregoing investments, selling holding companies and taking other operational measures.

1 For a definition of internal EBITA, please see section 4 "Performance Indicators"
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2. RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenue Development

Change in
2019 Change in %
absolute figures

Retail Germany 32,317.2 31,471.0 846.2
Retail International 15,298.7 14,245.8 1,052.9 7.4
Travel and Tourism 4,958.3 4,880.5 77.8 1.6
DIY Stores 2,214.8 2,151.1 63.7 3.0
Other 585.3 645.0 -59.7

Revenue increased by a total of 3.7 per cent in 2019.

The highest-volume business segment, Retail Germany, recorded a 2.7 per cent increase in revenue.
The revenue growth was driven in particular by the performance of the REWE stores (including REWE
To Go) and the wholesale business, which primarily comprises supplying the REWE partner stores. It
reflects first and foremost the organic growth of the REWE partner stores. In addition, the purchasing
companies of the Other business segment have been allocated to the Retail Germany business
segment since this financial year.

The Retail International business segment, with revenue of 15.3 billion euros, is the second-largest
business segment in the Group. The 7.4 per cent increase was primarily generated by the Full-Range
stores in Central and Eastern Europe and is mainly attributable to the positive performance at the
existing stores in the Czech Republic and Slovakia as well as expansion activities in Russia.
Furthermore, UAB Palink, Vilnius, Lithuania, which marked its first full year as a consolidated entity in
2019, contributed significantly to the increase in revenue. The Austrian Full-Range Stores segment
reported a continued positive revenue trend, which was attributable mainly to food retail. Penny
International's revenue also made a contribution to this positive development: this was caused by
the revenue trend in the Czech Republic, Hungary and Romania in particular.

The Travel and Tourism Business Segment generated consolidated revenue of 5.0 billion euros
(brokered travel revenue of 6.5 billion euros), up 1.6 per cent on the previous year. The increase in
revenue is attributable primarily to the continued positive development in Central and Eastern
Europe. The target destination agencies also recorded significant revenue increases. By contrast,
revenue declines were recorded in Northern Europe due to the negative performance in Scandinavia.
This was countered by revenue growth in the source markets of France and the United Kingdom.
Overall, the increase in demand for long-haul travel in particular had a positive effect on revenue

development.

In the DIY Stores business segment, revenue increased by 3.0 per cent. The increase in revenue at DIY
stores was attributable mainly to the positive performance by the retail stores.

Stores and Sales Areas

At the end of the year, the REWE combine business segments operated 9,463 retail outlets with a
total sales area of 9.2 million square metres.
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Change in .
Number of stores 31 Dec. 2019 31 Dec. 2018 : Change in %
absolute figures

Retail Germany 3,929 4,014 -85 -2.1
Retail International 4,457 4,352 105 2.4
Travel and Tourism 792 760 32 4.2

DIY Stores 285

295

. Change in .
Sales area in m? * 31 Dec. 2019 31 Dec. 2018 : Change in %
absolute figures

KR
o
.
»
=y

Retail Germany 4,225,113 4,288,551 -63,438 -1.5
Retail International 3,078,107 2,969,858 108,249 3.6
DIY Stores 1,906,928 1,951,291 -44,363 -2.3

* No sales area is calculated in Travel and Tourism.

Results
Change in
g Change in %
absolute figures
Revenue 53,393.4 1,980.9 3.7
Cost of materials, incl. changes in inventories -40,510.5 -1,516.4

3.7

Gross profit 13,347.4 m m
Gross profit ratio 24.1%

For information: internal EBITDA* 2,116.4 1,630.4 486.0 29.8

Depreciation, amortisation and impairments/reversals of impairment losses

and impairment losses (excl. goodwill) -1,245.1 -1,915.4 <-100

For information: internal EBITA* 866.0 408.7

-10.4

Goodwill impairments
EBIT

554.7

-1.5

v " 5 v
= = [~
o I o S o
ISE S S o &

Financial result
EBT

Taxes on income
Results from continuing operations

EAT/net income for the year

* For the reconciliation please see section 4 "Performance Indicators"

EBITDA rose by 2,259.6 million euros, primarily due to the initial application of IFRS 16. The increase
was also attributable to the change in gross profit (+464.5 million euros), other operating income
(+353.0 million euros, excluding reversals of impairment losses) and in particular the lower other
operating expenses (+1,869.5 million euros), while the increase in personnel expenses had an
offsetting effect (-427.4 million euros). Since the change in cost of materials was equal to the
increase in revenue, the gross profit margin remained unchanged at 24.1 per cent.

The increase in other operating income was mainly due to income from advertising services, income
from the disposal of non-current assets, other operating income and income from reversals of
impairment losses on non-current assets. Income from the reversal of provisions had an offsetting
effect.
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The rise in income from advertising services is due to an increase in services provided for advertising
activities in radio and television, print media, outdoor advertising and for the increased use of
advertising material in the Retail Germany business segment.

The income from the disposal of non-current assets was mainly due to the sale of shares in
companies previously subject to full consolidation in the Other and Travel and Tourism business
segments.

The change in miscellaneous other operating income was primarily connected with the acquisition of
shares in RZAG.

The income from reversals of impairment losses on non-current assets was mainly due to reversals of
impairment losses on right-of-use assets in connection with accounting standard IFRS 16:

By contrast, income from the reversal of provisions decreased — particularly in the Retail Germany
business segment — due to the initial application of IFRS 16.

The change in other operating expenses was primarily attributable to the initial application of IFRS
16: Leases that meet the requirements of the new standard are recognised in the balance sheet and
a lease expense is no longer reported. The application of IFRS 16 also resulted in a lower addition to
the provision for onerous contracts.

In addition, the expenses for purchased services decreased due to the initial consolidation of RZAG as
at 1 May 2019.

By contrast, there was an increase in other occupancy costs, including in the Retail International
business segment where this was primarily due to it being the first full year in which UAB Palink,
Vilnius, Lithuania, had been included in the scope of consolidation.

In addition, advertising expenses in the Other business segment rose as a result of the inclusion of
RZAG and its subsidiaries as at 1 May 2019. By contrast, expenses in the Retail Germany business
segment decreased due to the initial consolidation of the RZAG companies. Advertising income in the
two business segments recorded corresponding development.

The 6.1 per cent rise in personnel expenses is primarily attributable to the inclusion of RZAG and its
subsidiaries from 1 May 2019, the fact that UAB Palink, Vilnius, Lithuania, had been consolidated for
a first full year, and the 2019 pay scale increase.

Although the elimination of lease expenses under new accounting standard IFRS 16 had a positive
effect on EBITDA, leases impact profit or loss in particular through depreciation, impairment and
reversals of impairment losses on right-of-use assets, and as such have an effect on EBITA. EBITA
totalled 909.3 million euros in 2019, 344.2 million euros higher than in the previous year

(565.1 million euros).

The financial result of -537.2 million euros (previous year: -1.5 million euros) was also materially
affected by the new standard on leases: the interest result of -542.9 million euros (previous year: -
52.4 million euros) mainly includes the interest expense on lease liabilities of 542.6 million euros
(previous year: 21.1 million euros). The interest income from taxes included in that item had an
offsetting effect. The -26.0 million euro change in the other financial result was primarily due to
writing down a loan. The result from companies accounted for using the equity method amounted to
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41.3 million euros (previous year: 59.3 million euros). The decrease was attributable to factors
including the acquisition achieved in stages of shares in REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG and REWE-Zentral
AG GbR, Cologne, which were previously accounted for using the equity method, as part of the
consolidation of RZAG as at 1 May 2019.

Taxes on income resulted in income of 134.8 million euros (previous year: expense of 137.7 million
euros). This amount consists of a current tax expense of 61.6 million euros (previous year:

125.5 million euros) as well as deferred tax income of 196.4 million euros (previous year: expense of
12.2 million euros). The current tax expense includes income of 115.1 million euros (previous year:
22.2 million euros) from taxes for previous years.

3. FINANCIAL POSITION AND NET ASSETS

Financial Position

The REWE combine essentially has access to the following debt capital funds currently available:

31 Dec. 2019

3 December 2024;

Syndicated loan 2,000.0 2,000.0 max_ term 3 December 2025
Promissory note loan 1,000.0 1,000.0 28 February 2021 to 28 February 2028
Promissory note loan 537.0 0.0 20 December 2022 to 20 December 2029
Promissory note loan 175.0 175.0 2 September 2024

The REWE combine has access to a syndicated loan that includes credit lines of 500 million euros. The
syndicated loan was drawn down in the amount of 400 million euros as at the balance sheet date
(previous year: no drawdown); the credit lines were drawn down in the amount of 14.8 million euros.

A promissory note loan amounting to 537.0 million euros was raised in the financial year, of which
437.0 million euros had been paid out as at the balance sheet date. The remaining 100.0 million
euros will be paid out in January 2020. The promissory note loan comprises various maturity tranches
of three to ten years.

The three bilateral credit lines totalling 275.0 million euros as of the prior-year reporting date
(drawdown of 204.0 million euros as at 31 December 2018) were no longer in place as at 31
December 2019.

Internal cash pooling is aimed at reducing the amount of debt financing and at optimising cash and
capital investments. Cash pooling allows the use of individual companies' excess liquidity in the
REWE combine for internal financing.

Net Debt

The 9,604.6 million euro increase in net debt in 2019 as compared to 2018 was due primarily to
higher lease liabilities (+9,250.8 million euros) stemming from the application of IFRS 16. Liabilities to
banks also increased (+557.7 million euros), which was due among other things to the raising of a
new promissory note loan. By contrast, there were decreases in liabilities from other loans (-168.9
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million euros), liabilities to other long-term investments (-110.4 million euros) and liabilities from
financial transactions (-36.8 million euros).

Financial liabilities* 12,540.8 3,000.3
Cash and cash equivalents -567.0 -631.1

* Included under other financial liabilities.

Net Assets
Assets
In milllon €
31,1648 B Non-current assets
M Other non-current assets
Inventorles
B oOther current assets
21,111.8
21,3315 e
12,427.3
+55.9
1,369.4
+402.8 1,313.5
4,152.2
3,749.4
690.1

31 Dec. 2019 31 Dec. 2018

Total assets increased in the financial year by 10,053.0 million euros to 31,164.8 million euros.

The increase in non-current assets was primarily due to recognising right-of-use assets in respect of
real estate as part of the initial application of IFRS 16.

The Group invested 1,752.0 million euros (previous year: 1,791.4 million euros) in intangible assets
and in property, plant and equipment in 2019. The capital expenditures related primarily to the
expansion and modernisation of the existing store network and the warehouse locations and
production companies. Reductions in non-current assets were primarily caused by disposals,
impairments, depreciation and amortisation.

Internally generated intangible assets in use amounting to 67.6 million euros are presented in the
financial year (previous year: 77.8 million euros). In addition, there are internally generated
intangible assets still in development. The internally generated intangible assets primarily concern
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software products. In addition, research and development costs amounting to 61.8 million euros
were incurred (previous year: 64.4 million euros) that were recognised as expenses.

The change in other non-current assets was due to a decrease in other financial assets (-257.7 million
euros), which was offset by increases in deferred tax assets (+216.5 million euros), companies
accounted for using the equity method (+74.1 million euros) and other assets (+23.0 million euros).
The decrease in non-current other financial assets was mainly attributable to the acquisition of
shares in RZAG (and its subsequent consolidation), which until that point had been reported in other
equity investments. The increase in companies accounted for using the equity method was primarily
due to the sale of shares in commercetools GmbH, Munich, which had previously been included as a
subsidiary. After the sale, the REWE combine still holds 40.0 per cent of the shares. Non-current
other assets also increased, which mainly resulted from a rise in deferred assets that in turn was
primarily due to construction cost subsidies in the Retail Germany business segment.

Inventories rose primarily due to an increase in finished goods and merchandise in the Other, Retail
International and Retail Germany business segments. The increase in inventory in the Other and
Retail Germany business segments was mainly attributable to the initial consolidation of RZAG and its
subsidiaries as at 1 May 2019. In the Retail International business segment, the expansion of the
store network in Eastern Europe in particular led to an increase in finished goods and merchandise.

The increase in other current assets was primarily attributable to the rise in other assets (+808.2
million euros), current income tax assets (+80.0 million euros) and other financial assets (+30.4
million euros). The increase in current other assets mainly resulted from a partial payment of 761.9
million euros for the acquisition of the Lekkerland Group as at 1 January 2020. Interest receivables
from trade tax reimbursements and deferred commissions from the travel agencies also increased.
This was offset by trade receivables (-165.5 million euros) and cash and cash equivalents (-64.1
million euros). Trade receivables from associates decreased in relation to the balance sheet date, in
particular in the Retail Germany business segment. Please see note 4 "Performance indicators" with
respect to the change in cash and cash equivalents.

Non-current assets held for sale increased (+1.1 million euros) due to the classification of real estate
as assets held for sale in the Retail International business segment.
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Equity and Liabilities

Inmilllon €
31,164.8 m Equy
M Trade payables
Other non-current liabllities
7,278.2 M Other current liabilities
+576.5
21.111,8
6,992.9
6,701.7
+255.2
11,762.6 6,737.7
+7,910.4
3,852.2
5,131.1 +1,310.9 —
31 Dec. 2019 31 Dec. 2018

The balance sheet shows equity of 7,278.2 million euros as at 31 December 2019 (previous year:
6,701.7 million euros), which corresponds to an equity ratio of 23.4 per cent (previous year: 31.7 per
cent). The change in the equity ratio is mainly due to the first-time recognition of lease liabilities in
accordance with IFRS 16. The return on equity of continuing operations was 7.6 per cent (previous
year: 6.9 per cent).

A capital reserve (1,219.8 million euros) relating to the premium on the capital increase at RZF as
part of the acquisition of 77.4 per cent of shares in RZAG was recognised in equity for the first time
as at 31 December 2019. This includes 146.5 million euros of acquired treasury shares. Retained
earnings increased by 326.5 million euros to 5,983.2 million euros. Substantial components of this
increase were the net income generated for the financial year attributable to the shareholders of the
parent in the amount of 528.4 million euros (previous year: 350.6 million euros). Acquisitions of non-
controlling interests had an offsetting effect on retained earnings. Retained earnings were also
reduced by a 86.3 million euro loss on the remeasurement of defined benefit pension commitments,
including the corresponding deferred taxes (previous year: gain of 16.1 million euros). The

16.9 million euro rise in other reserves to -84.2 million euros resulted primarily from the reserve for
currency translation. Non-controlling interests decreased by 986.7 million euros to 159.4 million
euros and in the financial year were mainly due to the sale of shares to the shareholders of the
parent.

The change in non-current liabilities was due primarily to the increase in non-current other financial
liabilities (+8,282.1 million euros), non-current employee benefits (+197.8 million euros) and non-
current deferred tax liabilities (+67.8 million euros). The rise in non-current other financial liabilities
was mainly attributable to the extended recognition of lease liabilities due to the application of IFRS
16 and the raising of a promissory note loan in the amount of 537.0 million euros, of which 437.0
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million euros had been paid out as at the balance sheet date. With respect to non-current employee
benefits, the decrease in the discount rate in particular led to a rise in provisions for pension
obligations, end-of-service benefits and service anniversary bonuses. This was offset in particular by
the changes in other non-current provisions (-542.6 million euros) and other non-current liabilities
(-94.7 million euros), since the provisions for expected losses from onerous contracts and rental
obligations as well as liabilities from onerous contracts were almost fully offset against the right-of-
use assets due to the initial application of IFRS 16.

The increase in current liabilities was due primarily to the increase in current other financial liabilities
(+1,311.7 million euros), trade payables (+251.2 million euros) and current other liabilities (+113.9
million euros). The rise in current other financial liabilities mainly resulted from the initial recognition
of lease liabilities as part of the application of IFRS 16. The main reason for the change in trade
payables was the initial consolidation of RZAG and its subsidiaries as at 1 May 2019. Current other
liabilities increased in particular as a result of higher prepayments received on account of orders
(almost exclusively in the Travel and Tourism business segment), higher liabilities from customer
loyalty programmes in the Retail Germany business segment and the introduction of the "J6-Card"
customer loyalty programme in Austria, and a rise in liabilities from outstanding electricity bills due
to new regulatory requirements.

The changes in current other provisions (-107.7 million euros) and current employee benefits (-35.0
million euros) had an offsetting effect. Current other provisions decreased in particular due to lower
provisions for expected losses from onerous contracts and rental obligations, which were offset
against the right-of-use assets due to the initial application of IFRS 16. The primary reason for the
change in current employee benefits is the decrease in liabilities from annual bonus payments,
particularly in the Retail Germany and Retail International business segments.

There were also contingent liabilities of 753.1 million euros as at the balance sheet date (previous
year: 497.2 million euros) which mainly related to payment guarantees to financial institutions and
payment guarantees for rental obligations and merchandise liabilities. Furthermore, other financial
obligations to service providers amounting to 252.8 million euros (previous year: 394.0 million euros)
were recorded in the Travel and Tourism business segment. Additional other contingent liabilities
arose in the financial year from the acquisition of shares in Lekkerland AG, Frechen, and limited
partner shares in Lekkerland AG & Co. KG, Frechen. On entering into the purchase agreement, the
purchaser undertook to assume various obligations of the seller.

Significant events after the end of the reporting period are described under note 42 "Events after the
Balance Sheet Date" in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

4. PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Financial Performance Indicators

The most significant performance indicators of the REWE combine's operating units are revenue and
(internal) EBITA. Given that the contribution margin is a key instrument for our stores in managing
the operating business, that we need the clearest possible insight into the costs actually incurred,
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and that rents constitute a material cost item for stores, the presentation must be adjusted for the
effects of IFRS 16. The same applies to all effects that are not connected with managing the
operating business. Consequently, the effects that materially impact earnings development at an
operating level but that could also lead to mismanagement in the assessment are presented on an
internal basis below EBITA. The EBITA that is relevant for management purposes is derived by
adjusting the external figures for effects arising from:

° IFRS 16: Leases,

° provisions for onerous contracts,

. reversals of impairment losses on non-current assets,

° impairment (excluding goodwill), and

. net gains/losses on derivatives used for currency hedging.

The reconciliation of internal key figures to external key figures is presented below:

Change in .
2019 ! Change in %
absolute figures

EBITDA (internal definition) 2,116.4 1,630.4 486.0 29.8
Provisions for onerous contracts (income/expense) 179.8 -151.4 -84.2
Net gains/losses on derivatives used for currency hedging 0.0 -0.5 0.0

Expenses/income connected with IFRS 16, excl. depreciation and impairment 0.0 1,925.5 0.0
Depreciation and amortisation (excl. impairment and leasing) -1,221.7 -28.7 2.3
Provisions for onerous contracts/currency hedging/leasing -179.8 -1,773.6 <-100
EBITA (internal definition) 866.0 408.7 457.3 > 100
Impairment incl. leasing -51.0 -392.7 <-100
Reversals of impairment losses 27.6 -14.6 -52.9
Provisions for onerous contracts (income/expense) 179.8 -151.4 -84.2
Net gains/losses on derivatives used for currency hedging 0.0 -0.5 0.0
Advance travel services 0.0 15.6 0.0
Depreciation and impairment of right-of-use assets 0.0 -1,602.5 0.0
Reversals of impairment losses on right-of-use assets 0.0 123.0 0.0
Capitalisation of lease expense 0.0 1,967.1 0.0
Other income/expenses 0.0 -57.1 0.0

EBITA (external definition)

Goodwill impairments

EBIT

-10.4 10.4 100.0

Net debt is included at the REWE combine level. These key figures are reported under notes 2 and 3.

The cash flow statement shows changes in cash and cash equivalents less overdraft facilities during
the financial year. A distinction is drawn between changes resulting from operating activities,
investing activities and financing activities.
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Change in cash and cash equivalents
2019

Cash funds at beginning of period 626.7
Cash flows from operating activities, continuing operations 3,272.4 1,473.1
Cash flows from investing activities, continuing operations -2,392.4 -1,863.0
Cash flows from financing activities, continuing operations -951.3 371.7
Cash flows from continuing operations -18.2
Change in cash funds related to changes in the scope of consolidation 0.0 0.3
Currency translation differences -1.6

Cash funds at end of period

Cash funds at the end of the period, continuing operations -
of which: cash and cash equivalents 567.0 631.1
of which: bank overdrafts 9.4 -4.4

For additional explanations, please see note 37 "Cash Flow Statement" in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Non-financial Performance Indicators

Employees

On an annual average, the REWE Group had 241,691 employees in 2019 (previous year: 231,565), of
which 6,503 (previous year: 6,345) were trainees.

The increased headcount is mainly attributable to the inclusion of RZAG and its subsidiaries from 1
May 2019 and the fact that UAB Palink, Vilnius, Lithuania, had been included for the full year.

As an international trading and tourism group we rely on qualified employees. So that we continue to
be considered an attractive employer in the competition for qualified employees, the REWE Group
makes targeted investments in its current and future employees. The following action areas play a
central role:

Values and culture

The REWE Group wants long-term commitments from its employees and offers them a motivating
work environment. This includes fair work conditions, attractive social benefits and offers that are
adapted to the different phases of the employee's life. Fair work environments are based on valuing
diversity and a commitment to equal opportunity — these are core values for the REWE Group's
corporate culture. The appreciation of employees through appropriate compensation with attractive
additional benefits (such as our employee discount) is also a material component of a fair work
environment.

Training and professional development

The REWE Group offers school leavers initial vocational training in sales and distribution, logistics and
administration. Apprentices who excel are guaranteed full-time, permanent positions after
completion of their apprenticeship. The opportunities on offer are rounded out by integrated degree
programmes and vocational Master's courses for REWE employees.
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In order to promote the potential and individual development of all employees in the best manner
possible, the REWE Group continuously expands its personnel development measures and offers all
its employees and executives an extensive offering of internal further and continuing education. As
part of this effort, the Company endeavours to recruit as many as possible specialists and managers
from its own ranks and to retain qualified and motivated employees long-term. In addition to
numerous classroom-based courses, we also offer our employees at our headquarters and in our
stores and logistics facilities the opportunity to complete training courses online.

Health and safety

Occupational safety and health management are important elements of the REWE Group's internal
social policy. They help it fulfil its corporate responsibility and support employees in taking personal
responsibility for their health and safety. At the same time, we are making efforts to continuously
improve working conditions.

Be it ergonomic work stations or accident prevention, the safety and health of our employees has the
highest priority for us. We assist the responsible managers in preparing their risk assessments for the
purpose of determining the physical and mental demands of the job, and provide them with advice
on setting up work stations. In addition, we place great value on the prevention of violence as well as
reducing musculoskeletal strain by optimising employees' workplace habits (e.g., when lifting,
carrying, pushing, sitting). Following the principle "demand and promote", in addition to mandatory
health and safety training we offer our employees various programmes on promoting a healthy
lifestyle and mitigating environmental risk factors. Moreover, we work closely with the occupational
health service to address the topic of psychological health (e.g., consultations or a telephone
hotline). Health management also takes advantage of the opportunities offered by digitalisation to
enable even more employees to take part in these activities than before. The REWE Group offers all
employees a custom online portal with health-promotion content, and trains specific individuals to
disseminate information on these topics.

Work-life balance

Be it adult care for family members or childcare: we help our employees to balance their careers and
families by offering family-oriented services which fit with each stage of life.

A family-friendly HR policy is important to the REWE Group in order to gain and retain employees.
That is why we offer on-site kindergartens at certain locations and for all employees the national
child and adult care services in cooperation with awo lifebalance GmbH, for example. A good work-
life balance is becoming a decisive factor for many people when selecting an employer. That is why
many divisions of the REWE Group have been certified by undergoing the "career and family" audit
by berufundfamilie Service GmbH. Numerous models are used in the REWE Group that allow
employees to organise their work individually and flexibly, for instance taking time off for a
sabbatical.

Whether employees themselves are suffering from severe illness, if they have lost a loved one, if
they have a family member requiring care or are facing other private issues, personal problems can
cause considerable stress and have a significant impact on an employee's working life. The REWE
Group supports the "LoS!" initiative to offer employees quick and practical assistance in critical life
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situations. In combination with independently developed guidance, training specific individuals to
disseminate information on LoS! and act as guides for employees experiencing difficulties ensures
that help can quickly reach those who find themselves in problem situations.

Sustainability

Sustainability at the REWE Group is firmly anchored in both the Company's strategy and the
corporate organisation. The Chairman of the Management Board is responsible for setting the
sustainability strategy of the entire REWE Group.

Four strategic pillars — "Green Products"”, "Energy, Climate and the Environment", "Employees" and
"Social Involvement" — were introduced in 2008 to implement the sustainability strategy. Within
these pillars, the Company has identified action areas that cover all of the issues relevant to the
REWE Group.

In 2016, a strategic process was implemented by the food retail segment in Germany and at DER
Touristik to review the organisation and focus of the REWE Group's commitment to sustainability,
and to adapt this where necessary. The aim was to better integrate activities into the sales lines'
existing business processes in order to anchor sustainability even more firmly in the Company. As
part of the strategy process at DER Touristik, the five following pillars of sustainability were
redefined: "Environment and Nature", "Customers and Products"”, "National Partners", "Employees"
and "Social Involvement". The four pillars of sustainability for the food retail sector in Germany were
confirmed and the action areas were revised.

a)  Green Products

The goal of the "Green Products" pillar is to make more sustainable product ranges available and to
offer these to consumers at the stores. A holistic approach to the supply chain is therefore a core
element and integral part of the purchasing processes. The action areas for the "Green Products"
pillar are "Fairness", "Conservation of Resources", "Animal Welfare" and "Diet".

The REWE Group consistently follows its objective of increasing the share of sustainable store brands
and brand-name products by using the PRO PLANET label for store brand products which, in addition
to high quality, also have positive ecological and/or social characteristics, by expanding the organic
product line and through its product line of regional products as well as various raw materials-related
guidelines.

b) Energy, Climate and the Environment

Three action areas have been identified in the "Energy, Climate and the Environment" pillar: "Energy

Efficiency"”, "Atmospheric Emissions" and "Conservation of Resources".

By 2022, the REWE Group aims to reduce greenhouse gas emissions per square metre of sales area
by half compared to 2006 levels. The 2018 carbon footprint report shows that a reduction of 43.0 per
cent has already been achieved. In addition, electricity consumption per square metre of sales area
will be reduced by 7.5 per cent between 2012 and 2022. The coolant-related greenhouse gas
emissions per square metre of sales area will be reduced by 35.0 per cent between 2012 and 2022.
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c) Employees

The satisfaction and performance capability of employees are a core element of the REWE Group's
strategic human resources management. Accordingly, the following action areas have been identified
for the "Employees" pillar: "Values and Culture", "Training and Professional Development", "Health
and Safety", "Work-life Balance" and "Diversity and Equal Opportunity".

Various initiatives have been implemented in all action areas in order to increase employee
satisfaction and dedication. Examples include activities to support health and wellbeing in the
workplace, in particular in distribution and logistics, ensuring workplace health and safety, and
promoting employees across all levels of the Group's hierarchy as part of our systematic career and
succession planning programme. Further focus areas are promoting integration and inclusion and
stepping up efforts to increase the number of female executives. The REWE Group is now the largest
German employer to be certified under the "Work and Family" audit, and is systematically expanding
activities to ensure a better work-life balance.

d)  Social Involvement

As a major corporate group and in its cooperative tradition, the REWE Group feels obligated to be
engaged socially and supports numerous national and international social projects. The action areas
under the "Social Involvement" pillar are: "Healthy Nutrition and Exercise", "Opportunities for
Children and Young People", "Handling Food Responsibly" and "Consumer Education and Training".

One commitment of particular significance to the REWE Group is to support local food bank
initiatives. For instance, for more than 20 years now, the Company has been one of the primary
sponsors of more than 940 "Tafel" food banks across Germany and a member of the Bundesverband
Deutsche Tafel e.V.

Sustainability Activities

The core of the REWE Group's sustainability activities is the active integration and sensitisation of all
relevant stakeholder groups, consumers in particular. The sales lines oversee customer relations, for
instance by providing information in the form of weekly flyers, on its website or as part of
Sustainability-related initiatives.

Since negative environmental impacts can occur along the entire packaging value chain, the REWE
Group has developed a comprehensive approach to packaging. For example, the guidelines for more
environmentally friendly packaging define the goal of making 100 per cent of store brand packaging
more environmentally friendly by 2030. The packaging of more than 2,000 items has already been
changed, saving approximately 9,000 tonnes of plastic every year. In addition, the REWE Group
teamed up with the German Sustainability Award Foundation in 2019 to confer the first special
award recognising ideas for more sustainable packaging. The winner was named on 22 November
2019 as part of German Sustainability Day in Diisseldorf.

These and other activities undertaken by the REWE Group are covered in detail in the REWE Group's
annual sustainability report.
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Risk and Opportunities Report

The Value of Risk Management

As an internationally active retail and tourism group, we are exposed to a wide variety of risks, some
with short reaction times, as part of our business operations.

Risks are uncertain company-external and internal influential factors that impair the potential profit
areas (assets, profit and liquidity) and/or the Group's reputation and thus hinder or threaten to
hinder the realisation of planned goals or may negatively impact further business development. On
the other hand, opportunities are company-external and internal influential factors that create the
potential profit areas (assets, profit and liquidity) and thus positively impact the planned goals or
further business development.

We employ a uniform risk management system throughout the Group to counter this risk potential
successfully and ensure our opportunities potential in the long term. In so doing, we understand risk
management as a continual process that is firmly integrated as a regular step in our operating
practices.

At the REWE Group, all risks are subject to mandatory management and are mitigated in their effect
and probability through operational initiatives. The scope of the related need for action and the point
in time for initiating appropriate actions are based on the urgency (probability of materializing) as
well as the threat potential (potential damage determined from the monetary, reputational, and
legal impact) of the risk. We document and manage existing needs for action in our risk areas using
documented action plans and schedules.

Risk Management Organisation

The general conditions, guidelines and processes for uniform corporate risk management are created
centrally by Corporate Controlling in cooperation with the corporate Governance & Compliance and
Business Administration departments.

Under the Group's prescribed guidelines concerning the defined risk areas, it is the responsibility of
the Group to locally organise the establishment and procedural flow of the operational risk
management process.

Risk managers identify reportable risks early in our risk areas using a bottom-up approach and these
risks are then classified uniformly throughout the Group and managed independently.

Risk checklists in the form of Group recommendations are developed by our corporate departments
and provided to the risk areas regularly in advance of the annual risk inventory to support their risk
identification and analysis. This ensures the Group-wide consideration of possible risk events as seen
by headquarters.

The risk analysis covers a three-year planning horizon, analogous to the period of our mid-term plan.

Risks with relevant significance for the Group are managed and monitored by selected corporate
departments based on their technical competence. In addition to operational business risks with
significant threat potential, the focus is also on significant risks from finance, compliance, taxes and
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financial reporting. The corporate departments discuss and reconcile the varying risk assessments
with the risk areas after the risk inventory has been completed and before the risk report is
prepared.

Management Board of the REWE Group

Overall responsibllity for Group-wide risk management REWE Group (RM GRC)

REWE Group’s risk management (RM GRC)

Corporate Controlling Is responsible for the central processes In cooperation with the corporate Governance & Compliance and
Business Administration departments.

Organisational charts and lists of contacts at the level of the Group, risk areas, risk area groups, risk area sectors, and risk area segments
govern the structure of the risk management system.

All material areas of the operating segments and corporate departments are Included in a risk field structure.

Risk relevant to the Group are monitored by

Corporate Govemance & Finanzen Business Administration Taxes
Controlling Compllance (CP (CBA) (PRO — DATA)
(€co (CGC) Financelng and Financlal reporting Task risks
Operating risks Compliance risks credit risks risks

Risk Areas

= [ndependently Implementing, coordinating and enhancing the risk management processes In accordance with corporate guldelines In the risk area
= [ndependently handling, controlling, analysing, assessing and communicating Identifled risks In the risk area and to the Group

RIsk area group A: Risk area group B: RIsk area group C:
»Strateglc business units* »Other n»Corporate functions*
Retail Germany (Penry, REWE) « Production (Wilhelm B Glockenbrot Business Administration * Group Controlling = Finance
Retail International (Penny, BILLA, Merkur, BIPA, IKI) Backerei) » Gebriider Mayer » Digital » EHA + Goods + Governance & Compliance * Human Resources
+ DIY Stores (toom, B1) + Travel and Tourism (travel sales, # Logistics » Marketing * Corporate Responsibility
package tour operators, component tour oporators, + Executive Development » Public Affairs « Legal ® Tax « IT
destination areas) *C te C. ications * Corporate Securify

Our management and supervisory boards are informed of the Group's current risk situation in
standardised form on an annual basis. To that end, the risk managers send risk reports to the Group.
These reports contain risk inventories of relevant individual risks from the risk areas as of a given
closing date. Risks with similar content and causes are subsequently aggregated at the level of the
Group into risk categories and classified as high, medium or low with regard to their relevance to the
Group based on the threat potential to our business activities, net assets, financial position, results of
operations, cash flows and our reputation (high: monetary impact in specific cases > 100 million
euros or considerable significance with regard to business activities, net assets, financial position,
results of operations and reputation; medium and low: at most moderate significance with regard to
business activities, net assets, financial position, results of operations and reputation).

We measure and manage opportunities as part of our regularly scheduled operational and strategic
planning. Opportunities and risks are not offset at the level of the Group.
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In addition, binding provisions were made under which newly identified, significant risks or existing
risks with material effects, changes in their development and high probability of occurrence in the
risk areas must be reported in a timely manner and directly to our management bodies.

As independent bodies, external auditors and the Auditing department assess the quality and
functionality of our risk management system at regular intervals. Nevertheless, we cannot guarantee
with complete certainty that all relevant risks are recognised early and the controls and processes
function in the desired scope. Human error can never be ruled out completely.
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Presentation of Risks

The risk assessment is made based on given or realistically assumable circumstances. Changes in the
risk environment, the initiation of actions and changes to planning approaches result in changes to
the risk portfolio. Therefore, the real estate risk type is no longer included in the top risks. The price
trend and competitor risk types were combined due to the overlaps between them, as well as the
risk types of assets and rental agreements under valuation risks.

a) Top Risks
Valuation Risks

Unexpected budget or forecast deviations as well as changes in general economic conditions may
result in having to remeasure assets such as real estate, goodwill and rights of use. This can
materially impact the earnings development of the Group. Changes in input factors can result in
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either charges to earnings through impairment write-downs or else to increases in earnings through
reversals of impairment losses. Regular reviews of the recoverability of assets, the examination and
plausibility check of the mid-term plan as well as monitoring of the current development of earnings
and values give us a current picture of our valuation portfolio and future valuation risks at all times.
Necessary strategic measures for reducing the impairment risk can be taken in a timely manner.

IT and Data Security

Due to the high dependence of trading and tourism processes on IT systems, including of stored data,
the security of these systems represents an important foundation for the Company's success. Risk
gaps will be closed by a high level of expenditures and investments in the security and performance
capability of systems as well as ongoing monitoring of key processes. Furthermore, we use
information events, training courses and work instructions to regularly inform our employees about
material changes relating to data security.

Data security is ensured by the introduction of new, state-of-the art technologies, thus reducing
possible abuse to a minimum. Documenting processes, setting rules and instructions as well as
contractual safeguards form the basis for securing the Company's IT processes and systems.

A residual risk cannot be excluded entirely despite the necessary security measures.
Personnel Risks

Due to the dominance of personnel expenses in the retail business, personnel risks are also a primary
focus of risk reporting. The development of pay scales and non-wage labour costs as well as the
increased availability of labour are therefore of major importance. In particular, developments on the
labour market are currently showing that risks are intensifying.

Third-party services and work agreements also continue to be a source of potential risk. We attempt
to mitigate any risks associated with engaging third-party services by raising the awareness of our
executives and employees through training courses, information events and recommended courses
of action.

An optimum recruiting process is essential to ensure that vacancies are filled quickly and with
suitable candidates. Should cost developments be over those previously known or expected, this
results in a greater burden on retail earnings and can therefore weigh down the long-term earnings
development of the Group. Cost increases can be partially compensated for by continually reviewing
our processes and optimising our procedures. This requires strict and consistent cost management.

Price Trend Risks/Competitors

An intensification of the competitive environment can negatively impact price trends and be
contained by initiatives only with difficulty. Negative price developments slow sustainable growth in
revenue and gross profit and lead to profit erosion.

The pressure on prices in the stores is increased by discounters adding brand-name products to their
shelves and in the non-food sector by the continued fierce competition among online retailers. Since
these articles are essentially high revenue items, long-term price reductions on these items have a
significant impact on the development of gross profit.
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We are able to react quickly to price adjustments and adapt to the new price situation by monitoring
the competition and prices. Innovative products and brands as well as competitive cost structures
assist us in containing or reducing erosions of gross margins.

It is important for a retail company to recognise market trends early and to develop characteristics
distinguishing it from the competition using new store concepts. Changes in customers' lifestyles
affect their purchasing behaviour and thus the market requirements. Therefore, it is important to
recognise market trends and changes in behaviour early in order to offer the store concepts to
customers that meet their needs. If trends or market changes are identified too late, especially in the
saturated markets, this results in a long-term competitive disadvantage and thus in revenue and
earnings declines.

The growing online business poses new challenges for both over-the-counter retailing and travel and
tourism. The increasing activities in the Internet retail trade will lead to changes in the retail
landscape. It is therefore particularly important to closely observe and actively follow this trend. For
instance, the REWE Group has continued to strengthen its online activities, particularly in the
German food retail sector. We plan to expand the segment further and take a leading role in online
business in the German food retail sector.

Store concepts and ranges are continually refined, meaning that innovations must be identified and

implemented at an early stage. We constantly observe our competitors and the markets so as not to
miss trends or new developments. This enables us to identify and implement trends and changes at

an early stage.

Image

Flawed communication with customers and stakeholders, especially on the topic of sustainability,
can lead to image risks for the Company. Because REWE takes a leading position in the field of
sustainability, correct and transparent communication, e.g. on issues relating to products and
employees, plays an important role. Due to the high sustainability requirements and continual
observation by stakeholders, flawed communication can have material adverse effects on customers
and stakeholders.

Sustainability communications are therefore subject to a careful examination and are reviewed by
the necessary specialist departments. Campaigns are centrally supported by market research. A
clearing office has been established to review communications media and statements.

Customer Marketing

Customer marketing risks relate primarily to the dissemination and distribution of customer and
product information. Disruptions in the information process or delayed or incorrect customer
information materially affect revenue and earnings development. Spreading the tasks across multiple
vendors and service providers serves to mitigate the risk of dependency and significant
communication disruptions.
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b) Other Risks

Financial Risks

The Group is exposed to various financial risks by its business activities, in particular to liquidity risk,
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and commodity price risk (jet fuel). The liquidity, interest rate
and foreign currency risks are managed systematically pursuant to the Group financial guidelines.
Financial risks are identified, assessed and hedged in close co-operation with the operating units. A
central Treasury Committee consults and decides on the risk policy and risk strategy. Treasury
committees also exist at the level of the business segments. The permissible range of actions,
responsibilities, financial reporting and control mechanisms for financial instruments are defined in
detail in the corporate guidelines. These guidelines call in particular for a clear functional separation
between trading and settlement activities.

Comprehensive management of financial risks focuses on the unpredictability of developments on
the financial markets and aims to minimise the potential for negative impact on the financial position
of the Group. Mitigating risk generally takes precedence over considerations of profitability.

Forward contracts, swaps and options are used to hedge interest rate, foreign exchange, and
commodities price risks. These are recognised under other financial assets or other financial
liabilities.

Loans, fixed-term deposits and overnight money are used as financial instruments.

The aim of liquidity management is to ensure that, through REWE International Finance B.V., Venlo,
Netherlands (RIF), the consolidated companies always have access to sufficient liquidity on the basis
of adequate undrawn lines of credit so that no liquidity risk exists should unexpected events have a

negative financial impact on liquidity.

The budgeted demand for jet fuel is secured in coordination with the responsible managers within
DER Touristik using derivative financial instruments with terms up to 18 months.

Legal Risks

As an international company, the REWE Group is confronted with changes in the legal framework of
its business activities, some of which could significantly impact on the Group's business. A team of
legal experts observes such changes continually and coordinates the Group's key legal steps.

A Compliance Management System (CMS) was implemented in the REWE Group in 2010 to ensure
adherence with statutory and internal Company directives. Since then, the CMS has been
continuously enhanced and includes in particular preventive measures to avoid compliance risks,
with a focus on antitrust and corruption risks. The decentrally-structured compliance organisation
has a direct link to the chairman of the Management Board.

The compliance programme was further expanded in 2019 as well. The design of the REWE Group
Compliance Management System in accordance with IDW Audit Standard AuS 980 was confirmed in
2017 by the external auditing firm KPMG, who issued an unqualified opinion, and was established
throughout the Group. As part of the "appropriateness of the CMS" audit, compliance-relevant
processes continue to be optimised and adapted with respect to their content and systems, and new
processes are established and gradually implemented in the Group. Efforts to expand the training
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concept began in 2018 and were largely completed in 2019 with the aim of holistic implementation
across the REWE Group from 2020 onwards. In addition, numerous on-site training sessions and
workshops were again conducted in which employees were also taught subject-specific behaviour
conforming to compliance requirements. In 2019, in addition to the existing interactive online
courses, in-person training sessions on anti-trust law were also carried out. Furthermore, work to
establish new online training courses on "integrity and anti-corruption" was completed in 2019, and
these will be rolled out throughout the Group from 2020 onwards. Executives and employees also
took advantage of the individual compliance consultations offered. After the completion of the
project to reorganise the Group's policies and guidelines management system in 2017, which has
been the responsibility of the corporate Governance & Compliance department since 2016, Group-
relevant guidelines continued to be transferred to the new system and into the dedicated nationally
and internationally applicable "house of rules" (HORUS) IT system in 2019, accompanied by regular
communication measures. A standardised process was implemented. The revision and update of the
REWE Group code of conduct was completed in 2019. It was rolled out across the Group at the
beginning of 2020 and was accompanied by a comprehensive communications campaign. In addition,
in 2019 the Management Board entrusted the corporate Compliance Department with a Group-wide
project to conduct a risk assessment on the topic of "sanctions and embargoes".

REWE's internal employee platforms continue to provide employees with the latest key compliance
information in a format that is easy to understand. The REWE Group's compliance reporting system is
also available on the intranet and all relevant contact data for whistleblower notifications is
published there. Material information about the CMS as well as the REWE Group's code of conduct
are also available on the REWE Group's website.

In its decision dated 2 February 2017, the European Commission initiated formal proceedings against
the largest European tour operators — including Group companies — due to suspected source market
restrictions. The outcome of these investigations is difficult to assess at the present time.

Tax Risks

Tax risks result primarily from ongoing and upcoming tax audits. These risks and possible legal risks
are always taken into account by recognising provisions or allowances for claims in the statement of
financial position. Tax risks are minimised by engaging qualified tax experts to closely monitor and
collect information on the operating areas, by involving such experts in change projects and
contractual matters and by the internal control system.

Socio-political Risks

As an international corporate group, the REWE Group is dependent on the political and economic
situation in the countries in which it operates. The general conditions in the individual countries can
change rapidly. Changes or instability in the political leadership, strikes, civil unrest, attacks,
embargos or changes in regulations, laws or levies can lead to risks.

We are following very closely the current tense situation in Europe, the intensive discussions on
immigration and asylum policies and the varying opinions of the individual member states regarding
European policies, in particular also the consequences of the United Kingdom withdrawing from the
EU (Brexit). We are also closely observing developments in the conflict between the United States
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and Iran and the political and economic development in Europe, as well as the impact of the
coronavirus on the global economy.

We continuously monitor the development of socio-political risks in the countries relevant to us. In
particular, we are closely monitoring current political developments in the Arabic world as well as the
resulting uncertainty for our markets in these destinations as well as for the European economy.

We closely analyse risks or opportunities that arise from the social and political situation and initiate
measures if necessary.

A particular focus is the impact of the coronavirus crisis on the Company and the economic
development of the Group. Given that the situation is extremely fluid and there is no certainty as to
whether the measures put in place by individual countries will be effective, it is not currently possible
to estimate the impact it will have on the development of our business. The duration and intensity of
the crisis will have a material effect on development.

At present, the primary task of the REWE Group is to supply the population with food and the ability
to maintain supply chains is a particular risk in this context. We cannot judge whether enough
employees will be available going forward to maintain operations at the stores and warehouses.

The travel and tourism industry has been brought to a complete standstill. Existing reservations are
being cancelled, new trips are not being booked, and payment obligations must be met.
Development in the Travel and Tourism business segment in particular is contingent on the duration
of the crisis.

The lack of new travel reservations and the cancellations due to the coronavirus crisis will
significantly reduce the Travel and Tourism business segment's contribution to the liquidity position
of the REWE Group in financial year 2020. Appropriate countermeasures are being put in place in the
operating business within the Travel and Tourism business segment in order to react to the change in
demand and reduce the likely effects on revenue and earnings development.

Even if key destinations are closed for a longer period, the REWE Group's liquidity reserves are
sufficient to meet all obligations as they fall due.

In the DIY Stores business segment, the coronavirus crisis has led to temporary store closures.
Keeping the requisite measures such as store closures or restrictions on customers in place for longer
will adversely affect revenue and earnings.

In addition to the crisis management teams within the units, a Group-wide crisis management team
has been set up to better monitor activities and risks. This will meet on a regular basis and assess the
situation as it develops.

Markets and Customers

The REWE Group is represented in the Western and Eastern Europe countries with successful brands
and distribution strategies. The REWE Group can utilise its opportunities on the market by
developing new business models and by further developing innovative sales concepts and
consistently aligning its actions to the customers' needs.
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As such, the customer is the focal point of the Group's actions. By expanding the product lines of
regional and sustainable products, the REWE Group is taking a leading role in the food retail sector,
which is distinguishing it significantly from the competition.

In international business, the REWE Group signifies strong retail brands such as BILLA, MERKUR, BIPA,
PENNY and IKI that have a high degree of name recognition. Our strength is an innovative product
line which is tailored to specific countries and is continually improved and expanded. Improvements
in quality and freshness lead to a positive customer perception and strengthen our competitive
position.

We are in a position to improve our market share through investments in a modern and extensive
branch network and by focusing on strong brands and sales concepts.

The intensified expansion of our tourism business could enable us to solidify and expand our position
in the European market. Extending the value chain and expanding into additional source markets
create further added value and increase the potential of harnessing market opportunities.

We want to continue to exploit the opportunities to profit from the growth of online sales and online
business by further expanding our online activities. At the same time, we can further expand our
market position by sensibly linking our strong brick-and-mortar retail activities and travel service
activities.

By integrating new business models, we can take advantage of the opportunities to generate further
constant growth and leverage synergies.

Prices

The prevailing strong competition in the food retail sector, the continuing price wars and the
increasing share of brand articles being sold in the discount sector are sharply reducing margins in
the food retail sector. Should the price wars and competitive pressure abate or ease, this could lead
to increasing revenue and margins and therefore positive growth of gross margins.

The success of our retail companies is dependent to a considerable extent on the purchase prices. In
the past we formed a purchasing company in Brussels with E.Leclerc in order to meet the growing
challenges of the competition in retailing and the increasing internationalisation of the food retail
sector.

We are also part of the COOPERNIC strategic alliance with other European retail companies. We can
counter the risk of purchasing price volatility and leverage international purchasing potentials
through joint purchasing and by negotiating terms and conditions.

Costs

Continuous optimisations of processes and costs lead to improvements in productivity which
positively impacts costs, and in turn, earnings.

Due to our activity in the retail and tourism sectors, we are particularly dependent on demand for
consumer goods and the competitive situation. Recent years have shown that economic
development in the countries of Western, Southern and Eastern Europe sharply impacts purchasing
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power and therefore demand. Even if the food retail sector is not as strongly affected by the
economic crisis as other retail sectors, a degradation of general conditions still has a negative
influence on the Company's success.

A substantial degradation of general economic conditions and an intensification of the political and
economic situation in the leading nations in the Americas, Asia and Europe will greatly increase
potential risks. Developments within the European Union and the discussions surrounding its future,
in particular the developments in connection with the United Kingdom's withdrawal from the EU,
may also lead to higher potential risks. In the Travel and Tourism business segment, the booking
behaviour of customers is significantly influenced by general economic conditions and external
factors. Political events, natural disasters, epidemics or terrorist attacks influence the demand for
travel in certain destination areas.

The current economic uncertainty caused by the coronavirus crisis has a material impact on the
REWE Group's revenue and EBITA development. From today's perspective it is difficult to present the
overall development for the Group. It is clear that the tourism and DIY stores sectors will have to
take a material hit to earnings as a result of the restrictions and constraints. Assessing the risk
situation is very difficult since any estimate is dependent on the duration and intensity of the crisis.
The food retail sector is currently recording revenue and earnings growth as a result of the current
situation. It is nevertheless impossible to predict which revenues and gross margins will have a
permanent effect on the year as a whole and whether cost trends can be maintained in the existing
structure.

Overall, however, there are currently no identifiable risks whose materialisation could threaten the
continued existence of the Group.
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Report on Expected Developments

1. FUTURE MACRO-ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

The report on expected developments considers the relevant facts and events known as at the date
the report was prepared, which could influence future business development. It is too early to
predict the spread of the coronavirus and its impact on the global economy. As yet there are no
forecasts by leading economic research institutions that predict future macro-economic
development at national level. For this reason, the table below presents data from the International
Monetary Fund (IMF) and the joint forecast, with the express disclaimer that the forecasts do not
factor in the effects of the coronavirus pandemic. In order nonetheless to cite the impact of the
coronavirus in the report on expected developments, reference is made to other sources of a
country-specific nature that are based on different data to that used by the joint forecast or the IMF.

The economic uncertainty will be considerable in 2020, with the coronavirus outbreak having a
substantial impact on a global economy that is already weakened by international trade disputes and
political tensions. Even in the best-case scenario where the virus only spreads beyond China on a
limited basis, which has not proven to be the case, the OECD assumed that global economic growth
would likely contract sharply in the first half of the year due to disrupted supply chains, a decline in
tourism and a deteriorating climate for business. Accordingly, in this case global economic growth
would be expected to slow to 2.4 per cent in 2020 from an already weak 2.9 per cent in 2019. In the
case of a wider outbreak throughout the Asia-Pacific region and the industrialised economies, which
is now the reality, the OECD assumes that global growth could drop to 1.5 per cent. The measures
taken to contain the virus and the loss of confidence would have such an impact on production and
consumption that several economies could slide into recession, including Japan and the euro zone.
The situation is changing rapidly and forecasts have to be adjusted on a regular basis. Even at this
stage the impact has been substantial, such as the production stoppage in the automotive industry,
borders closed, global travel warnings issued and restrictions placed on public life. Europe has since
become another epicentre of the coronavirus crisis. Added to that is its global spread, with further
centres in the United States and South America.
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Forecast economic data for REWE Group countries based on data prior to the coronavirus crisis

in %' (T
Germany 0.5 1.1 14 1.4 3.1 31
Austria 1.6 1.7 1.6 1.6 4.6 4.6
Czech Republic 2.5 2.6 2.4 2.2 21 2.0
Italy 0.2 0.5 0.8 1.0 10.0 9.8
Hungary 4.6 33 3.4 34 3.4 34
Romania 4.0 35 4.0 35 3.9 4.0
Slovakia 2.6 2.7 2.5 24 5.3 4.9
Russia 1.1 19 4.7 3.5 4.6 4.8
Lithuania 3.4 2.7 2.4 2.4 6.1 6.1
Bulgaria 3.7 3.2 2.7 2.7 4.6 4.4
Switzerland 0.8 13 0.6 0.6 2.8 2.8
United Kingdom 1.3 1.4 2.0 19 3.9 3.8
Sweden 0.9 15 1.8 1.7 6.7 6.9
Norway 1.9 2.4 23 19 3.6 3.5
France 13 13 13 1.2 8.5 8.3
Denmark 1.7 19 0.7 1.0 4.9 4.8
Ukraine 3.0 3.0 8.7 5.9 8.7 8.2
Croatia 3.0 2.7 1.0 1.2 7.0 6.9

Sources: International Monetary Fund, World Economic Outlook Database October 2019, Update January 2020; Joint forecast (Autumn 2019)
p=projected; ' year-on-year GDP change in per cent

While the IMF in its January 2020 World Economic Outlook (WEOQ) had still expected Germany to
experience robust economic growth at a measured pace (1.1 per cent), the Kiel Institute for the
World Economy (IfW Kiel) sees two options for Germany's export-heavy economy as the coronavirus
pandemic progresses: The first assumes a lockdown lasting until the end of April, with the dampening
effect gradually easing from the end of May. In this scenario, IfW Kiel expects GDP to contract by 4.5
per cent. The second scenario is based on a lockdown lasting until the end of July with a gradual
recovery from the end of August. In this case, IfW Kiel anticipates that GDP will contract by 8.7 per
cent. The protective measures put in place in response to the coronavirus, such as closures in the
retail sector or production stoppages in Germany's key automotive industry, and a dwindling order
intake for small businesses and the self-employed, which is expected to trigger a wave of
bankruptcies, will have massive repercussions for economic development. The German government
has taken a range of steps to lessen the impact of the crisis (hardship funds, simplified loan
procedures for businesses, short-time working allowance).

Before the coronavirus outbreak, the IMF had forecast that Austria would record a slight year-on-
year increase in economic growth in 2020. Taking into account the impact of the coronavirus crisis in
Austria, the UniCredit Bank Austria Business Indicator slashed its growth forecast from 1.0 per cent
to -0.6 per cent. A technical recession is expected in the first half of the year. The extent of the
economic recovery in the second half of the year will depend on the duration of the crisis and the
measures taken in response. It is expected that short-time working and liquidity measures will keep
the impact on the labour market in check, with the anticipated unemployment rate standing at 7.3
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per cent. The inflation rate is expected to fall in 2020, due on the one hand to consumer reticence
caused by the restrictions imposed on public life, and on the other hand to the drop in oil prices.

Even before the onset of the coronavirus crisis, the IMF's forecast for economic growth in Italy in
2020 was already very weak, at 0.5 per cent. Italy is currently the worst-hit country in Europe: a high
number of infections and deaths and an overburdened healthcare system have led to massive
restrictions (e.g. stay-at-home orders). It is not currently possible to estimate the economic
consequences, although it is expected that these will be far more severe in Italy than in other
countries. The sectors hit particularly hard include tourism, the food service industry and tour
operators. The Italian government has put various measures in place to reduce the impact on the
economy.

In 2020, the coronavirus will put an end to the economic boom in the Eastern European countries in
which the REWE Group is represented. The coronavirus is impacting the individual countries with
varying degrees of severity. Those that are not currently hit as badly by the outbreak will feel the
effects through supply chains, since Eastern Europe has close links to China or Italy. Those countries
that are heavily dependent on the automotive industry are already feeling a massive impact, with
production having been halted completely. In the Czech Republic, for example, the Skoda, TPCA and
Hyundai plants have closed and suppliers have followed suit. Tourism has also come to the standstill.
The benchmark interest rate has been cut in an effort to cushion the impact on the economy, and
the Czech government is providing loans and payment guarantees to small and medium-sized
businesses.

Before the coronavirus crisis, Switzerland had been expected to record growth in 2020 as compared
to 2019. The outbreak of the coronavirus pandemic and the response to it present major challenges
for the economy. The economic forecast published by the KOF Swiss Economic Institute presents
three potential scenarios that all anticipate a recession in the first half of the year. Depending on the
assumptions, the best-case scenario provides for GDP growth of 1.2 per cent in Switzerland, including
sporting events (0.8 per cent excluding sporting events). Among other things, this scenario assumes
that the majority of lost production can be compensated for in the third quarter and that the impact
on the labour market will only be very slight. The negative scenario assumes that GDP will contract
by 2.3 per cent, with factors such as rising household debt, sustained supply difficulties and
increasing liquidity bottlenecks weighing heavily on the economy.

Before the coronavirus outbreak, economic development in the United Kingdom was dominated by
the uncertainties surrounding Brexit. The IMF had assumed that the growth rate in 2020 would
remain stable as against 2019. Although there was initially some delay before the coronavirus crisis
reached the United Kingdom and its economy, the country is now facing a major challenge: The UK
government failed to respond to the crisis by adopting measures at an early stage, and the health
system is already overburdened. Material effects on economic development are to be expected here,
too.

The responses to the coronavirus crisis in Scandinavia have been very mixed: While Denmark and
Norway reacted by implementing measures, some sweeping, Sweden's response has been more
restrained. In Denmark, it was mainly businesses with direct business links to China that were initially
affected by the coronavirus crisis. Now, the hardest hit sectors are logistics, tourism and the
experience industry. Both the Confederation of Danish Industry and the Danish Chamber of
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Commerce expect economic growth of approximately 1.0 per cent in the best-case scenario. In
Sweden, the government's expectation is that GDP will slow by 0.3 percentage points in the
optimistic scenario and up to 0.8 percentage points in the pessimistic variant.

Before the outbreak of the coronavirus crisis, economic growth in France had been expected to
remain level year on year at 1.3 per cent. France has also been hit hard by the coronavirus crisis: The
rate at which the pandemic is spreading has accelerated sharply, and the containment measures
implemented by the government are being intensified almost daily. The growth outlook for 2020 has
worsened rapidly within a short period of time, and the French government currently assumes a
decline of 1.0 per cent. Some sectors have been hit particularly hard by the restrictions on
movement: event organisers, hotels, tour operators, restaurants and aviation. The current
uncertainty is expected to prompt a reluctance to invest on the part of businesses and a drop in
consumer spending. Businesses will also be hit by the disruption to international supply chains and
employee absences. Large companies such as Michelin, PSA and Renault ordered the closure of
production facilities in mid-March. The government has implemented a range of measures to support
the economy, such as issuing payment guarantees for small and medium-sized businesses,
simplifying short-time working and deferring social security and tax payments.

2. EXPECTED REVENUE AND EBITA DEVELOPMENT

The current economic uncertainty caused by the coronavirus crisis will have a material impact on the
REWE Combine's revenue and EBITA development. From today's perspective it is difficult to visualise
the overall development for the Group. This depends primarily on the extent and duration of the
pandemic. For example, legal measures and restrictions will become the hallmark of peoples' daily
routine and influence all aspects of public life. The intensity and diversity of the measures taken in
individual countries adds further uncertainty and, as a result, predicting how the crisis will unfold can
only be a matter of guesswork. Consequently, in this situation the previous expectations as to
revenue and EBITA growth will certainly be missed. For example, food retail initially recorded
significant revenue growth due to stockpiling by members of the public and a reduction in takeaway
sales. By contrast, reservations in the travel sector came to almost a complete standstill.

Based on the current situation, we assume that the food retail will record a slight increase in revenue
in 2020. Since most of this is revenue from stockpiling, the healthy figures recorded in the first
months will not fully impact revenue for the year as a whole.

The assessment of the expected internal EBITA development is subject to great uncertainty. We
anticipate moderate year-on-year earnings growth in food retail. However, this estimate assumes
that supply chains can be maintained. If this is not the case, the development will deviate from the
assumptions.

We expect negative internal EBITA in Travel and Tourism. Since the travel industry has currently been
brought to a standstill and it cannot be predicted how long this situation will last, it is not possible to
make any more precise assertion here either.

In the DIY Stores business segment, the coronavirus crisis has led to temporary store closures.
Keeping the requisite measures such as store closures or restrictions on customers in place for longer
will adversely affect revenue and earnings.
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Retail Germany

In the REWE division, the strengthening of the price-performance perception in the over-the-counter
business and the further development of the online business will generally remain at the forefront in
2020. Investments in the existing store network and logistics will secure the Company's long-term
future.

Due to the current situation, however, the focus is on continuing to supply the population with food.
The requirements are firstly to secure the supply chain and secondly to guarantee in-store processes.

The revenue growth in the first months of 2020 is having a positive effect on earnings development.
It is nevertheless impossible at present to predict which revenues and gross margins will have a
permanent effect on the year as a whole and whether cost trends can be maintained in the existing
structure.

We expect that internal EBITA in the PENNY division will decrease slightly in 2020. This is primarily
due to the intensified competition in the discount sector.

Additional investments in the existing store network will continue to weigh on earnings.

The optimisation of the product range, efficient process and cost structures, and a rising number of
stores will have a positive effect on earnings growth.

For PENNY, too, maintaining the supply of food to the population is a major challenge in the current
situation. Revenue growth in the first quarter of 2020 is causing a positive earnings trend. Since a
large portion of this is due to stockpiling, however, it is questionable whether this development will
effect the figures for the year as a whole.

Retail International

We assume that revenue in the Austria and CEE Full-Range Stores divisions will increase slightly in
2020 as compared to 2019. The growth on existing space and the modernisation work — both
completed and still in planning — would have led to further revenue and earnings growth. BIPA
Austria is performing according to plan but will continue to weigh down earnings in 2020.
Nevertheless, the planned activities lay the foundation for future competitiveness in a solid
environment.

Developments in Austria, as in Germany, will be heavily influenced by the coronavirus crisis. The
impact on revenue and earnings is expected to be similar to that experienced in Germany.

We expect that the existing store network and expansion activities in Eastern Europe will also
generate revenue growth. The situations in Russia and Ukraine also remain challenging. The
integration of UAB Palink, Vilnius, Lithuania, again contributed to growth in 2020.

At Penny International, revenue is forecast to increase as compared to 2019. This is due primarily to
the positive performance of existing stores and the continued expansion. The positive revenue trend
has a positive influence on the earnings situation, although increasing costs will erode this. Despite
various project activities, expansion investments in infrastructure and the planned cost increases,
earnings are projected to exceed the figure recorded in 2019.
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Italy has been hardest hit by the coronavirus crisis. The high number of infections and deaths and a
completely overburdened healthcare system are putting extreme pressure on the population. The
economy is under severe strain due to strict government restrictions on public life and the closure of
non-essential production facilities. Here as in all other countries, the primary focus for our stores is
to supply the population, although the conditions in Italy are making this particularly difficult.
Despite the current revenue growth, the impact of the crisis on our revenue and earnings position
cannot currently be predicted.

Travel and Tourism

As a result of the coronavirus crisis, the expected developments for Travel and Tourism are no longer
sustainable. The complete standstill in Travel and Tourism means that revenue will fall far short of
expectations. The main factor here is the duration of the crisis. The longer it lasts, the more
pronounced the adverse effects on revenue and earnings development will be.

The lack of new travel reservations and the cancellations caused by the coronavirus crisis will
significantly reduce the Travel and Tourism business segment's contribution to the liquidity position
of the REWE Group in financial year 2020. Appropriate countermeasures are being put in place in the
operating business in order to react to the change in demand and reduce the likely effects on
revenue and earnings development. Even if key destinations are closed for a longer period, the REWE
Group's liquidity reserves are sufficient to meet all obligations as they fall due, even without recourse
to government lending schemes.

DIY Stores

The DIY Stores business segment assumed a slight improvement in the revenue situation and
budgeted for a slight increase in earnings. The continued development of the online activities in
connection with the brick-and-mortar business and growth on existing space will remain a focus of
activities in 2020.

The coronavirus crisis has led to temporary store closures in the DIY sector. Keeping the requisite
measures such as store closures or restrictions on customers in place for longer will adversely affect
revenue and earnings.

Management's Overall Assertion on Revenue, Internal EBITA and Debt
Development

The business units had been expected to generate significant revenue growth in financial year 2020.
Additional expansions and renovation activities were set to support long-term revenue development.

Thanks to a positive revenue development, efficient cost structures and the expansion of our
business models, we had planned an internal EBITA for 2020 - excluding one-off effects from
company disposals and Group restructuring in 2019 - that was significantly higher than the previous
year.

An overall assertion for the Group is not possible due to the coronavirus crisis and the associated
uncertainty in assessing current revenue and earnings development in the individual business
segments. Due to the current situation, we expect a significant year-on-year decline in internal EBITA
— particularly in the DIY Stores and Travel and Tourism business segments — that any positive trend in
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food retail will not be able to absorb. The effects depend first and foremost on the duration of the
crisis and the associated restrictions. We expect a slight year-on-year increase in internal EBITA in
2020.

Net debt in 2020 will increase somewhat more than originally budgeted. This is mainly due to the
impact of the coronavirus crisis, which cannot yet be fully predicted. Refunds of customer
prepayments due to travel cancellations are covered by sufficient funds. The REWE Group has
sufficient lines of credit to guarantee its solvency at all times.

Cologne, 8 April 2020
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REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG, Cologne

Income Statement
for the Financial Year from 1 January to 31 December 2019

in million € Note no. 2019

Revenue 8 55,374.3
Change in inventory 449
Other operating income 9 4,408.6
Cost of materials 10 -42,071.8
Personnel expenses 11 -7,407.7
Depreciation, amortisation and impairments 12 -3,296.5
Other operating expenses 13 -6,142.5

Impairment losses on financial assets -13.3

Miscellaneous -6,129.2

Operating result

Results from companies accounted for using the equity method 14 413
Results from the measurement of derivative financial instruments 15 -8.2
Interest and similar income 52.5
Interest and similar expenses -595.4
Interest result 16 m
Other financial income 17 -27.4
Financial result
Taxes on income 18 134.8
Results from continuing operations 506.9
Net income of the year 506.9
Net income of the year attributable to shareholders of the parent company 528.4
Net income of the year/loss attributable to non-controlling interests 19 -21.5
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53,393.4
36.5
3,947.3
-40,547.0
-6,980.3
-1,283.2
-8,012.0
-3.3
-8,008.7
554.7
59.3

-7.0

234
-75.8
-52.4

-1.5

-137.7
415.5
415.5
350.6

64.9



REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG, Cologne

Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the Financial Year from 1 January to 31 December 2019

Net income for the year

Gains and losses from the translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries
of which recognised directly to equity
of which recognised in profit or loss

Gains and losses from the remeasurement of financial instruments at fair value through other comprehensive
income

of which recognised directly to equity
Gains and losses from designated risk components of hedging instruments
of which recognised directly to equity
of which recognised in profit or loss
Gains and losses attributable to costs of hedging
of which recognised directly to equity
of which recognised in profit or loss
Other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures
of which recognised directly to equity
Deferred taxes on aforementioned gains or losses reported under other comprehensive income
of which recognised directly to equity

Other comprehensive income attributable to items to be recycled to the income statement at a later date if
certain conditions are met

Gains and losses from the remeasurement of defined-benefit pension commitments

Gains and losses from the remeasurement of equity instruments

Other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures

Deferred taxes on aforementioned gains or losses reported under other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income attributable to items which will never be recycled to the income statement
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Comprehensive income attributable to shareholders of the parent company

Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests

(For disclosures, see note 31 "Equity")
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1Jan. - 31 Dec.
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-26.3
-26.1
-0.2

-9.0
-9.0
12.3
1.6
10.7
6.2
9.0
-2.8
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REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG, Cologne

Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2019

ASSETS

Intangible assets 2,652.7 2,267.5
Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets 21,23 18,656.9 10,137.4
Investment properties 22 219 22.4
Companies accounted for using the equity method 24 240.5 166.4
Other financial assets 25 308.9 566.6
Other assets 27 201.7 178.7
Deferred tax assets 29 618.3 401.8
Inventories 28 4,152.2 3,749.4
Other financial assets 25 1,097.8 1,067.4
Trade receivables 26 1,238.7 1,404.2
Other assets 27 1,185.5 377.3
Current income tax assets 29 212.6 132.6
Cash and cash equivalents 30 567.0 631.1

Sub-total of current assets 7,362.0
Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups 10.1
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REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG, Cologne

Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2019

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

in million € Note no.
Capital reserves 31
Retained earnings 31
Other reserves 31

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent company

Non-controlling interests 31

.
Employee benefits 32
Other provisions 33
Other financial liabilities 34

Lease liabilities

Miscellaneous other financial liabilities

Trade payables 35
Other liabilities 36
Deferred tax liabilities 29
Employee benefits 32
Other provisions 33
Other financial liabilities 34

Lease liabilities

Miscellaneous other financial liabilities

Trade payables 35
Other liabilities 36
Current income tax liabilities 29

Current liabilities

Total assets
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31 Dec. 2019

1,219.8
5,983.2
-84.2

7,118.8

159.4
1,118.0
84.4
10,393.0
8,583.0
1,810.0
13.1
53.0
114.2
611.9
437.6
2,280.9
1,522.2
758.7
6,979.8
1,685.5
115.2

12,110.9
31,164.8

31 Dec. 2018
0.0

5,656.7
-101.1
5,555.6
1,146.1
920.2
627.0
2,110.9
789.4
1,321.5
9.1
147.7
46.4
646.9
545.3
969.2
65.0
904.2
6,728.6
1,571.6
87.2

10,548.8



REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG, Cologne

Cash Flow Statement

for the Financial Year from 1 January to 31 December 2019

Results from continuing operations 506.9
Financial result 537.2
Income tax income/expense -134.8
Depreciation/amortisation and retroactive capitalisations on intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and financial assets 3,160.6
Increase/decrease in provisions 24.9
Gains/losses on the disposal of intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and financial assets -186.6
Other non-cash expenses -354.4
Increase in inventories, trade receivables and other assets not attributable to investing or financing activities -47.0
Increase in trade payables and other liabilities not attributable to investing or financing activities 397.6
Income taxes paid -108.1
Dividends received 43.3

Sub-total
Interest received 15.9
Interest paid -583.1
Proceeds from disposals of intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and investment properties 114.5
Proceeds from disposals of financial assets and companies accounted for using the equity method 249.5
Proceeds from/payments for the disposal of shares in consolidated companies 117.0
Purchase of intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and investment properties -1,752.0
Purchase of financial assets and companies accounted for using the equity method -365.2
Excess proceeds from business combinations and the acquisition of shares in consolidated companies 135
Payments for business combinations and the acquisition of shares in consolidated companies -769.7

’

)
w
©
NG
=y

Paid dividends, compensation obligations and other interests -5.4
Proceeds from equity contributions 0.0
Payments from changes in non-controlling interests -13.3
Cash proceeds from borrowings 996.1
Cash repayments of borrowings -442.4
Payments by lessees to reduce lease liabilities -1,486.3
Net change in cash funds -71.

Change in cash funds related to changes in the scope of consolidation 0.0
Currency translation differences 2.2

Cash funds at beginning of the period
Cash funds at end of the period

(For disclosures, see note 37 "Cash Flow Statement")
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3.6
-57.7
1,772.1
-1,247.6

-66.9

-18.2
0.3

-1.6



REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG, Cologne

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Financial Year 2018*

Other reserves

Reserve for
financial Reserve for
instruments at-equit
. . Reserve for Costs of . Difference from t | v Equity Non-
. o Capital Retained | measured at Revaluation accounting Reserve for .
in million € . cash flow hedging . currency parent controlling
(G earnings fair value reserve . components  deferred taxes .
hedges reserve translation . company interests
through other taken directly
comprehensiv to equity
e income

As at 1Jan. 2018 4 5 H b I 5 4,887.0 1,164.4 6,051.4

Change in accounting policies 0.0 318.2 -0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 318.2 1.6 319.8
As at 1 Jan. 2018 (adjusted) . : ) . . ! 5,205.2 1,166.0

Currency translation adjustments 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -24.9 0.0 0.0 -24.9 -1.4 -26.3

Financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -5.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -5.8 -3.2 -9.0

Hedging instruments — designated risk components 0.0 0.0 14.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -7.4 7.0 -1.7 5.3

Hedging instruments — costs of hedging 0.0 0.0 0.0 6.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 6.2 0.0 6.2

Remeasurement of defined-benefit pension commitments 0.0 16.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 16.1 3.6 19.7

Financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income 0.0 -2.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.4 -2.4 0.2 -2.2

Other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures 0.0 -0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.3 0.0 -0.4 0.0 -0.4

Net income of the year 0.0 350.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 350.6 64.9 415.5
Comprehensive income X b g X .. d 346.4 62.4 408.8

Capital increase/decrease 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.6 3.6

Dividend distribution 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -31.8 -31.8
Changes in equity by shareholders X I I I I X I X I 0.0 -28.2 ﬂ
Changes in the scope of consolidation 0.0 -0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.7 -2.3 -3.0
Acquisitions of non-controlling interests 0.0 4.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.7 -51.8 -47.1
Transfer between reserves 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Ending balance as at 31 Dec. 2018 y 5 . ! y 5,555.6 1,146.1 6,701.7

* Prior-year amounts adjusted in accordance with the provisions relating to financial instruments (IFRS 9), leases (IFRS 16) and accounting policies (IAS 8).
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the Financial Year 2019

Other reserves

Reserve for
financial Reserve for
instruments . at-equity 0
0 . Reserve for Costs of . Difference from | Equity Non-
Capital Retained | measured at Revaluation accounting Reserve for .
. cash flow hedging . currency parent controlling
reserves earnings fair value reserve . components deferred taxes |
hedges reserve translation . company interests
through other taken directly
comprehensiv to equity
e income

As at 1 Jan. 2019 I 5 5 H I b g 5,555.6 1,146.1 6,701.7

Change in accounting policies 0.0 -11.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -11.0 -6.2 -17.2
As at 1 Jan. 2019 (adjusted) . X . X . . . 5,544.6 IRELK:] 6,684.5

Currency translation adjustments 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 23.6 0.0 0.0 23.6 0.2 23.8

Hedging instruments — designated risk components 0.0 0.0 -9.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.4 -6.8 -1.0 -7.8

Hedging instruments — costs of hedging 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 -0.2 0.0 -0.2

Remeasurement of defined-benefit pension commitments 0.0 -86.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -86.3 -11.5 -97.8

Financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income 0.0 8.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 8.5 21 10.6

Other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.2
Other comprehensive income . ! X .. . -61.0 -10.2

Net income of the year 0.0 528.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 528.4 -21.5 506.9
Comprehensive income X B ! I X .. 4 467.4 -31.7 435.7

Capital increase/decrease 1,219.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1,219.8 0.6 1,220.4

Dividend distribution 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -5.4 -5.4
Changes in equity by shareholders I I I I X I X I 1,219.8 % 1,215.0
Changes in the scope of consolidation 0.0 -0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.2 0.0 -0.2
Acquisitions of non-controlling interests 0.0 -112.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -112.8 -944.0 -1,056.8

Ending balance as at 31 Dec. 2019 5 i I y b K 7,118.8 159.4

(For disclosures, see note 31 "Equity")
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General Accounting Principles of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

1. BASIC PRINCIPLES

REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG, Cologne (hereinafter referred to as "RZF" for short) is a registered
cooperative society (eingetragene Genossenschaft, "eG") under German law. In accordance with
section 11 of the German Disclosure Act (Publizitdtsgesetz, "PublG"), it is required to prepare
consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements include the Company and
its subsidiaries (jointly referred to as the "Group" or the "REWE Group").

These consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, as applicable in the European Union (hereinafter referred to as "IFRSs" for
short), the supplemental provisions of the German Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch, "HGB")
stipulated in section 315e (1) HGB, as well as the supplemental provisions of the Articles of
Association of RZF, and were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers GmbH
Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft, Cologne. The Management Board released them for publication on
8 April 2020. The consolidated financial statements must still be approved by the Supervisory Board
before they are ultimately adopted.

The accounting policies are detailed in note 6 "Accounting Policies".

The new accounting standard IFRS 16: Leases was applied for the first time in these consolidated
financial statements (see note 2 "Application and Effects of New or Revised Accounting Standards").

The financial statements of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements have
been prepared pursuant to uniform accounting principles. The consolidated income statement was
prepared using the nature of expense method. The financial year of RZF and its subsidiaries
corresponds to the calendar year. Unless otherwise indicated, all disclosures are in millions of euros
(€ million). Rounding may result in differences of + one unit (€, %, etc.).

RZF's registered office is at DomstraRe 20 in Cologne, Germany, and is registered in the Register of
Cooperative Societies at the Local Court of Cologne under GnR 631.

The Group's business activities are divided into five "business segments", which are subdivided
further into divisions and business units. The main focus of the business activities is on the chain food
retail sector, in both the full-range stores and discount segments.

The Retail Germany business segment includes the REWE, Penny Germany and Retail Germany
Central Companies divisions.

The REWE division is active in both retail and wholesale, operating supermarkets and consumer
stores under the REWE, REWE CITY, REWE CENTER and REWE to go brands. The wholesale business
supplies REWE and REWE Dortmund partner stores, REWE Dortmund stores and nahkauf stores as
well as other major customers. REWE is also active in the online business via its REWE delivery and
mail order services at REWE.de.

The Penny Germany division operates discount stores under the PENNY sales brand.
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In addition to the domestic real estate companies, the Retail Germany Central Companies division
also includes the production and sale of baked goods under the Glocken Backerei brand and the
production of meat and sausage products under the Wilhelm Brandenburg brand, as well as
domestic and international merchandising companies (including the EUROGROUP companies, REWE
Group Fruchtlogistik GmbH, Cologne, REWE Wein online GmbH, Cologne, and others).

Responsibility for the Retail Germany business segment rests with REWE Beteiligungs-Holding
Aktiengesellschaft, Cologne.

The Retail International business segment covers the Austrian Full-Range Stores, CEE Full-Range
Stores and Penny International divisions. The Austrian and CEE Full-Range Stores divisions operate
supermarkets and consumer stores. In Austria, the stores are operated under the BILLA, MERKUR
and ADEG brands. In addition, the wholesale business supplies ADEG partner stores. The Retail
International stores are also represented with the BILLA supermarkets in Bulgaria, Russia, Slovakia,
the Czech Republic and Ukraine. In addition, drug stores are also operated in Croatia and Austria
under the BIPA brand. In Lithuania, supermarkets are operated under the IKI brand.

In the Penny International division, the PENNY MARKT and PENNY MARKET brands are operated in
Italy, Austria, Romania, the Czech Republic and Hungary.

The Travel and Tourism business segment is organised into the Central Europe, Northern Europe,
Eastern Europe and Destination Areas divisions. It comprises a number of tour operators, travel sales
channels (travel agency chains, franchise sales channels and online portals) as well as destination
agencies and hotels under the DER Touristik umbrella brand. Travel and Tourism business segment
operates in the source markets of Germany, Austria, Switzerland, Eastern Europe, as well as
Scandinavia, Finland, France, the United Kingdom and the Benelux countries through the Kuoni units.
Travel and Tourism mainly trades under the brands ADAC REISEN, Apollo, Calimera, DER.COM, DER
Reisebiliro, DERPART, DERTOUR, EXIM Tours, helvetic tours, ITS, Jahn Reisen, KUONI, Iti and Meier's
Weltreisen. The business is operated by the Group's own travel agencies, by franchisees and via
online portals.

The DIY Stores business segment operates DIY stores in Germany under the toom Baumarkt and B1
Discount Baumarkt brands.

Central services provided by the parent company and various subsidiaries for Group companies and
third parties are combined under the Other business segment. These services are essentially
procurement functions (merchandise wholesale business and warehousing), central settlement, del
credere assumptions, IT services, energy trading (EHA), online retail trade (ZooRoyal and
Weinfreunde), e-commerce services (REWE Digital) as well as coordination of Group-wide advertising
activities.

A new business segment, Convenience, was formed upon acquisition of the Lekkerland Group as at 1
January 2020. For further information on the acquisition, please see note 42 "Events after the
Balance Sheet Date".

For an exhaustive overview of the Group's subsidiaries, please refer to the List of Shareholdings
appended to the notes.
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2. APPLICATION AND EFFECTS OF NEW OR REVISED ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS

The following accounting standards were adopted for the first time in the 2019 financial year:

Name of standard, amendment or interpretation

IFRS 91 Amendments: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

IFRS 16 Leases

IAS 28! Amendments: Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

IFRIC 23! Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

IAS 19! Amendments: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

Various! Amendments: Annual Improvements: 2015-2017 cycle

! No material impacts resulted from the standard, amendment or interpretation.

IFRS 16: Leases

The new standard, IFRS 16, replaces IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. The scope of IFRS 16 includes in general all
rental and lease arrangements, sub-letting arrangements and sale-and-leaseback transactions.

The modified retrospective approach is used to determine the effect of the changes as at the date of
initial application (option). Consequently, the comparative figures for the year prior to initial
application are not restated retrospectively and the cumulative effect is recognised in retained
earnings.

Lessee

The purpose of the new standard is to account for all obligations arising from rental and lease
arrangements. The principal innovation of IFRS 16 as compared to IAS 17 relates to lessee
accounting. Going forward, lessees are no longer required to classify leases as either operating or
finance leases. Instead, the lessee must recognise a liability as at the date on which the lessor
transfers the asset to the lessee for use as well as a corresponding right-of-use asset. The Group has
elected to not recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases and for leases
for which the underlying asset is of low value (option).

The lease liability was measured as at the date of initial application using the present value of the
lease payments still outstanding as at the date of initial application, applying the incremental
borrowing rate. The right-of-use asset is initially measured on the basis of the recognised lease
liability. If recognition as a favourable or unfavourable contract has been applied in the past, the
residual carrying amount is set off against the right-of-use asset as at the date of initial application.
The same applies to any provisions recognised for leases that have been classified as onerous
contracts in accordance with IAS 37 (option). Prepayments already made are included in the
measurement. Initial direct costs were not included.
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The Group's significant leases (real estate and vehicle fleet) were reviewed with respect to the new
accounting requirements for leases under IFRS 16. The standard has fundamental effects on the
accounting treatment of operating leases.

As at 31 December 2018, obligations from non-cancellable operating leases amounted to 12.8 billion
euros. As at 1 January 2019, right-of-use assets (before offsetting against unfavourable and
favourable contracts and OC provisions) amounted to 9.3 billion euros and lease liabilities to 9.3
billion euros. The difference between the two liability items is primarily attributable to discounting
future lease payments. Differences between the two amounts also arise due to the recognition of
liabilities from finance leases as at 31 December 2018, adjustments stemming from different
assessments of extension and termination options, and short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets, which are recognised as an expense on a straight line basis. In the case of leases previously
classified as finance leases, the carrying amounts of the right-of-use asset and lease liability in
accordance with IFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019 generally correspond to the carrying amounts
measured applying IAS 17 as at 31 December 2018 (IFRS 16.C11). The effect recognised in retained
earnings on initial application of IFRS 16 amounted to 11.0 million euros and related to measurement
adjustments recognised directly in equity, for example the real estate portion of legacy finance leases
(lessee) and impairment losses on lease receivables (lessor). The average discount rate for real estate
amounted to 5.95 per cent and for moveable property 2.46 per cent. For details of the adjustments
effects, please see note 4 "Material Transactions".

Lessor

For lessors, the only changes that the new standard introduces compared to IAS 17 concern the
classification of subleases. The classification of leases relating to the lease of own assets is adopted.

From the lessor's point of view, subleases therefore need to be analysed in particular. There were
only immaterial effects on the balance sheet and income statement since a significant number of
subleases continue to be classified as operating leases. Receivables from finance leases amounting to
47.9 million euros were recognised as at 1 January 2019, on which impairment losses of 0.5 million
euros were recognised in accordance with IFRS 9. The impairment on initial recognition was
recognised directly in equity.

IAS 19: Pensions and similar obligations

Amendments to the accounting standard with respect to plan amendments, curtailments and
settlements occurring during the reporting period entered into force as at 1 January 2019.

If a defined benefit plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs, the current service cost and
the net interest for the remainder of the financial year are redetermined for the entire plan using the
current actuarial assumptions (parameters) that were used for the required remeasurement of the
net defined benefit liability (asset).

Restructuring measures may give rise to plan settlements which, in connection with changes to the
measurement parameters, may have material effects on personnel expenses and the interest
expense.
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The amendments to IAS 19 additionally clarify the effect of a plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement on the requirements regarding the asset ceiling for defined benefit plans. This does not
currently give rise to any effects.

New or Revised Accounting Standards Published, but not yet Applied
During the 2019 Financial Year

The new standards and interpretations listed below, as well as amendments to existing standards,
were issued by the IASB, but — if adopted as European law — did not yet require application in the

2019 financial year. Any option for voluntary early application was not exercised for these accounting
standards.
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New or Revised Accounting Standards Published, but not yet Applied During the 2019 Financial Year

Mandatory Standard has
application already been
5 . Name of standard, amendment or interpretation i
expected in adopted as
financial year European law
IAS 1/1AS 8! | Amendments: Definition of Material Yes
Various! Amendments: Revised Conceptual Framework Yes
2020 IFRS 9/IAS
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Yes
39/IFRS 7%
IFRS 3! Amendments: Definition of a Business No?
2023 IFRS 171 Insurance Contracts No?

1 No material impacts are expected to result from the standard, amendment or interpretation.

2 Since the standard, amendment or interpretation has not yet been adopted as European law, there is no mandatory
application date within the European Union. Consequently, the date of initial application as planned by the IASB, on
which the allocation to financial years is based, is subject to change.

3. CONSOLIDATION

Consolidation Principles

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the consolidation methods
presented below.

a) Subsidiaries

Generally, subsidiaries are all companies at which RZF, on account of substantial direct or indirect
rights, has the ability to control key business activities so as to generate variable returns (controlled
companies). The existence and effect of potential voting rights which are currently exercisable or
convertible are taken into account when evaluating whether control exists.

Subsidiaries are generally included in the consolidated financial statements (full consolidation) from
the date on which control has been transferred, directly or indirectly, to RZF. They are
deconsolidated when control is lost. Subsidiaries classified as held for sale are recognised pursuant to
the provisions for non-current assets, disposal groups and discontinued operations held for sale.

Acquired subsidiaries are recognised using the acquisition method. The acquisition cost corresponds
to the fair value of the assets acquired, the equity instruments issued and the liabilities incurred or
assumed as at the transaction date. Costs related to the business combination are always treated as
expenses, regardless of whether they are directly allocable to the acquisition. Upon initial
consolidation, the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities identifiable in connection with a
business combination are measured at their fair value as at the acquisition date, irrespective of the
extent of any non-controlling interest.

The excess of the acquisition cost over the interest in the net fair value of the assets acquired is
recognised as goodwill. If the acquisition cost is less than the net fair value of the assets of the
acquired subsidiary after reassessing the measurement, the difference is recognised in the income
statement under "other operating income".
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Intercompany transactions and any resulting gains that are included in the consolidated financial
statements are eliminated. Losses are also eliminated unless the transaction indicates an impairment
of the transferred asset.

The separate financial statements of the domestic and foreign subsidiaries consolidated are prepared
according to uniform accounting policies.

b) Joint Ventures and Joint Operations

Joint arrangements, over which RZF directly or indirectly exercises joint control with one or more
partners by virtue of a contractual agreement, are included in the consolidated financial statements
as joint ventures or joint operations. Currently, no joint operations are included in the consolidated
financial statements. Joint ventures are included in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method. Please see the explanatory notes with regard to associates for the general accounting
treatment using the equity method. They are recognised from the date on which joint control can be
exercised until the date on which joint control is lost. Joint ventures classified as held for sale are
recognised pursuant to the provisions for non-current assets, disposal groups and discontinued
operations held for sale. Entities over which joint control cannot be exercised despite a
corresponding share of voting rights are classified as associates or as other equity investments.

c) Associates

An entity at which the Group has the ability to significantly influence financial and operating
decisions, and in which the Group regularly holds 20 to 50 per cent share of voting rights, directly or
indirectly, is classified as an associate and recognised in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method. The equity method is not used if an associate has been classified as held for sale.
An entity in which the share of voting rights is 20 per cent or more, but whose financial and
operating policy cannot be significantly influenced, is classified as other equity investments. These
shares are reported under non-current financial assets and generally measured at fair value. If the
fair value cannot be reliably measured, the amortised cost is the best estimate.

An entity is generally included in the group of associates accounted for using the equity method from
the date on which significant influence over the entity can first be exercised. An entity is no longer
included in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method as at the date on which
significant influence can no longer be exercised. An associate classified as held for sale is recognised
in accordance with the provisions for non-current assets, disposal groups and discontinued
operations held for sale.

Investments in associates are initially recognised at cost. In addition to the interest in net assets, cost
reflects the disclosed hidden reserves and liabilities and a premium paid in the form of goodwill. A
gain on a bargain purchase is recognised immediately in profit or loss. If there are indications of an
impairment of the entity accounted for using the equity method, the entire carrying amount of the
investment is subjected to an impairment test. A subsequent reversal of impairment also applies to
the entire carrying amount.

The Group's interest in an associate includes the goodwill identified upon acquisition, subsequent
effects from the adjustment of hidden reserves and liabilities and pro-rata profits and losses of the
associated company as at the acquisition date, less the cumulative impairment losses from
impairment testing of the carrying amount of the equity-accounted investment.
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During subsequent consolidation, the carrying amount recognised in the balance sheet increases or
decreases in accordance with the Group's share of the associate's net income/loss for the period.
Changes recognised directly in the associate's equity are also recognised directly in equity in the
consolidated financial statements in the amount of the Group's interest. If the carrying amount of
the investment and other unsecured receivables of the Group are written down in full due to pro-
rata losses of the associate, the Group does not recognise any additional losses unless it has entered
into a legal or constructive obligation or has made payments for the associate.

Significant "upstream" and "downstream" transactions and resulting profits between Group
companies as well as those between an associate or joint venture are eliminated. Significant losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction indicates an impairment of the transferred asset.

The accounting policies of associates are adjusted as required to ensure uniform accounting
treatment.

Consolidation Principles in Connection with Step-ups and Step-downs
a) Control Obtained in Stages

For a business combination achieved in stages, there is an upward consolidation as at the acquisition
date when control is obtained for the first time. First, the previously held interest is measured at fair
value through profit or loss. Then, a first-time consolidation is recognised based on the fair values of
all acquired shares. Together with the consideration transferred for the recently acquired shares, the
amount of non-controlling interests and the net fair value of the subsidiary's assets, the remeasured
interest forms the basis for calculating goodwill or a bargain purchase.

If the shares previously held were classified as equity instruments for which the fair value option was
exercised, the changes in fair value recognised in equity must be reclassified to retained earnings.

Upon a transition from the equity method to full consolidation, the interest previously recognised
using the equity method is also remeasured to fair value through profit or loss. Reserves recognised
directly in equity are reversed as if the previously held interest had been sold. Upon disposal, these
reserves are reversed in accordance with the individual standards under which they were recognised.

b) Loss of Control with Retention of an Interest

Upon loss of control, the interest disposed of is deconsolidated through profit or loss. At the same
time, amounts related to this interest recognised directly in equity are either recognised through
profit or loss or reclassified to other retained earnings depending on the provisions of the individual
standards under which these reserves were recognised. Any remaining interest in the entity is
measured at fair value through profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements as at the date
of the step-down. The accounting treatment of this remaining interest in subsequent periods is made
in accordance with the provisions for financial instruments, for associates or for joint ventures.

c) Step-ups or Step-downs in Interests Without Loss of Control

i) Step-ups in Interests in Controlled Companies

Acquisitions of interests in a subsidiary, whose direct or indirect control by the Group was possible
prior to the acquisition, are accounted for as equity transactions between owners. A difference
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between the purchase price and the interest of the non-controlling interests in the net assets
resulting from such an acquisition is recognised directly in equity in the consolidated financial
statements.

ii) Step-downs of Interests in Controlled Companies

The disposal of interests in a subsidiary without loss of control is treated analogously to an increase
in controlling interests — as a pure equity transaction. As a result, for sales to non-controlling
interests, differences between the disposal proceeds and the corresponding interest in the net
carrying amount of the subsidiary's assets are also recognised directly to equity in the consolidated
financial statements.

Scope of Consolidation

During the financial year, the consolidated financial statements included 415 (previous year: 394)
subsidiaries, of which 266 (previous year: 245) were German and 149 (previous year: 149) were
foreign.

Changes to the Scope of Consolidation in Financial Year 2019

Fully-consolidated subsidiaries Germany Total

Additions -
of which: new formations or initial consolidations of companies already under control 11 3 14
of which: acquisitions 19 5 24
)
of which: mergers, accretions or liquidations 4 5 9

of which: disposals 5

3 8
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Disclosures on Changes in the Scope of Consolidation

Companies Included in the Scope of Consolidation for the First Time During the Financial Year
No. Company Name, Registered Office

Germany

. bestkauf SB Warenh&duser GmbH, Cologne*

. Centor-Warenhandels-GmbH, Cologne*

. DER Touristik Hotels & Resorts Franchise GmbH, Cologne

. HLS Handel und Lager Service Gesellschaft mbH, Cologne*

. ja-Lebensmittelvertriebsgesellschaft mbH, Cologne*

. REWE - Aktiengesellschaft, Cologne*

. REWE Beteiligungsgenossenschaft eG. Nord, Cologne

. REWE Card GmbH, Cologne*

O 0 N O U B W N

. REWE-Centermanagement und Verwaltungs GmbH, Cologne*

=
o

. REWE Convenience Holding SE, Cologne*

[
N

. REWE Convenience Verwaltungs SE, Cologne*

=
N

. REWE Digital Verticals GmbH, Cologne
. REWE-GROSSHANDEL Oberbayerische Lebensmittel Einkaufsgenossenschaft eG, Eching

=R
V]

. REWE Group Buying GmbH, Cologne*

=
w

. REWE-HANDELSGRUPPE GmbH, Cologne*
. REWE Immobilien 2 GmbH & Co. KG, Cologne*

R
N o

. REWE Immobilien 3 Beteiligungs GmbH & Co. KG, Cologne

=
00

. REWE-Immobilien-Beteiligungs-Verwaltungs GmbH, Cologne*
. REWE Lebensmittel-GroRhandel eG, Cologne*

N
o

. REWE Markte 71 GmbH, Cologne
. REWE Markte 72 GmbH, Cologne

NN
N e

. REWE Markte 73 GmbH, Cologne

N
w

. REWE-Unterstutzungsverein fur Kaufleute e.V., Cologne

N
B

. REWE Verkaufsgesellschaft mit beschrankter Haftung, Cologne*

N
wv

. Rewe-Verlag Gesellschaft mit beschrankter Haftung, Cologne*

N
(=}

. REWE Warenhandelsgesellschaft mbH, Cologne*

N
~N

. REWE - Zentral-Aktiengesellschaft, Cologne*

N
00

. REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG und REWE-Zentral AG GbR, Cologne*

N
o

. Wilhelm Brandenburg Vertriebs GmbH, Frankfurt am Main

w
o

. ZooRoyal Petcare GmbH, Cologne

* Acquisitions

No. Company Name, Registered Office
International

. DTS Cyprus Ltd, Agios Athanasios

. GO VACATION (CAMBODIA) CO., LTD., Pnomh Penh

. K 2 Liegenschaftsverwertungsgesellschaft mbH, Klagenfurt*

. Online Travel Information Services AG, Koblenz

. REWE Far East Limited, Hong Kong*

REWE Group Buying Italy S.r.l., Vallese di Oppeano*

. REWE Services Shanghai Co., Ltd., Shanghai*

© N O U A W N R

. Travel Brands S.A., Bucharest*

* Acquisitions
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Companies that were Deconsolidated in the Financial Year due to Mergers, Accretions, Liquidations or
Disposals
No. Company Name, Registered Office
Germany
. ATLAS/RVS Reisebiiro Verwaltungs Service GmbH, Berlin*
. ATLAS REISEN GmbH, Berlin*
. commercetools GmbH, Munich*
. coop Logistik GmbH, Kiel*
. Hanseat Reisebiiro GmbH, Berlin*
. Kontra Warenhaus-Einkaufs- und Verwaltungs GmbH, Cologne
. Supermarkte Nord Vertriebs GmbH & Co. KG, Kiel

. Supermarkte Nord Verwaltungs GmbH, Kiel

© 00 N OO U1 A W N B

. WISUS Beteiligungs GmbH & Co. Sechste Vermietungs-KG, Pullach i. Isartal

* Disposals

No. Company Name, Registered Office
International

. Club Calimera Fuerteventura Playa S.L.U., Palma de Mallorca

. commercetools B.V., Amsterdam*

. commercetools Inc., New York*

. DER Touristik Hotels Spain S.L., Palma de Mallorca

. DER Touristik Suisse Airportservice AG, Volketswil

. Destination Touristik Service S.A.E., Hurghada*

. Penny Market Bulgaria EOOD, Stolnik

N 00 o A W N P

. Radio Max Romania S.R.L., Bucharest

* Disposals

Nine joint ventures (previous year: nine) and 12 associates (previous year: 12) were included using
the equity method in the financial year.

respeggt GmbH, Cologne, was included as a joint venture for the first time in this financial year, while
REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG und REWE-Zentral AG GbR, Cologne, is no longer included as a joint
venture (now fully consolidated).

In addition, the Group has interests in a total of 1,267 REWE partner companies (previous year:
1,214) which are also included as associates using the equity method.

For a full list of the Group's shareholdings in accordance with section 313 (2) nos. 1 to 4 HGB, please
see the annex to the notes. These were submitted to the operator of the German Federal Gazette
(Bundesanzeiger), where they were subsequently published.

Acquisitions

The REWE Group formerly comprised two independent groups under parent companies RZF and
REWE — Zentral-Aktiengesellschaft, Cologne (hereinafter referred to as "RZAG" for short),
respectively. Previously, the consolidated financial statements of both companies were voluntarily
combined into one set of financial statements. The Management Boards of RZAG and RZF held
meetings on 25 February 2019. At its meeting, the Management Board of RZAG resolved to transfer
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all shares with restricted transferability held by the shareholders of RZAG, with the exception of eight
shares, on the basis of contribution agreements or share purchase and transfer agreements, and
proposed to the Annual General Meeting that it also consent to this. At its meeting, the Management
Board of RZF approved the acquisition of the aforementioned shares and proposed to the Annual
General Meeting that is also consent to this. The Supervisory Boards of RZAG and RZF adopted the
resolutions without amendment on 20 March 2019. The final approvals required for the
effectiveness of the contribution agreements were given at an extraordinary general meeting of RZF
and at an extraordinary general meeting of RZAG on 30 April 2019. The initial consolidation date is 1
May 2019.

Following the transfer of shares, RZF holds an interest of almost 100.0 per cent in RZAG. The business
activities of RZAG and its subsidiaries largely cover wholesale operations in the food and DIY stores
sectors. Central procurement functions and services for the REWE Group were mainly provided via
strategic purchasing. Its customers comprised in particular the companies of the REWE Group active
in the discount, full-range stores and DIY stores sectors.

The contributions were made in the form of contributions in kind against the grant of additional
shares of RZF. The shareholdings were determined based on the ratio of fair values calculated for
both groups. The fair values were determined by an external appraiser. The value ratios as at 31
December 2018 served as the basis for the valuation. A total of 1,219.8 million euros was recognised
in the capital reserves (see note 31 "Equity"). This amount includes 146.5 million euros of acquired
treasury shares. The co-operative shares increased by 0.1 million euros (see note 34 "Other Financial
liabilities").

RZF incurred 0.2 million euros in costs associated with the business combination in the financial year,
which were recognised in other operating expenses.

In the course of the acquisition, RZF acquired 100.0 per cent of the shares in the company REWE-
ZENTRALFINANZ eG and REWE-Zentral AG GbR, Cologne. Until now, RZF and RZAG each held 50.0 per
cent of the company. As a result of the successive acquisition, the shares previously held by RZF were
valued at the fair value of 166.2 million euros. The valuation of the old shares resulted in other
operating income of €166.2 million (see item 9 "Other operating income").

The table below summarises the amounts of the contributed assets and liabilities of the entire
transaction, including the company REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG and REWE-Zentral AG GbR, Cologne,
recognised at the date of initial consolidation.
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Intangible assets 396.2
Property, plant and equipment 20.1
Inventories 240.8
Trade receivables 176.5
Other financial assets 1,316.3
Other assets 162.8
Cash and cash equivalents 135
Deferred tax assets 28.1
| o
Employee benefits 70.6
Other provisions 66.6
Trade payables 189.6
Other financial liabilities 34.8
Other liabilities 10.3
Deferred tax liabilities 120.9

Fair value of net assets

Total liabilities 492.8

Fair value of previously held interest 399.1

Fair value of 50.0 per cent of RZF und RZAG GbR 166.2

Contribution value of the RZAG Group 1,366.4
Goodwill (+)/Negative goodwill (-)

The 1,366.4 million euro contribution value of RZAG presented in the table includes 146.5 million
euros in treasury shares of RZF and 1,025.4 million euros in fair values attributable to non-controlling
interests in entities already fully consolidated in the RZF Group. Before the contribution, the supply
of goods and services between RZF and RZAG was conducted at arm's length. RZF made neither a
profit nor a loss from this relationship. Receivables and payables were fully offset.

The entire goodwill (70.2 million euros) is attributable to the incoming employees and, in particular,
future synergies. It is not tax deductible. It is expected that all trade receivables will be fully
collectible. In the period from 1 May to 31 December 2019, RZAG and its subsidiaries generated
revenue of 1.1 billion euros before consolidation measures and recorded consolidated profit of 39.1
million euros. From 1 January 2019 to 30 April 2019, RZAG and its subsidiaries generated revenue of
540.7 million euros and recorded a net loss of 8.3 million euros. The acquisition resulted in a cash
inflow of 13.5 million euros.
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In accordance with the purchase and transfer agreement dated 15 July 2019, EXIM HOLDING a.s.,
Prague, Czech Republic, acquired all shares of Travel Brands S.A., Bucharest, Romania, as at 5
October 2019. Travel Brands is active in the tour operator and travel sales sector and operates one of
Romania's largest networks of travel agencies. The purchase price amounted to 5.2 million euros.

_ S

s

Intangible assets 0.6
Property, plant and equipment 2.9
Inventories 1.5
Trade receivables 0.7
Other assets 1.5
Cash and cash equivalents 2.4
BT
Employee benefits 0.7
Trade payables 6.0
Other financial liabilities 2.6
Other liabilities 5.4

Fair value of net assets

Cost

The goodwill (10.3 million euros) primarily reflects location advantages and synergies. It is not tax
deductible.

The receivables amount to 0.7 million euros gross, of which none are expected to be uncollectable.
Between 5 October 2019 and 31 December 2019, Travel Brands contributed 4.3 million euros to
revenue and -1.0 million euros to earnings in the consolidated financial statements. Had the
company been consolidated as at 1 January 2019, it would have contributed an additional 4.3 million
euros to revenue and reduced earnings by 1.2 million euros in the consolidated financial statements.
No transaction costs were incurred in connection with the acquisition. The acquisition resulted in a
cash outflow of 2.8 million euros as at the initial date of consolidation.

In accordance with the purchase and transfer agreement dated 5 July 2019, DER Touristik Suisse AG,
Zurich, Switzerland, acquired all shares of travelXperts ag, Oberuzwil, Switzerland, and the shares of
its subsidiary, Travel Partner AG Uzwil, Uzwil, Switzerland, as at 1 August 2019. The companies sell
and organise business and recreational tours and travel to trade fairs. The purchase price for all
shares was 0.9 million euros. This resulted primarily in additions to inventories (0.9 million euros),
trade receivables (1.5 million euros) and other liabilities (2.5 million euros). The first-time inclusion
resulted in 0.6 million euros in goodwill.

In accordance with the agreement dated 7 November 2019, the acquired companies were merged
with DER Touristik Suisse AG with retrospective effect as at 1 January 2019. The disclosures in
accordance with IFRS 3.B64 q)(i) and (ii) can thus no longer be made retrospectively.

In accordance with the share purchase and transfer agreement dated 14 June 2019, REWE Markt
GmbH, Cologne, acquired the remaining 30.0 per cent interest in each of Supermarkte Nord
Verwaltungs GmbH and Supermarkte Nord Vertriebs GmbH & Co. KG, both with registered office in

Page 68



Kiel, as at 30 June 2019. The purchase price for both interests was 31.3 million euros. Due to the
negative equity of Supermarkte Nord Vertriebs GmbH & Co. KG, the step-up caused an increase of
51.6 million euros in non-controlling interests and a decrease of 82.9 million euros in retained
earnings.

In accordance with the purchase and transfer agreement dated 18 December 2018, ADEG
Verbrauchermarkte GmbH, Wiener Neudorf, Austria, acquired 90.0 per cent of the shares of K 2
Liegenschaftsverwertungsgesellschaft mbH, Klagenfurt, Austria. The remaining 10.0 per cent was
acquired by MAREAL Immobilienverwaltungs GmbH, Wiener Neudorf, Austria. The purchase price for
all shares was 4.3 million euros. The company holds and leases out a property. The acquisition does
not meet the criteria of IFRS 3.

In accordance with the purchase agreement dated 9 September 2019, Online Travel Information
Services AG, Koblenz, Switzerland, acquired various assets — primarily intangible assets — required to
sell flight tickets and provide other travel services. The acquisition took the form of an asset deal. The
cost was 0.3 million euros. The acquisition resulted in 0.3 million euros in goodwill.

In accordance with the share purchase and transfer agreement dated 29 March 2019, REWE
Spedition und Logistik GmbH, Hiirth, acquired all shares of TSL GmbH, Transportsystem und Logistik,
GroR-Umstadt. The company is primarily active in the freight forwarding and logistics industry. The
cost was 2.2 million euros. This acquisition does not meet the criteria of IFRS 3.

Divestitures
a) Assets held for sale

The properties classified as held for sale in the previous year were sold in the financial year. This
resulted in a disposal gain of 1.9 million euros. In the Retail International business segment, two
stores in the Czech Republic (3.4 million euros) and the AGM location in Donaustadt (6.7 million
euros) were classified as held for sale in the financial year.

b) Disposals in the financial year

In accordance with the agreement dated 10 October 2019, REWE Digital GmbH, Cologne, sold 60.0
per cent of the shares of commercetools GmbH, Munich. Due to the loss of control, this subsidiary
was deconsolidated with effect as at 30 November 2019. The currency translation adjustments of 0.2
million euros previously recognised in other comprehensive income were reclassified to profit or
loss. The remaining 40.0 per cent of the shares were measured at fair value through profit or loss.
The remeasurement gain amounted to 56.1 million euros. The fair value of the remaining interest,
which totalled 78.7 million euros, constituted the amount of the addition for subsequent recognition
using the equity method (see note 24 "Companies Accounted for Using the Equity Method").

The table below summarises the amounts of the disposed assets and liabilities recognised as at the
date of deconsolidation.
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Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment 0.8
Trade receivables 4.5
Other assets 10.3

Cash and cash equivalents

Employee benefits
Other financial liabilities 8.5
Trade payables 2.6

Other liabilities

The disposal gain is presented under other operating income (see note 9 "Other Operating Income")
and is calculated as follows:

Consideration received 118.0
Fair value of interest retained 78.7
Net assets divested -13.4
Derecognition of goodwill -7.0

Deconsolidation gain 176.3

In accordance with the agreement dated 19 June 2019, DER Deutsches Reisebiiro GmbH & Co. OHG,
Frankfurt am Main, sold all shares of DER Business Travel GmbH, Cologne, with effect as at 31 August
2019.
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The table below summarises the amounts of the disposed assets and liabilities recognised as at the
date of deconsolidation.

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment 3.1
Inventories 0.7
Trade receivables 6.2
Other assets 0.9
Cash and cash equivalents 12.9

Deferred tax assets

Employee benefits

Other provisions 1.4
Trade payables 1.2
Other financial liabilities 2.1
Other liabilities 5.6

Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities -

The disposal gain is presented under other operating income (see note 9 "Other Operating Income")
and is calculated as follows:

Consideration received 349
Net assets divested E.5

Derecognition of goodwill

Deconsolidation gain m

The reserves for pension provisions (1.4 million euros) and adjustments for the transition to IFRS
accounting (-0.2 million euros) previously recognised in other comprehensive income were
reclassified to retained earnings.

In accordance with the agreement dated 18 July 2019, NeuMarkt Lebensmittel-Vertriebsgesellschaft
mbH & Co. KG, Cologne, sold its 25.2 per cent interest in Karstadt Feinkost Verwaltungs GmbH,
Cologne, and its 25.1 per cent interest in Karstadt Feinkost GmbH & Co. KG, Cologne, to Karstadt
Warenhaus GmbH, Essen. This resulted in a disposal gain in the amount of the selling price of 4.2
million euros (see note 9 "Other Operating Income").

4. MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the acquisitions and disposals listed in note 3 "Consolidation", the following material
transactions took place in the 2019 financial year.
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On transitioning to IFRS 16, the Group recognised the respective right-of-use assets and additional
lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019. The prior-year figures were not restated. Favourable and
unfavourable contracts as well as onerous contracts (provisions for onerous contracts and for rental
risks) that relate to leases were set off against the respective right-of-use asset. The effect of the
adjustment was recognised in retained earnings as at 1 January 2019.

Adjustment of Figures in the Opening Balance Sheet

1Jan. 2019

Right-of-use assets 824.5 8,516.4 9,340.9
Favourable contracts 22.7 -18.7 4.0
Lease receivables 0.0 47.4 47.4
Deferred tax assets 401.8 8.2 410.0
Lease liabilities -854.4 -9,295.2 -10,149.6
Provisions for onerous contracts -504.0 478.6 -25.4
Provisions for rental risk -170.7 151.8 -18.9
Unfavourable contracts -139.8 94.3 -45.5
Retained earnings -5,656.7 17.2 -5,639.5

For the effects of IFRS 16 on the income statement, please see note 23 "Leases" and on the cash flow
statement please see note 37 "Cash Flow Statement". For details of the accounting policies under
IFRS 16 and IAS 17, please see note 2 "Application and Effects of New or Revised Accounting
Standards".

On 13 December 2019, RZF raised a further promissory note loan in ten tranches with a total nominal
value of 537.0 million euros. Of this, 437.0 million euros was paid out on 20 December 2019 and
100.0 million euros was paid out on 7 January 2020 (see note 34 "Other Financial liabilities").

In accordance with the ruling of the Bundesfinanzhof (Federal Finance Court) dated 27 July 2019,
case ref. lll R 22/16, advance travel services (in particular contracts to rent hotels and hotel rooms in
the case of package tour operators) are not subject to trade tax add-backs. DER Touristik
Deutschland GmbH, Cologne, had previously factored in advance travel services when calculating its
income for trade tax purposes. This gave rise to 171.2 million euros in claims for tax and interest
refunds in the financial year.

5. CURRENCY TRANSLATION

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in euros. This corresponds to the currency of the
Group's primary economic environment (functional currency).

The items of each entity included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (functional currency).

Translation of Transactions in the Separate Financial Statements

Transactions in foreign currency in the financial statements of the Group companies included in the
consolidated financial statements are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate
applicable as at the transaction date. Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions as well as from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities maintained in foreign
currency at the closing rate are recognised in profit or loss.
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Translation of Financial Statements of Subsidiaries with Different
Functional Currencies into the Reporting Currency (Euros)

Financial statements of subsidiaries which were prepared in a functional currency other than the

euro reporting currency are translated pursuant to the concept of functional currency translation.

Assets and liabilities are translated using the closing rate for each balance sheet date. For the sake of

simplification, the income and expense items in the income statement are translated at the monthly

average rate for the period.

Differences from the translation of financial statements prepared in a different functional currency

are recognised directly in equity. A translation difference recognised directly in equity will not be

realised until the respective foreign corporate unit is deconsolidated.

Financial statements that are accounted for using the equity method and prepared in a different

functional currency are also translated pursuant to the functional currency concept when adjusting

equity.

Exchange Rates of Countries not Participating in the European Monetary Union

1SO code Closing rate per €
31 Dec. 2019 | 31 Dec. 2018

AUD
BGN
CAD
CHF
CNY
CzK

DKK

GBP
HKD
HRK
HUF
INR
JPY
MAD
NOK
NzD
PLN

RON
RUB
SEK

SGD
THB
TND
UAH
usb
ZAR

United Arab Emirates
Australia

Bulgaria

Canada

Switzerland

China

Czech Republic

Denmark

United Kingdom
Hong Kong
Croatia
Hungary

India

Japan

Morocco
Norway

New Zealand
Poland

Qatar

Romania
Russian Federation
Sweden
Singapore
Thailand
Tunisia

Ukraine

USA

South Africa

Dirham
Dollar
Lew
Dollar
Franc
Yuan
Koruna
Krone

Pound
Sterling

Dollar
Kuna
Forint
Rupee
Yen
Dirham
Krone
Dollar
Zloty
Riya
Leu
Rouble
Krona
Dollar
Baht
Dinar
Hryvnia
Dollar

Rand
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4.109
1.599
1.956
1.462
1.087
7.818
25.463
7.470

0.852
8.713
7.449
331.040
79.812
122.190
10.739
9.846
1.664
4.257
4.073
4.782
69.278
10.440
1.509
33.472
3.131
26.583
1.119
15.740

4.207
1.622
1.956
1.560
1.123
7.878
25.778
7.467

0.903
8.972
7.410
321.610
80.226
126.400
10.920
9.974
1.706
4.303
4.169
4.663
79.545
10.277
1.564
37.317
3.424
31.583
1.145
16.451

Average rate per €

2019 2018
4.112 4.338
1.611 1.580
1.956 1.956
1.486 1.529
1.113 1.155
7.736 7.808

25.672 25.647
7.466 7.453
0.878 0.885
8.772 9.257
7.418 7.418

325.259 318.881
78.834 80.737
122.021 130.414

10.766 11.082
9.851 9.596
1.700 1.706
4.298 4.261
4.075 4.299
4.745 4.654

72.494 74.019

10.588 10.258
1.527 1.593

34.771 38.169
3.281 3.109

28.942 32111
1.120 1.181

16.178 15.615



6. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant provisions presented below on recognition and measurement have been applied
uniformly for all accounting periods presented in these financial statements.

Intangible Assets

With the exception of goodwill, intangible assets are recognised at cost when acquired. If their useful
life can be determined, they are generally amortised on a straight-line basis over their contractual
term or their shorter economic useful life. Favourable contracts are amortised over the individual
contractual term.

Economic Useful Lives Underlying Amortisation

Software 3=5
Trademarks 5-50
Customer relationships 4-21
Licenses 1-45
Leasehold interests 1-25
Permanent rights of use 2-30

Internally generated intangible assets must be capitalised only if certain precisely defined
prerequisites are met. In the consolidated financial statements, this applies to internally developed
software. Cost comprises all directly allocable costs necessary to prepare and produce the software
products. In addition to external costs, this also encompasses internal personnel costs. Capitalised
development expenses are amortised over the expected useful life of the newly developed software.
Research costs are expensed in the period in which they arise.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the acquirer's share of the net fair
value of the net assets on the acquisition date. Such goodwill is allocated to intangible assets and is
not amortised. Goodwill is measured at its original cost less cumulative impairments and assessed at
least annually as part of an impairment test. Goodwill attributable to foreign entities is recognised in
local currency and subject to currency translation. No reversals of impairment are carried out on

goodwill.

Goodwill from the acquisition of an associate or a joint venture is included in the carrying amount of
the investment in associates or joint ventures.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and cumulative
impairment losses. The cost includes the expenses directly attributable to the acquisition. Borrowing
costs are capitalised solely when material assets are produced which require more than twelve
months of preparation for their intended use or sale. In the Group, this concerns warehouses and
administrative buildings in particular. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
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they are incurred. Public investment subsidies received and free investment grants are considered by
reducing the cost of the corresponding asset by the amount of the subsidy.

Since 1 January 2019, property, plant and equipment has also included right-of-use assets resulting
from leases (rental agreements) as part of the initial application of IFRS 16. The right-of-use assets
are recognised at the present value of the lease liability and other incidental costs. Initial direct costs
were not included as at 1 January 2019 (practical expedient to IFRS 16). Favourable and unfavourable
contracts connected with the right-of-use assets were also included in the cost recognised as at 1
January 2019. As at the date of initial application, the provisions for onerous contracts were set off
against the cost as an adjustment using the gross method.

The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the expected term of the lease.
Periods covered by termination and extension options are only included if it is reasonably certain
that they will be exercised.

The depreciation of other items of property, plant and equipment is generally taken on a straight-line
basis over the respective economic useful life. Residual carrying amounts and economic useful lives
are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted if necessary.

Buildings 25-50
Investment properties 25-50
Leasehold improvements 7-15
Technical equipment and machinery 8-20
Motor vehicles 5-8
Other equipment, operating and office equipment 3-23

Restoration obligations are included in the cost in the amount of the discounted settlement. These
capitalised restoration costs are depreciated pro rata over the useful life of the asset. Maintenance
expenses are recognised only if the recognition criteria for property, plant and equipment are
satisfied. Gains and losses from disposals of assets are determined as the difference between the
disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts and are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of Assets

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are not amortised, but instead tested at least annually
for impairment. Intangible and tangible assets with a finite useful life are tested for impairment if
pertinent events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may no longer be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised in the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds
the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined as the higher of the asset's fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. For impairment testing, assets are aggregated at the lowest
level for which separate cash flows can be identified. As a rule, the individual store is the cash-
generating unit (CGU) for impairment testing of the assets identified here, unless a smaller CGU
could be determined or the asset was not allocable to a store.

Impairments of tangible and intangible assets, with the exception of goodwill, are reversed if the
reasons for an impairment recognised in previous years no longer apply. For assets subject to
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depreciation/amortisation, impairments are reversed up to the carrying amount — less
depreciation/amortisation — that would have been determined if no impairment loss had been
recognised in previous years. For assets with indefinite useful lives, impairments are reversed up to a
maximum of the carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had been
recognised in previous years.

The carrying amount of an interest in an entity recognised using the equity method is always tested
for impairment if there are objective indications that the interest could be impaired.

The impairment described in this section does not apply to recognised inventories, assets from
employee benefits, financial assets under the scope of IFRS 9 or deferred taxes.

Impairment of Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and additionally if there are indications of impairment.
The goodwill allocated to a CGU is impaired if the recoverable amount is less than the carrying
amount. An impairment may not be reversed if the reason for an impairment recognised in previous
years no longer exists.

Goodwill is allocated by considering the units that should benefit from the synergies resulting from
the business combination.

CGUs are formed at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes.

Impairment of Right-of-use Assets

Determining the fair value of right-of-use assets consists of determining the fair value and
determining the value in use. In the case of right-of-use assets recognised in respect of rentals of real
estate used to operate a store, the value in use is determined by applying the Group's weighted
average cost of capital (WACC) to discount adjusted EBITDAR over the term of the head lease. Fair
value is determined by using the Group's WACC to discount the future lease payments over the term
of the head lease, factoring in a subletting ratio. The WACC applied in specific countries ranged from
6.1 per cent to 19.2 per cent during the financial year.

Right-of-use assets recognised in respect of shared assets, such as warehouses and management
premises, cannot be tested for impairment at the level of an operating market. For these right-of-use
assets, the lowest level of the CGU is the level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes.

Right-of-use assets relating to the vehicle fleet or other operating and office equipment is not
generally subject to the standard annual impairment test. For reasons of materiality and due to the
fairly short-term nature of the leases, in these cases it is generally possible to forego the
determination of fair value and with it the standardised annual impairment test. If there are
indications that right-of-use assets relating to the vehicle fleet and operating and office equipment
may be impaired, they are tested for impairment on a case-by-case basis.
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Impairment of Real Estate

The properties' value in use is determined based on property-based cash flow budgets and country-
specific costs of capital. Market-price-based processes and capital market valuation techniques were
used to determine the fair values less costs to sell. The measurement included appraisals, knowledge
from sale negotiations and other market assessments. As far as possible, the fair values were derived
from prices directly or indirectly observed in the market. In all other cases, the fair values were
determined on the basis of inputs that were not based on data observable in the market.

Investment Properties

Investment properties comprise real estate (land, buildings or parts of buildings)

. held for generating rental income or to realise capital appreciation,
. which is not used for production or administrative purposes, and
. is also not to be sold in connection with ordinary business activities.

Investment properties are measured in accordance with the cost model at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairments. They are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their expected
useful life and subjected to impairment testing if there are indications of impairment. Please see the
notes on property, plant and equipment with respect to useful lives.

A mixed-use property is classified based on the portion of owner occupation. If this is more than five
per cent, it is not classified as an investment property.

Other Financial Assets
a) Classification

Other financial assets within the scope of IFRS 9 are assigned to one of the following measurement

categories:

° amortised cost,

. fair value through profit or loss, or

. fair value through other comprehensive income.

Other financial assets are initially classified as equity or debt instruments in accordance with IAS 32.
In the case of a debt instrument, it is subsequently classified depending on:

. the business model for managing the financial asset, and
. the contractual cash flow characteristics.

Financial assets (debt instruments) held within a business model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding are measured at amortised cost.

Debt instruments that meet the cash flow characteristics but are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Group does not hold any financial
assets that are assigned to this category.
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In accordance with the classification requirements of IFRS 9, financial assets are measured at fair
value through profit or loss under the following conditions:

. The cash flow characteristics have not been met.
. The financial asset is held for trading ("sell" business model).
. The election is made to recognise changes in fair value through profit or loss (FVPL option),

taking into account the requirements under IFRS 9.
° The financial asset meets the definition of a derivative.

The Group does not exercise the FVPL option for financial assets.

Debt instruments are reclassified only in the event there is a change in the business model for
managing the financial asset.

In accordance with IFRS 9, an entity may make an irrevocable election at initial recognition for
investments in equity instruments not held for trading to present changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income (FVOCI option). The measurement effects recognised in other comprehensive
income are not reclassified to the income statement upon subsequent disposal of the equity
instrument.

b) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are measured at fair value as at the trade or
settlement date. A financial asset is derecognised if the contractual rights to cash inflows from the
asset expire or if the financial asset is transferred. The latter is the case if all substantial risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred or if control over the asset is lost.

Financial assets are counted as current assets if their maturity is within twelve months of the balance
sheet date. Otherwise, they are presented as non-current assets.

c¢) Measurement

At initial recognition, financial assets are measured at fair value plus or minus the transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. In the case of primary financial
instruments, the fair value is generally the transaction price. The transaction costs of financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss are recognised directly through profit or loss. If the
transaction price differs from the fair value, the difference is recognised through profit or loss.

The subsequent measurement of the financial assets depends on the measurement category:
Debt instruments

. At amortised cost:
Subsequent measurement is made at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Gains or losses on impairment must be recognised in profit or loss. Gains and losses from the
derecognition of these assets, including interest income, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

. Fair value through profit or loss:
Gains and losses from the change in fair value of these assets, including interest income, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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. Fair value through other comprehensive income:
The Group does not hold any financial assets assigned to this measurement category.

Equity instruments

In general, investments in equity instruments are measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Changes in the fair value of the instruments, including their dividend income, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

If the irrevocable election is made to recognise financial assets that represent equity instruments, the
changes in the fair value are presented in other comprehensive income. The measurement effects
recognised in other comprehensive income are not reclassified to the income statement upon
subsequent disposal of the equity instrument. By contrast, dividends musts be recognised in profit or
loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

d) Impairments

The credit risk of debt instruments reported at amortised cost is measured using a three-stage
impairment model. The model includes forward-looking inputs and reflects significant increases in
credit risk.

Upon initial recognition of the financial assets, a loss allowance must be determined and recognised
through profit or loss on the basis of the expected credit losses that would result from a loss event
occurring within twelve months of the balance sheet date (stage 1). If the credit risk of the financial
assets has increased significantly between the date of initial recognition and the balance sheet date,
the loss allowance must be recognised at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses of
the financial instrument (stage 2). Indications of a significant increase in the credit risk include
considerable financial difficulties on the part of a borrower and an increased probability that a
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation. If, in addition to a significant
increase in the credit risk as at the balance sheet date, there are objective indications of impairment,
such as a breach of contract in connection with a default or delinquency in interest and principal
payments, the creditworthiness of the financial asset is deemed impaired and the specific valuation
allowance is also measured on the basis of the present value of the lifetime expected credit losses,
taking into account the available evidence (stage 3).

The calculation of the expected future impairment losses is generally based on historical probabilities
of default, which are supplemented by future parameters relevant to the credit risk.

Financial assets are derecognised if there is no reasonable expectation of repayment. In the event a
financial asset is derecognised, the Group continues to undertake enforcement measures in an effort
to collect the receivable due.

There were no significant changes in the impairment methods and assumptions applied during the

financial year.

For reasons of materiality, no loss allowances were recognised for other financial assets.
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Trade receivables

Trade receivables are classified as financial assets in the "amortised cost" measurement category
because they are held until maturity to collect the contractual payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

They are initially recognised at fair value or, to the extent there are no significant financing
components, at their transaction price.

Subsequent measurement is made at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Impairment
losses on trade receivables are recognised using the simplified impairment approach in accordance
with IFRS 9. Under this approach, the lifetime expected credit losses are recognised through profit or
loss upon initial recognition. Objective indications of the existence of an impairment include a
borrower with significant financial difficulties, an increased probability that a borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, as well as a breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments. The existence of such objective evidence leads to a
specific valuation allowance on the receivables under the simplified stage-based approach.

Other Assets

All other claims are recognised under other assets. All other assets are recognised at cost and written
down to the lower recoverable amount when indications of impairment exist.

Inventories

Inventories of raw materials, consumables and supplies as well as merchandise are generally
measured at cost or the lower net realisable value.

Inventories in warehouses are measured at cost less all subsequent cost reductions. Direct
administrative costs of merchandise procurement and central settlement are added to the cost.
Allowances for inventory risks are determined as at the balance sheet date and accounted for on an
individual basis.

The net realisable value used is calculated as the realisable sale proceeds anticipated less the
completion and selling costs incurred up to sale. Merchandise is written down to the lower net
realisable value item by item. If the reason for the write-down ceases to exist or the net realisable
value increases, the write-down is reversed.

Work in progress and finished goods are recognised at cost or at the lower net realisable value. They
include all costs directly allocable to the production process as well as appropriate portions of the
production-related overheads. This includes production-related depreciation, pro-rata administrative
costs and pro-rata social security costs. Borrowing costs are not normally recognised as part of cost
because long-term production processes are necessary to produce inventories only in exceptional

cases.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash, cheques received and bank balances. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly
liquid financial investments that can be converted into certain cash amounts at all times or within a
maximum period of three months and that are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

As is the case for other financial assets, cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the general
impairment requirements of IFRS 9.

Current and Deferred Taxes

Current tax expense and income are determined based on the respective domestic taxable earnings
of the year (taxable income) using the domestic tax provisions applicable to the company. The
liabilities or receivables of Group companies from current taxes are calculated based on the
applicable tax rates of the countries in which the companies included in the consolidated financial
statements are domiciled. Uncertain income tax assets and liabilities are recognised as soon as their
level of probability exceeds 50 per cent. Uncertain income tax positions are recognised using their
most probable value.

Deferred taxes are determined using the liability method (balance sheet liabilities method).
Accordingly, temporary differences in the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities recognised under
IFRS in the consolidated financial statements and the carrying amounts for tax purposes are generally
recognised. In addition, deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carryforwards (taking into
account a minimum taxation provision) and for interest carryforwards and realisation carryforwards
for hidden liabilities from the transfer of obligations.

Deferred taxes are measured using the respective country-specific tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted as at the balance sheet date and whose applicability is
expected as at the date the deferred tax assets will be recovered or the deferred tax liabilities will be
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent to which it is probable that future taxable
income of the same taxable entity at the level of the same taxation authority will be available,
against which the temporary differences can be offset.

Expected future tax reductions from loss carryforwards, and interest carryforwards are capitalised if
it is probable that sufficient taxable income will be generated in the foreseeable future or taxable
temporary differences that will reverse in the future are available and against which the tax loss
carryforwards can be offset in the period in question. The three-year plans for internal management
purposes are used for the forecast of future tax results and taxable temporary differences. These
forecasts are generally extrapolated to a five-year planning horizon.

Changes in deferred taxes in the balance sheet are recognised as deferred tax expense/income if the
underlying item is not accounted for directly in equity. Deferred tax assets and tax liabilities are
recognised directly in equity for the effects presented in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if these income tax assets and liabilities
apply to the same taxation authority and to the same taxable entity.

Non-current Assets, Disposal Groups and Discontinued Operations Held
for Sale

Non-current assets or groups of assets and liabilities are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will largely be realised through a highly probable sale within the next twelve months or
through an already completed sales transaction instead of continued business use. They are
measured at the lower of the carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. If non-current assets
with a finite useful life are to be sold, they are no longer depreciated/amortised as at the date they
are classified as held for sale.

These assets and liabilities are presented in the balance sheet separately in the items "non-current
assets and disposal groups held for sale" or "liabilities from non-current assets and disposal groups
held for sale". Related expenses and revenues are included in the result from continuing operations
until disposal unless the disposal group qualifies for reporting as a discontinued operation.

The results of an entity's component are presented as a discontinued operation if this component
represents a material business line or includes all activities in a geographical region. Results from
discontinued operations are recognised in the period in which they arise and are presented
separately in the income statement as "results from discontinued operations". The previous period's
income statement is adjusted accordingly.

Employee Benefits

Consolidated companies have both defined contribution and defined benefit pension plans.

Consolidated companies contribute to defined contribution plans on the basis of a statutory or
contractual obligation, or make voluntarily contributions to public or private external pension
insurance plans. The consolidated companies have no additional payment obligations beyond the
payment of the contributions. The contributions are recognised in personnel expenses when due.
Prepayments of contributions are recognised as assets in that there is a right to repayment or
reduction of future contribution payments.

A defined benefit plan is a pension scheme that stipulates the amount of pension benefits an
employee will receive upon retirement. The amount is normally dependent on one or more factors
such as age, length of service and salary. The provision for defined benefit plans recognised in the
balance sheet (net pension obligation) corresponds to the present value of the defined benefit
obligation (DBO) as at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets. The DBO is calculated
annually by independent actuarial experts using the projected unit credit method. The DBO is
calculated by discounting the expected future cash outflows using the interest rate for the most
highly rated corporate bonds denominated in the currency in which the benefits will also be paid,
and whose terms correspond to those of the pension obligation.

Actuarial gains and losses based on experience adjustments and changes to actuarial assumptions
are recognised in other comprehensive income and in retained earnings in the statement of
comprehensive income.
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Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss as soon as it is incurred.

The interest portion contained in the pension expenses consists of the interest cost on the DBO and
the interest on plan assets. They are aggregated into a net interest component, which is presented in
the financial result. The net interest component is determined by using the above interest rate.

The expected income from reimbursement rights against the trust associations is also reported under
the financial result. It is likewise determined by using the above interest rate.

The other components of pension expenses are reported under personnel expenses.

Severance payments and similar payments in Italy ("Trattamento di Fine Rapporto" or "TFR") are
non-recurring payments that must be paid due to labour law provisions in Austria and Italy upon
termination of an employee as well as regularly upon retirement. As defined benefit pension plans,
they are recognised in accordance with the above principles for accounting for such plans.

Retirement allowances are employee benefits that are paid under certain conditions when
employees retire. Survivor benefits are payments based on length of service, which are made to the
heirs of an employee upon the death of that employee. Since retirement allowances and survivor
benefits are defined benefit plans, they are recognised in accordance with the above principles for
accounting for defined benefit plans.

The provision for German partial and early retirement obligations is measured in accordance with the
expert actuarial opinion of Hamburger Pensionsverwaltung e.G., Hamburg, based on the 2018 G
actuarial tables of Prof. Klaus Heubeck, based on a reasonable discount rate. The refund claims for
additional retirement contributions against the German Federal Employment Agency (Bundesagentur
flr Arbeit) are recognised under other assets. The provisions for additional retirement contributions
from partial retirement obligations are allocated over the vesting period.

The provision for service anniversary bonuses corresponds to the full amount of the obligation and
was determined using actuarial principles reflecting a reasonable fluctuation discount and discount
rate. It is measured based on the 2018 G actuarial tables of Prof. Klaus Heubeck for the earliest
possible retirement age for German statutory pension insurance.

The provision for holiday entitlements is measured at the daily rates or the average hourly rate
expected for the subsequent year, including expected additional amounts (e.g., in-kind
remuneration, holiday pay, Christmas bonus and employer contributions to capital-forming savings
schemes) and social security contributions to be incurred.
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Other Provisions

Other provisions are recognised if there is a present legal or constructive obligation vis-a-vis third
parties as a result of past events, whose settlement is expected to entail an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits and whose amount can be estimated with sufficient reliability.

They are measured using the best estimated value of the settlement amount. They are not offset
against reimbursement claims. If the amount of the provision could be influenced by several possible
events, the amount is estimated by weighting all potential events with their respective probabilities
(calculation of an expected value). Non-current provisions are recognised using the discounted
settlement amount as at the balance sheet date.

For rented properties, until 31 December 2018 each location was analysed based on whether and in
what amount another provision had to be recognised from the rental agreement. Following the
transition to IFRS 16, provisions for rental agreements are no longer recognised since these
obligations are now taken into full consideration in the lease liabilities. In the case of operator
obligations, provisions may still arise in the future from other costs.

Other Financial Liabilities
a) Classification

On account of their characteristics, other financial liabilities within the scope of IFRS 9 are generally
assigned to the "amortised cost" measurement category in the Group.

This does not include, for example, derivative financial liabilities, which are assigned to the "fair value
through profit or loss" category.

Financial liabilities cannot be reclassified.
b) Recognition and derecognition

The Group recognises a financial liability at the time it becomes a contracting party.

A financial liability is derecognised if its underlying obligation is satisfied, terminated or expired. If an
existing financial liability is exchanged for another financial liability of the same creditor with
substantially different contractual terms, or if the terms of an existing liability are changed
significantly, such an exchange or change is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability. The difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in net income/loss for the period.

Financial liabilities are counted as current liabilities if their maturity is within twelve months of the
balance sheet date. Otherwise, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

¢) Measurement

At initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at fair value plus or minus the transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial liability. The transaction costs of financial
liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss are recognised through profit or loss.
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During subsequent measurement, all financial liabilities are generally measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, with the interest expense recognised using the effective interest
rate.

This excludes the following financial liabilities:

° derivative financial instruments,

. contingent consideration that is recognised by the acquirer and measured at fair value through
profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 3,

. financial guarantee contracts for which the higher of the two following amounts is recognised:
either the amount of the impairment loss determined pursuant to the requirements of IFRS 9
or the original amount less cumulative amortisation.

The Group does not exercise the voluntary option to subsequently measure the liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (fair value option).

d) Miscellaneous

The membership capital of RZF is presented under other financial liabilities because the members
have the right to demand redemption of the shares.

Trade Payables
Trade payables are classified as financial liabilities in the "at amortised cost" measurement category.

They are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent measurement is made at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Other Liabilities

Other liabilities are recognised at the repayment amount.

Leases

The Group has applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach. As such it has not restated
the comparative information, which continues to be presented in accordance with IAS 17 and IFRIC 4.
Details of the accounting policies in accordance with IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 are presented separately.

Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2019

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. This is the
case if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. The Group applies the definition of a lease in accordance with IFRS 16 to
assess whether the contract conveys the right to control an identified asset.

This method is applied to contracts entered into on or after 1 January 2019. Finance lease
agreements already recognised in the balance sheet are not revalued. They continue to be measured
at amortised cost. If a land portion was not previously valued together with the building in these
cases, the land portion is now included.
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Lessee

At the commencement date or on amending a contract that contains a lease component, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract on the basis of the relative stand-alone prices. For real
estate leases, the Group has elected not to separate non-lease components, and instead accounts for
lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.

At the commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability adjusted by any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus
any initial direct costs and an estimate of costs to be incurred in dismantling or removing the
underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset and/or the site on
which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated on a straight-line basis from the commencement
date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will
exercise a purchase option. In this case, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of
the underlying asset, as determined in accordance with the requirements for property, plant and
equipment. The right-of-use asset is also adjusted on an ongoing basis for any requisite impairment
losses and for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

On initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments not
yet paid at the commencement date. It is discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, at the country-specific incremental borrowing rate. The
Group normally uses its own incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The Group applies the indirect method to determine its incremental borrowing rate. This is based on
the discount rate for properties, which is adjusted in consideration of term, credit risk, collateral and
other components such as location and type of use (supermarket, DIY store, etc.) to achieve a lease-
specific rate. For real estate, the assessment of whether it is reasonably certain that options
contained in a contract will be exercised is based on factors in planning and leasehold improvements
carried out on the property. The same procedure also applies to the measurement of leases based on
contracts that do not contain options but that are subject to automatic renewal pending notice of
termination.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

. fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

. variable lease payments that depend on an index or (interest) rate, initially measured using the
index or (interest) rate as at the commencement date;

. amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

. the exercise price of a purchase option if it is reasonably certain that such option will be

exercised, as well as payments of penalties for terminating the lease early unless it is
reasonably certain that there will be no early termination.

The lease liability is measured at its carrying amount using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured if
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. there is a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or (interest)
rate;

. the estimate of amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee is modified
within the Group;

. the assessment with respect to the exercise of purchase, extension or termination options is
changed within the Group; or

. an in-substance fixed lease payment is revised.

The amount of any such remeasurement of the lease liability is recognised as an adjustment to the
right-of-use asset. However, if carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero, any
remaining amount of the remeasurement is recognised in profit or loss.

In the consolidated balance sheet, right-of-use assets are recognised in property, plant and
equipment, and lease liabilities are recognised in other financial liabilities.

Short-term leases and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value

The Group exercises the option not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term
leases and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. Within the Group, the lease
payments associated with those leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Lessor

In cases where Group companies act as lessor, at inception of the contract they classify each lease as
either a finance lease or an operating lease. In classifying a lease, an overall assessment is made of
whether the lease transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset. If this is the case, the lease is classified as a finance lease; if not, it is an operating
lease.

With respect to leasing out owned assets, the accounting policies applicable to Group companies as
lessors under IFRS 16 do not differ from the requirements of IAS 17 (see below). There is a material
change in the accounting treatment of subleases, which must be re-evaluated in accordance with the
new requirements of IFRS 16.B58: The lessor classifies the sublease by reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease, rather than by reference to the underlying asset. If the head lease
is a short-term lease that the Group company has accounted for in application of the recognition
exemption described above, the sublease is classified as an operating lease.

At contract inception or on amending a contract that contains a lease component, the consideration
in the contract is allocated on the basis of the relative stand-alone prices.

For a contract that contains lease and non-lease components, the Group companies apply IFRS 15 to
allocate the consideration in the contract.

If the asset is (sub)leased under a finance lease, the derecognition and impairment requirements in
IFRS 9 are applied to the net investment in the lease. Within the Group, the estimated unguaranteed
residual values used in computing the gross investment in the lease are regularly reviewed. At initial
recognition, measurement is based on the present value of future lease payments. Subsequent
measurement takes into account scheduled payments of interest and principal.
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Loss allowances on lease receivables are recognised using the simplified impairment approach in
accordance with IFRS 9. Under this approach, the lifetime expected credit losses are recognised
through profit or loss upon initial recognition. Objective indications of the existence of an
impairment include a borrower with significant financial difficulties, an increased probability that a
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, as well as a breach of contract, such
as default or delinquency in interest or principal payments. The existence of such objective evidence
leads to a specific valuation allowance on the receivables under the simplified stage-based approach.

Accounting policies applied before 1 January 2019

Lease agreements that transferred all substantial risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset were recognised as finance leases. Property, plant and equipment rented on the basis of
finance leases was recognised at fair value or at the lower present value of the minimum lease
payments as at the acquisition date. Such assets were depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
expected useful life or over the shorter lease term if the transfer of ownership at the end of the lease
term was not sufficiently certain. The present value of the payment obligations resulting from the
future lease payments was presented under financial liabilities.

According to IAS 17, the building and land portions of real estate had to be tested separately for
finance leases. Since the land has an indefinite useful life, this portion was only accounted for as a
finance lease in exceptional cases. Therefore, in most cases the land portion was accounted for as an
operating lease.

All other lease transactions in which the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset were
not substantially transferred were recognised as operating leases. Payments made or received in
connection with an operating lease were generally recognised in the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease.

Contingent Liabilities and Assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of future events not wholly within the control
of the entity. Contingent liabilities also include present obligations that arise from past events for
which no provision has been recognised because the outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is not probable or cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. If the chance of a possible
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not remote, a disclosure is made in the notes
to the financial statements. Contingent liabilities are recognised solely in connection with business
combinations.

Contingent assets are not recognised, but instead only explained in the notes.

Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedges

In addition to primary financial instruments, items including derivative financial instruments are also
presented under other financial assets and other financial liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements.

Page 88



Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value as at the date the contract is
concluded and measured at fair value in subsequent periods.

The effect of changes in the fair value on profit or loss or equity generally depends on whether the
derivative was designated as a hedging instrument in a hedging relationship using hedge accounting,
and if so, on the hedged item.

The consolidated companies designate certain derivatives either as:

. hedges of the fair value of a recognised asset, liability or a fixed company obligation (fair value
hedge) or
. hedges of the cash flows of a recognised asset, liability or a highly probable forecast

transaction (cash flow hedge).

When derivatives are designated, the hedging relationship between the hedging instrument and the
hedged item as well as the risk management strategy and objectives are documented.

This includes the specific assighnment of the hedging instruments to the corresponding assets or
liabilities or (firmly agreed/expected) future transactions and the assessment of the degree of
effectiveness of the hedging instruments used. The effectiveness of existing hedging relationships is
monitored on an ongoing basis. If the conditions for using hedge accounting are no longer met, the
hedging relationship is terminated immediately.

a) Cash Flow Hedge

The Group uses cash flow hedges to hedge against the risk of cash flow fluctuations on profit or loss
related to recognised assets, recognised liabilities or highly probable forecast transactions.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated to hedge the cash
flow and represent qualified hedging instruments is recognised in equity.

A distinction is drawn between changes in the value components of hedging instruments included in
the designation and those excluded from the hedging relationship. For currency derivatives, neither
the foreign currency basis spreads nor the forward components of the hedges were designated.

The effective changes in the value of the excluded fair value components are recognised in equity in
the costs of hedging reserve. The effective changes in the value of the designated components are
recognised in the reserve for designated risk components.

By contrast, any resulting ineffective portion of the designated and excluded components is
recognised directly in profit or loss for the period.

If the hedged item leads to the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the
effective changes in value of the hedging instrument previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are directly included in the original cost or carrying amount of the asset or liability. If a non-
financial asset or non-financial liability is not recognised, the amounts recognised in equity are
reclassified to the income statement and recognised as an income or expense in the period in which
the hedged item affects profit or loss.

If a hedging instrument expires or is sold or if the hedging relationship no longer meets the
accounting requirements under IFRS 9 relating to cash flow hedges, the cumulative gain or loss
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remains in equity. The gain or loss recognised in equity is not recognised in the income statement
until the underlying expected forecast transaction occurs. If the forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was recognised in equity must be recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Replacing or continuing a hedging instrument through another hedging instrument does not
constitute the expiration or termination of the hedging relationship, provided the documented
hedging strategy calls for such a replacement or continuation. The novation of a hedging instrument
to a central counterparty also does not constitute an end to the hedging relationship if the hedging
instrument is novated due to statutory requirements or on account of the novation the central
counterparty becomes the contracting partner of all parties of the respective derivative agreement.
Furthermore, there can be no changes (except for those necessitated by the novation) to the terms
of the agreement underlying the original derivative.

b) Derivatives that are not designated as hedging instruments

Certain derivative financial instruments, such as written options, do not meet the requirements for
hedge accounting in accordance with IFRS 9. Furthermore, there are derivative financial instruments,
such as forward exchange contracts and currency swaps, that are not or only partially designated as
hedges using hedge accounting. Any changes in the fair value of non-designated derivatives or
portions thereof are recognised directly in the income statement. The presentation of the
measurement gains and losses is based on the presentation of the gains or losses of the economically
underlying hedged transactions.

If currency derivatives are used to economically hedge foreign currency loans, the gains or losses
from the change in fair value of the stand-alone derivatives are reported in the financial result.
Measurement gains and losses from stand-alone derivatives concluded to economically hedge
purchases of goods in foreign currencies or to hedge foreign currency liabilities from hotel purchases
are reported under other operating expenses and income.

Determination of Fair Value

The fair value of a specific asset or liability is the sale price of a hypothetical transaction
(sale/transfer) conducted at arm's length between market participants on the primary or most
advantageous market as at the measurement date.

Fair value is calculated using market, cost and revenue-based measurement models. The three-level
measurement hierarchy is used for the underlying input factors: Level 1 inputs are unadjusted
quoted prices and market prices in the primary or most advantageous active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date. Level 2 inputs are market
data that can be observed, either directly or indirectly, over the full term of the asset or liability.
Level 3 inputs are unobservable parameters (not market-based) and shall only be used if observable
parameters are not available.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated based on the present value of the estimated future
cash flows. The fair value of currency forwards is determined using the forward exchange rates as at
the balance sheet date and discounted.
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For derivative financial instruments without an option component, including forward contracts and
interest rate swaps, future cash flows are determined using forward yield curves. The fair value of
these instruments is the sum of the discounted cash flows. The options on currency pairs are
measured on the basis of standard market option price models.

For trade receivables and payables, it is assumed that the nominal amount less allowances and any
necessary discounting corresponds to the fair value.

The influence of credit risk is always taken into account when determining fair value.

Recognised capital market valuation techniques are used to determine the fair value of investment
properties.

Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenue is recognised in accordance with the five-step model specified by IFRS 15:

. Identify the contract,

. Identify the individual performance obligations,

° Determine the transaction price,

. Allocate the transaction price,

. Recognise revenue when (or as) the performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue is generally not recognised until the control of the performance obligation has transferred
to the customer.

Revenue from the sale of goods to wholesalers, retailers and individual customers is recognised once
products have been delivered to a customer, the customer has accepted the goods, and the
collectability of the resulting receivable is deemed sufficiently certain. Bonuses, discounts and
rebates are deducted from the transaction price and therefore the net amount of the corresponding
revenue is reported. The variable components of the price, such as bonuses, are estimated using
historical and forecast revenue thresholds. Income from performance obligations satisfied over time,
such as the rendering of services, is recognised in accordance with the stage of completion in the
ratio of the service provided to the service to be provided in the financial year the service is
provided. The total amount of the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied or partially satisfied
performance obligations at the end of the reporting period was not disclosed since the performance
obligations are primarily part of contracts with an expected original term of at most one year.

The Travel and Tourism business segment offers both package travel and component travel
arrangements. Significant integration services are provided for both types of products in order to sell
the customer a trip. Due in particular to these integration services, the trip constitutes only a single
performance obligation. Revenue for travel extending beyond the balance sheet date is recognised
pro rata and accounted for accordingly in the pro rata expenses. The sales commissions of travel
agencies are recognised on a net basis.

In accordance with IFRS 15, customer loyalty programmes are considered to be the material right to
receive a premium right or a discount on a future purchase. To the extent customer loyalty
programmes are in place, revenue is reduced proportionately on the basis of relative individual sales
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prices. The right is deemed an individual performance obligation and this thus recognised as a
contract liability. This deferred revenue is recognised when awards are provided.

If goods are sold with a return obligation, revenue is recognised as a refund obligation at each
reporting date in accordance with IFRS 15 with the potential probability of return. In turn, a right to
return these goods is recorded. Both previously deferred items are realised once the right to return
expires. As a matter of principle, the Group does not grant any significant financing for the purchase
of goods or services. The average payment terms vary between the business segments. While
average payment terms of up to eight days are granted in the Retail business segment, advance
payments are required in the Travel and Tourism business segment for orders from one to four
weeks prior to departure, which are due immediately.

Dividend income is recognised when the legal claim arises.
Interest income and expenses are recognised periodically using the effective interest method.

In the case of transport services, it is reviewed whether this is a service provided as principal (gross
disclosure of revenue) or agent (net disclosure of revenue).

7. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSESSMENTS

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires that judgements be made and
estimates and assessments be used, which impact on the amount and presentation of recognised
assets, liabilities, income, expenses and contingent liabilities. Actual developments may differ from
those estimates.

Judgements when Applying Accounting Policies

Preparing the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires judgements. All judgements are
continually reassessed and are based on historical experience and expectations with regard to future
events that appear reasonable under the given circumstances.

This applies in particular to the following circumstances:

. When determining the scope of consolidation, it was decided that 1,267 REWE partnerships
(previous year: 1,214) would be included as associates using the equity method due to lack of
control. Control was negated despite certain opportunities to exert influence because RZF
cannot directly or indirectly determine these companies' relevant activities.

. When determining the scope of consolidation, it was decided that certain companies would be
included in the consolidated financial statements as subsidiaries, even absent the existence of
an equity investment, because the Group exercises control over these companies on account
of special contractual relationships.

. The Group holds equity investments in various real estate funds, which are in the German legal
form of a limited partnership (Kommanditgesellschaft), as limited partner. Due to lack of
control, it was decided that the interests in these funds would be reported as shares in
associates or as equity investments, depending on the extent to which influence could be
exerted.
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. As part of the new requirements for the accounting treatment of leases, judgements were
made in the context of IFRS 16. These are explained in more detail below.

Estimates and Assessments

Preparing the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires estimates. All estimates and
assessments are updated continually and are based on historical experiences and additional factors,
including expectations in terms of future events that appear reasonable under the given
circumstances. Naturally, estimates derived in this way will very rarely correspond to the actual
circumstances to come. Changes are recognised in profit or loss when better knowledge is available.

Areas where assumptions and estimates are of decisive significance for the consolidated financial
statements are listed below:

. Estimates of the economic useful lives of assets must be made when determining
depreciation/amortisation.

. Assets and liabilities must be identified in connection with purchase price allocations for
business combinations and measured at fair value, which requires that assumptions be made.

. Goodwill acquired in connection with business combinations is allocated to cash-generating
units. An estimate of whether the goodwill is recoverable must be made at least annually. The
recoverable amount is calculated to determine this, which requires assumptions to be made.

. The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is checked at each balance sheet date to
determine whether it is still recoverable, i.e. whether future tax relief can be realised. This
requires making assumptions. The amount of obligations for risks from expected tax audits and
for litigation risks is also based on estimates by management.

. The annual financial statements of the associated REWE partner companies were not yet
available in final form when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. An estimate
of the annual results of the REWE partner companies was made based on the preliminary
annual financial statements, whereby any necessary additional adjustments pursuant to IFRS
provisions will be made.

. The measurement of the fair values of investment properties requires estimates with respect
to the allocation between portions for buildings and land. The land value is separated from the
building portion for accounting treatment. The allocation ratio for the land and the building
portion therefore affects the present value of future earnings from the building.

. In the case of award credits under customer loyalty programmes, the probability of
redemption is estimated on the basis of historical experience.

. Revenue is recognised on the basis of its operating purpose. When estimating variable
consideration, the influencing factors are recorded as precisely as possible so that any future
correction of recognised revenue figures can be avoided to the greatest extent. Non-monetary
consideration is measured at fair value if it can be reasonably estimated. If this is not the case,
the individual sales price of the good or service is used that was promised in exchange for the
non-monetary consideration. If percentage rebates are granted depending on the volume
purchased during the year, these are taken into account when recognising revenue during the
year, provided that they can be reliably determined.

. Estimates and external ratings are used to calculate the expected credit losses of financial
instruments.
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The rules for lease accounting are not applied to intangible assets. As part of the accounting
treatment of leases, a material capacity portion of an identified asset is recognised if it
represents at least 90.0 per cent of the total capacity of the asset. Options to renew are
generally only taken into account if, on the basis of the plans approved by management, it is
sufficiently certain that the corresponding leased asset will continue to be operated over this
period; otherwise, the shortest possible lease term is assumed. The right-of-use assets
recognised as at 1 January 2019 were initially recognised in their full amounts before then
being adjusted by the amount of existing provisions for onerous contracts.
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Income Statement Disclosures

8. REVENUE

Revenue increased year-on-year by a total of 3.7 per cent.

Classification of Revenue by Business Segments

2019

Retail Germany 32,317.2 31,471.0
Retail International 15,298.7 14,245.8
Travel and Tourism 4,958.3 4,880.5
DIY Stores 2,214.8 2,151.1
Other 585.3 645.0

Virtually all business segments recorded increases in revenue.

Retail Germany recorded a 2.7 per cent increase in revenue. The revenue growth was driven in
particular by the performance of the REWE stores (including REWE to go) and the wholesale
business, which primarily comprises supplying the REWE partner stores. It reflects first and foremost
the organic growth of the REWE partner stores. In addition, the purchasing companies of the Other
business segment have been allocated to the Retail Germany business segment since this financial
year.

Adjusted for currency effects, the Retail International business segment posted revenue growth in all
countries, which amounted to 7.5 per cent overall (7.4 per cent including currency translation
effects). The increase in revenue was primarily generated by the Full-Range stores in Central and
Eastern Europe and is mainly attributable to the positive performance at the existing stores in the
Czech Republic and Slovakia as well as expansion activities in Russia. Furthermore, UAB Palink,
Vilnius, Lithuania, which marked its first full year as a subsidiary in 2019, contributed significantly to
the increase in revenue. The Austrian Full-Range Stores segment reported a continued positive
revenue trend, which was attributable mainly to food retail. Penny International's revenue also made
a contribution to this positive development: this was caused by the revenue trend in the Czech
Republic, Hungary and Romania in particular.

The Travel and Tourism business segment closed the year with a revenue increase of 1.6 per cent,
which is due primarily to the continued positive development in Central and Eastern Europe. The
target destination agencies also recorded significant revenue increases. By contrast, revenue declines
were recorded in Northern Europe due to the negative performance in Scandinavia. This was
countered by revenue growth in the source markets of France and the United Kingdom. Overall, the
increase in demand for long-haul travel in particular had a positive effect on revenue development.

In the DIY Stores business segment, revenue increased by 3.0 per cent. The increase in revenue at DIY
stores was attributable mainly to the positive performance by the retail stores.
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The revenue decline in the Other business segment resulted in particular from the reclassification of
the purchasing companies to the Retail Germany business segment in the financial year. This was
partly offset by revenue growth at EHA-Energie-Handels-Gesellschaft mbH & Co. KG, Hamburg, and
Timing of Revenue Recognition

RZF.
: Retail Travel and
Retail Germany . : DIY Stores Total
International Tourism

At a pointin time 31,317.3 12,871.0 313.2 2,214.8 42.1 46,758.4
Over time 999.9 2,427.7 4,645.1 543.2 8,615.9
: Retail Travel and
Retail Germany . : DIY Stores Total
International Tourism
At a pointin time 31,253.7 14,245.8 363.1 2,140.3 357.8 48,360.7
Over time 217.3 4,517.4 10.8 287.2 5,032.7

As at the reporting date, the Group did not have any contract assets but did have the following
contract liabilities:

Contract Liabilities

31 Dec. 2019 31 Dec. 2018
Total Total

Prepayments received on account of orders 593.7 559.6
Liabilities from customer loyalty programmes 128.2 106.8
Liabilities from vouchers 117.4 95.2
Deferred liabilities 74.6 50.2

Of the contract liabilities as at 1 January 2019, 629.8 million euros was recognised as revenue in the
financial year (previous year: 591.6 million euros). The year-on-year increase in contract liabilities
primarily resulted from higher business volumes.

Within the other provisions, provisions were recognised for statutory warranties that do not
constitute a standalone contractual liability within the meaning of IFRS 15 (see note 33 "Other
Provisions").
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9. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Breakdown of Other Operating Income

2019

Income from advertising services 1,131.1 926.7
Rental income 914.6 869.1
Income from additional services for goods traffic 851.7 855.5
Income from other services 505.2 552.7
Income from the disposal of non-current assets 226.1 20.1
Income from reversals of impairment losses on non-current assets 136.0 27.7
Income from the reversal of provisions 123.1 351.5
Income from the reversal of provisions with the nature of a liability 67.1 51.7
Income from bad debts previously written off 27.9 25.4
Income from exchange rate changes 16.4 17.8
Income from the collection of liabilities 14.3 18.8
Income from damage claims 1.5 0.5
Miscellaneous other operating income 393.6 229.8

The 461.3-million-euro increase in other operating income was due primarily to a rise in income from
advertising services, the disposal of non-current assets and income from the reversal of impairment
losses on non-current assets. By contrast, income from the reversal of provisions and from other
services decreased.

The income from advertising services mainly increased in the Retail Germany business segment. This
was due to a rise in services provided for advertising activities in radio and television, print media,
outdoor advertising and for the increased use of advertising materials.

The income from the disposal of non-current assets in the financial year mainly included income of
176.3 million euros from the sale of shares in commercetools GmbH, Munich, in the Other business
segment, and 29.3 million euros from the sale of shares in DER Business Travel GmbH, Cologne, in
the Travel and Tourism business segment (see note 3 "Consolidation"). This item also included the
gain on the disposal of shares in Karstadt Feinkost Verwaltungs GmbH, Cologne, and shares in
Karstadt Feinkost GmbH & Co. KG, Cologne, in the Retail Germany business segment.

The increase in income from reversals of impairment losses on non-current assets mainly resulted
from reversals of impairment losses on right-of-use assets in the amount of 123.0 million euros.
Impairment is reversed if the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying amount of the cash-
generating unit. This is caused by upward revisions in the earnings expectations for the cash-
generating unit or by improved subletting opportunities.

The decrease in income from the reversal of provisions was due in particular to the Retail Germany
business segment. This primarily resulted from the income recognised in the prior year for the
reversal of provisions for onerous contracts as part of the initial application of IFRS 16 (see note 2
"Application and Effects of New or Revised Accounting Standards").

The decline in income from other services is attributable among other things to the first-time
elimination of income with the subsidiaries of RZAG (see note 3 "Consolidation") from 1 May 2019.
Until that date, the income connected with these companies had been accounted for as income with
external entities.
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The increase in rental income is due primarily to the increase in rental income from REWE partner
stores in the Retail Germany business segment. Positive effects here stemmed from the increase in
the number of partner stores and the higher sales-based rents due to increased revenue.

The miscellaneous other operating income in the Other business segment includes 166.1 million
euros from the remeasurement of shares in REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG und REWE-Zentral AG GbR,
Cologne, to fair value as part of the acquisition achieved in stages (see note 3 "Consolidation"). In the
same business segment, the item furthermore includes the negative goodwill from the initial
consolidation of REWE-Unterstiitzungsverein fir Kaufleute eV, Cologne, REWE Lebensmittel-
GroRhandel eG, Cologne, REWE-GROSSHANDEL Oberbayerische Lebensmittel
Einkaufsgenossenschaft eG, Eching, and REWE Beteiligungsgenossenschaft eG Nord, Cologne. The
negative goodwill totalled 49.7 million euros. This was partly offset among other things by the
decline in income from recharging storage and logistics costs in the DIY Stores business segment due
in part to the initial consolidation of the RZAG subsidiaries from 1 May 2019.

10. COST OF MATERIALS

Breakdown of Cost of Materials

Cost of raw materials, consumables and supplies, and of purchased goods 37,690.1 36,281.5

Cost of purchased services 4,381.7 4,265.5

Including changes in inventories, the cost of materials rose by 3.7 per cent, proportional to revenue.
The gross margin thus remained unchanged year on year at 24.1 per cent.

11.PERSONNEL EXPENSES

Breakdown of Personnel Expenses

Wages and salaries 6,050.4 5,702.7

Social security, pension plans and other employee benefit costs 1,357.3 1,277.6

The rise in personnel expenses is attributable among other things to the inclusion of RZAG and its
subsidiaries from 1 May 2019, the fact that UAB Palink, Vilnius, Lithuania, had been consolidated for
a full year, and the 2019 pay scale increase.

The interest cost on provisions for employee benefits (see note 32 "Employee Benefits") is not
reported under expenses for pension plans, but under interest result as the net interest expense
from defined benefit plans.

Expenses of 575.6 million euros (previous year: 520.5 million euros) were incurred for defined
contribution plans in the financial year. The employer's contribution to statutory pension insurance
totalled 557.4 million euros (previous year: 503.5 million euros).
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Average Number of Employees

Full-time employees 117,194
Part-time employees and marginal part-time workers 117,994
Trainees 6,503

107,765
117,455
6,345

The increased headcount is mainly attributable to the inclusion of UAB Palink for the full year and the

inclusion of RZAG and its subsidiaries from 1 May 2019.

12. DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENTS

Breakdown of Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairments

Depreciation and amortisation 2,852.8

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — leases 1,520.9
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,198.7
Amortisation of intangible assets 132.6

Depreciation of investment properties

s — =
Impairments of property, plant and equipment — leases 289.0
Impairments of property, plant and equipment 93.1
Impairments of intangible assets 61.6
Goodwill impairments 0.0

Impairments of investment properties

m

1,111.1

109.9

0.8
m
0.0

383

10.0

10.4

1,283.2

The depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment — leases result from the initial

application of IFRS 16 (see note 2 "Application and Effects of New or Revised Accounting Standards")

and concern the recognised right-of-use assets.

The impairments of property, plant and equipment were primarily recognised on leasehold

improvements (67.0 million euros) and real estate (18.9 million euros).

Of the impairments of intangible assets, 50.6 million euros were attributable to internally generated

software in the Travel and Tourism business segment. In the course of 2019, a review revealed that

this software was no longer being used to the extent originally planned. The estimate of the

recoverable amount is based on the value in use of the software.
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13. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Breakdown of Other Operating Expenses

2019

Advertising expenses 1,058.2 1,017.8
Other occupancy costs 968.2 924.9
Expenses from supplementary payments for goods traffic 851.7 855.5
Expenses for maintenance and consumables 806.2 793.7
Vehicle fleet, freight 765.8 744.1
Expenses for third-party services 594.0 684.2
General and administrative expenses 286.8 279.8
Voluntary social benefits 119.5 109.9
Expenses for rents and leases 74.0 1,886.0
CRS communication, IT (Travel and Tourism) 52.7 53.8
Travel expenses 47.5 45.7
Other taxes 44.1 39.7
Contributions, fees and duties 43.5 57.1
Losses on the disposal of non-current assets 39.5 40.3
Insurance 344 26.8
Other personnel expenses 29.2 28.7
Expenses from exchange rate changes 15.9 17.4
Losses on writedowns on receivables 3.6 2.7
Addition to provision for contingent losses from onerous contracts 0.0 45.2
Miscellaneous other operating expenses 307.7 358.7

The decrease in other operating expenses by 1,869.5 million euros was due mainly to a decline in
rental and leasing expenses. There were also reductions in the expenses for purchased services and
the addition to the provision for onerous contracts. By contrast, the other occupancy costs and
advertising expenses increased.

The year-on-year decline in rental and lease expenses and the lower addition to the provision for
onerous contracts mainly resulted from the initial application of IFRS 16, in accordance with which
obligations under leases are generally recognised as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the
balance sheet (see note 2 "Application and Effects of New or Revised Accounting Standards"). From
the financial year onwards, the only items reported under rental and lease expenses will be expenses
for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, and expenses for variable lease payments that
are not included in the measurement of the lease liability.

The expenses for third-party services decreased due to the initial consolidation of RZAG and its
subsidiaries from 1 May 2019 (see note 3 "Consolidation").

The increase in other occupancy costs relates primarily to the Retail International and Other business
segments. The higher figure in the Retail International business segment resulted among other things
from the fact that UAB Palink, Vilnius, Lithuania, had been consolidated for its first full year.

The increase in advertising expenses related primarily to the Other business segment due to the
inclusion of RZAG and its subsidiaries as at 1 May 2019. By contrast, expenses in the Retail Germany
business segment decreased due to the initial consolidation of the RZAG companies. Advertising
income in the two business segments recorded corresponding development.
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14.RESULTS FROM COMPANIES ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY
METHOD

Of the results from companies accounted for using the equity method in the financial year, an
amount of 7.9 million euros was attributable to companies classified as joint ventures (previous year:
15.8 million euros). Of the decrease, 6.1 million euros was attributable to the acquisition achieved in
stages of REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG und REWE-Zentral AG GbR, Cologne, as at 1 May 2019 (see note
3 "Consolidation").

The other companies classified as associates as at 31 December 2019 contributed 33.3 million euros
(previous year: 43.5 million euros) to the results from companies accounted for using the equity
method. In the previous year, the earnings of UAB Palink, Vilnius, Lithuania, were included in the
proportional amount of 13.6 million euros. The company was included as a subsidiary from 1 August
2018 as the result of an acquisition achieved in stages.

15.RESULTS FROM THE MEASUREMENT OF DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Derivative financial instruments are used to hedge interest rate, foreign exchange, and commodities
price risks. These derivative financial instruments are explained in note 39 "Financial Risk
Management".

The measurement of the derivative financial instruments resulted in a total expense of 8.2 million
euros in the financial year (previous year: 7.0 million euros). This was due primarily to the fact that
stand-alone derivatives are marked to market.

Of the result from the measurement of derivative financial instruments, -8.2 million euros is due to
the fair value measurement of stand-alone currency derivatives entered into by

REWE International Finance B.V., Venlo, Netherlands (hereinafter referred to as "RIF" for short).
These are used to hedge foreign currency loans. Offsetting currency translation gains or losses from
these loans are reported under the other financial result.

In the previous year, this also included gains of 0.7 million euros from the measurement of stand-
alone interest rate swaps in Hungary. The swaps matured as at 31 October 2018.

Measurement gains and losses from stand-alone derivatives concluded to hedge foreign currency
liabilities from hotel purchases and purchases of goods in foreign currencies are reported under
other operating expenses and income.
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16. INTEREST RESULT

Breakdown of Interest Result

2019
Interest and similar income ﬂ

Interest income from taxes 38.3 14.7

Interest income from financing activities 5.0 4.1

»
)

Other interest income

6.2
Interest and similar expenses m -75.8

Interest expense on lease liabilities -542.6 -21.1
Interest expense from financing activities -29.4 -34.4
Interest expense from additions to defined-benefit pension provisions -12.3 -10.5
Interest expense from discounting assets and compounding liabilities -5.5 -6.2
Interest expense from taxes -3.7 -1.7
Interest expense from derivative financial instruments -1.4 -1.3
Other interest expense -0.5 -0.6

N T

The net interest result fell year on year by 490.5 million euros.

Interest income from taxes increased by 23.6 million euros. It primarily includes interest on trade tax
reimbursement claims in the Travel and Tourism business segment.

The interest expense on lease liabilities mainly concerns the Retail Germany, Retail International and
DIY Stores business segments. The increase resulted in particular from the initial application of IFRS
16 (see note 2 "Application and Effects of New or Revised Accounting Standards").

The net interest expense from defined benefit pension plans primarily resulted from the
compounding of obligations for pensions and similar post-employment obligations. For the changes
in the measurement parameters and of the net interest expense from defined benefit pension plans,
see note 32 "Employee Benefits".

17.OTHER FINANCIAL RESULT

Breakdown of Other Financial Result

Income from equity investments 7.3 11.3
Income from loans 0.6 0.7
Other income and expenses -35.3 -13.4

N B S

Income from equity investments resulted mainly from distributions from real estate funds and other
dividends. A dividend of 7.1 million euros from RZAG was included in the previous year. In addition,
income from shares in associates which are not accounted for in accordance with the equity method
for reasons of materiality are included in this figure, as are reversals of impairment losses on equity

investments.

The increase of other expenses compared to the previous year is essentially attributable to the write-
down of a loan (25.2 million euros).
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18.TAXES ON INCOME

Breakdown of Total Taxes on Income

Current tax income/expense -61.6 -125.5
of which: taxes on income for the financial year -176.7 -147.7
of which: taxes on income for previous years 115.1 22.2
Deferred taxes 196.4 -12.2

The current tax income for previous years mainly resulted from a trade tax reimbursement due to
the ruling of the Bundesfinanzhof (Federal Finance Court) dated 25 July 2019, case ref. Ill R 22/16,
concerning trade tax add-backs on advance travel services in the Travel and Tourism business
segment. These had previously been factored in as an increase when calculating income for trade tax
purposes. The deferred tax income resulted primarily from the initial application of IFRS 16.

Source of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities on Temporary Differences Due to Different Carrying Amounts of
Balance Sheet Items

31 Dec. 2019 31 Dec. 2018

Deferred
tax liabilities

Deferred

Deferred
tax assets

Deferred

VRS tax liabilities

ASSETS
Intangible assets 195.4 300.7 172.9 2943
Property, plant and equipment 189.3 229.8 105.8 220.6
Non-current financial assets 389 43.2 43.0 20.7
Inventories 54.7 8.9 70.4 7.7
Receivables and other assets 424 17.4 49.0 21.9
Loss carryforwards 56.4 0.0 41.8 0.0
Interest carryforwards 0.4 0.0 0.1 0.0
Other off-balance sheet transactions 3.7 0.0 11 0.0
LIABILITIES
Pension provisions 203.5 15.5 156.6 17.6
Other provisions 82.9 15.6 276.6 31.2
Liabilities 3123 44.7 106.1 54.0
of which: non-current 998.5 593.5 770.5 574.7
of which: current 181.4 82.3 252.9 93.3
Offsetting -561.6 -561.6 -621.6 -621.6

Amount recognised in the balance sheet 618.3 114.2 401.8 46.4

The year-on-year increase in deferred tax assets is mainly attributable to the REWE division in the
Retail Germany business segment due to the initial application of IFRS 16 and the further
development of the respective balance sheet items in financial year 2019. The initial application of
IFRS 16 caused a shift in the deferred taxes recognised in respect of provisions for expected losses
and right-of-use assets due to the recognition of impairment losses. The rise in deferred tax liabilities
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primarily relates to intangible assets and is due to disclosing hidden reserves in respect of trademarks
as a result of the contribution and initial consolidation of RZAG as at 1 May 2019.

To the extent that the realisation of the deferred tax asset depends on future taxable profits
exceeding the earnings impact from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, deferred
tax assets were recognised only if there were sufficient substantial indications for their realisation in
future periods. Companies with tax losses in the current or prior period recognised deferred tax
assets of 57.9 million euros (previous year: 305.2 million euros) for deductible temporary differences
in future periods, which are higher than the earnings impact from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences. The recognition of deferred tax assets is subject to sufficient indications that
they will be realised in future periods as a result of future structural measures and existing tax
budgets. No deferred tax assets were recognised for deductible temporary differences of 227.3
million euros (previous year: 404.8 million euros).

Composition of Carryforwards for Which No Deferred Taxes Were Recognised

Corporate tax - loss carryforwards

Corporate tax - loss carryforwards as at 31 Dec. 912.8

Corporate tax - unrecognised loss carryforwards as at 31 Dec. 742.3
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Corporate tax - unrecognised loss carryforwards - expiration after 5 years or no expiration 742.3
Trade tax - loss carryforwards
Trade tax - loss carryforwards as at 31 Dec.

Trade tax - unrecognised loss carryforwards as at 31 Dec.

Trade tax - unrecognised loss carryforwards - no expiration
Losses pursuant to § 15a German Income Tax Act (EStG)
Losses pursuant to § 15a EStG as at 31 Dec.
Losses pursuant to § 15a EStG - unrecognised loss carryforwards as at 31 Dec.
Losses pursuant to § 15a EStG - unrecognised loss carryforwards - no expiration
Corporate tax - interest carryforwards

Corporate tax - interest carryforwards as at 31 Dec.

Trade tax - interest carryforwards

[y

Trade tax - interest carryforwards as at 31 Dec.
Off-balance sheet tax benefit

Off-balance sheet tax benefit as at 31 Dec. 12.4

The corporate tax loss carryforwards increased by 4.1 million euros to 912.8 million euros in financial
year 2019. The rise in these loss carryforwards was attributable to the Retail International business
segment (61.3 million euros), the Travel and Tourism business segment (13.6 million euros) and to
the Retail Germany business segment (6.5 million euros). This was partly offset by corporate tax loss
carryforwards in the Other business segment, where utilisation and derecognition totalled -77.3
million euros.

The unrecognised trade tax carryforwards decreased by 128.0 million euros to 309.6 million euros as
a result of their utilisation and in part due to them expiring.

Furthermore, the current income tax expense in financial year 2019 was reduced due to the
utilisation of 204.8 million (previous year: 24.9 million euros) in loss carryforwards that had not
previously been recognised.
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Change in Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

Deferred taxes

Year-on-year change

Change in deferred taxes on items recognised directly in equity (IAS 39, IAS 19, IFRS 9)

Change in deferred taxes from acquisitions/divestments recognised directly in equity
Deferred taxes recognised directly in equity due to a change in presentation

Change in deferred taxes from exchange rate changes recognised directly in equity
Change in deferred taxes due to temporary differences recognised through profit and loss

Change in deferred taxes due to loss and interest carryforwards recognised through profit and loss

The change in deferred taxes relating to cash flow hedges and other financial instruments which are
recognised directly in equity (IFRS 9) amounted to 2.8 million euros and the change in pension and
similar obligations recognised directly in equity (IAS 19) amounted to 37.5 million euros. As with the
change in deferred taxes from acquisitions recognised directly in equity, this change was likewise due
to the contribution and initial consolidation of RZAG in the RZF Group.

The deferred taxes recognised directly in equity due to a change in presentation relate to the effects
of measurement adjustments recognised in retained earnings as a result of the initial application of
IFRS 16, for example the real estate portion of legacy finance leases (lessee) and loss allowances on
lease receivables (lessor).

The change in deferred taxes due to loss and interest carryforwards recognised through profit and

loss is based primarily on the recognition of deferred tax assets in respect of tax loss carryforwards
from prior periods as a result of the ruling of the Bundesfinanzhof (Federal Finance Court) dated 25
July 2019, case ref. Ill R 22/16, concerning trade tax add-backs on advance travel services.

Reconciliation of the Expected Income Tax to the Actual Income Tax Expense

Earnings before taxes, continuing operations 372.1 m
30%

Profit before taxes on income: profit (+)/loss (-) 3721

Group tax rate 30%

Effects of different tax rates on the Group tax rate -16.7 0.7
Effects from tax rate changes 7.7 3.2
Effects from taxes from previous years recognised in the financial year 152.3 42.2
Effects of non-allowable income taxes (withholding and foreign taxes) -0.8 -0.5
Effects from non-deductible operating expenses -59.6 -14.6
Effects of tax-free income 10.5 4.2
Effects from trade tax add-backs/reductions 9.4 -37.3
Effects of permanent effects 150.8 63.2
Effects from transfers of assessment bases from/to non-consolidated companies -6.2 15.7
Effects from recognition adjustments and write-downs of deferred tax assets -7.5 -48.9

Effects from equity consolidation 253

[y
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Total tax income (+)/tax expense (-) as per reconciliation

of which: from continuing operations 134.8 -137.7

The Group tax rate for 2019 remains unchanged at 30.0 per cent, consisting of the corporate tax with
a tax rate of 15.0 per cent and the solidarity surcharge, which is levied at 5.5 per cent on the
corporate tax, in addition to the trade tax.
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The effective tax rate amounted to -36.2 per cent in financial year 2019 (previous year: 24.9 per
cent). This tax income mainly resulted from tax reimbursements of 134.2 million euros due to the
above-mentioned court ruling concerning trade tax add-backs on advance travel services, and from
permanent measurement differences. There was a year-on-year decrease in trade tax add-backs and
reductions mainly because of the disappearance of trade tax add-backs in the Travel and Tourism
business segment and the use of trade tax loss carryforwards in an accretion procedure. The increase
in effects from non-deductible operating expenses is for the most part based on non-tax deductible
losses on disposal and write-downs of receivables.

As at 31 December 2019, no deferred tax liabilities on undistributed profits of subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associates were recognised because a distribution of these profits in the foreseeable
future is not intended or discernible. Instead, these profits are continually reinvested.

The temporary differences in connection with investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates, for which no deferred tax liabilities were recognised, were 792.9 million euros (previous
year: 702.3 million euros) as at the balance sheet date.

19. CONSOLIDATED PROFIT OR LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

The consolidated loss attributable to non-controlling interests was 21.5 million euros (previous year:

profit of 64.9 million euros). Due to the transfers of shares as at 1 May 2019 (see note 3

"Consolidation"), only the pro rata earnings generated up to that date were taken into consideration

for non-controlling interests.
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Balance Sheet Disclosures

20.INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Change in Intangible Assets

Concessions,
favourable

contracts,
industrial
property rights
and similar
rights as well as
licenses to such

Prepayments
Customer and assets

relationships under

development

rights
Cost
Currency Translation -2.3
Additions to/disposals from scope of consolidation 23.4
Additions from acquisitions 22,5
Additions 102.2
Disposals -17.8
Reclassifications 319 0.0 0.0 -28.4
ol
Adjustments due to IFRS 16 -43.1 0.0 0.0 0.0
ol
Currency Translation 6.4 0.0 14.2 -0.1
Additions to/disposals from scope of consolidation -7.9 0.0 -8.3 0.0
Additions from acquisitions 391.8 0.0 81.1 0.6
Additions 107.0 0.0 2.5 18.6
Disposals -36.9 0.0 -6.2 -2.5

Reclassifications 18.9

0.0 -18.0
As at 31 Dec. 2019 1,619.7 315.8 2,326.4

Amortisation and impairments

[ e
T T
Currency Translation -1.2 0.0 0.0 0.0
Additions 91.0 18.9 0.0 0.0
Impairments 10.0 0.0 10.4 0.0
Disposals -15.6 0.0 0.0 0.0
Reversals of impairment losses -0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0
T Y ) T
Adjustments due to IFRS 16 -24.4 0.0 0.0 0.0
ot siemes ] BT
Currency Translation 3.1 0.0 0.0
Additions to/disposals from scope of consolidation -2.3 0.0 0.0
Additions
Impairments
Disposals

Reversals of impairment losses
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Favourable contracts are recognised as intangible assets if contracts were taken over in connection
with a business combination whose terms and conditions were more favourable than the market
conditions at the date of the business combination. As part of the transition to IFRS 16, contracts
relating to leases were allocated to the respective right-of-use assets as at 1 January 2019.

The additions from acquisitions primarily related to trademarks (see note 3 "Consolidation").

The increase in goodwill is due to the initial consolidation of entities in the financial year (see note 3
"Consolidation").

Internally generated intangible assets in use amounting to 67.6 million euros are presented in the
financial year (previous year: 77.8 million euros). In addition, there are internally generated
intangible assets still in development. The internally generated intangible assets primarily concern
software products. Additional research and development expenses of 61.8 million euros (previous
year: 64.4 million euros) were incurred in the financial year. These expenses were not capitalised as
internally generated intangible assets because the recognition requirements were not satisfied.

The cumulative cost and/or cumulative depreciation was reclassified if it was attributable to assets
that were recognised under other items of non-current assets and that must now be presented in
other items.

With regard to the impairment losses during the financial year, please see the remarks under note 12
"Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairments".

Intangible assets amounting to 0.3 million euros (previous year: 0.1 million euros) were pledged as
collateral for liabilities. In addition, purchase commitments in the amount of 0.1 million euros
(previous year: 0.1 million euros) were entered into for intangible assets.
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Goodwill

Breakdown of Goodwill by CGU Groups

Group of cash-generating units
n - 31 Dec. 2019 31 Dec. 2018
in million €

REWE 924.7 858.4
Travel and Tourism Central Europe 352.5 348.9
PENNY Czech Republic 199.2 196.8
Travel and Tourism Northern Europe 89.3 87.4
IKI Baltic states 78.2 78.2
BILLA Czech Republic 55.1 54.4
BILLA Russia 54.2 47.2
Travel and Tourism Eastern Europe 10.3 0.0
EHA 7.1 7.1
Other Central Companies 1.6 1.6
DIY Stores 11 11
PENNY Italy 1.0 0.0

Digital 0.

0 7.0
Total goodwill 1,774.3 1,688.1

The 66.3-million-euro increase in goodwill of the REWE group of CGUs is due primarily to the
inclusion of RZAG from 1 May 2019 (see note 3 "Consolidation") and the disposal of various
Regiemarkt stores.

The 3.5-million-euro increase in goodwill of the Travel and Tourism Central Europe group of CGUs
was due primarily to advantageous exchange rate developments in the KUONI Switzerland business
unit and the addition of various travel agencies.

The unfavourable exchange rate development from the previous year for the PENNY Czech Republic
group of CGUs reversed during the financial year, resulting in an increase in goodwill amounting to
2.4 million euros.

The 2.0-million-euro increase in goodwill of the Travel and Tourism Northern Europe group of CGUs
was due primarily to advantageous exchange rate developments in the UK source market. Exchange
rates moved in the opposite direction in the Nordics source market.

The unfavourable exchange rate development from the previous year for the BILLA Czech Republic
group of CGUs reversed during the financial year, resulting in an increase in goodwill amounting to
0.7 million euros. The negative exchange rate development from the previous year for the BILLA
Russia group of CGUs also reversed during the financial year, resulting in an increase in goodwill
amounting to 7.0 million euros.

In the new Travel and Tourism Eastern Europe group of CGUs, the acquisition of all shares of Travel
Brands S.A., Bucharest, Romania, gave rise to goodwill of 10.3 million euros. The goodwill primarily
reflects location advantages and synergies (see also note 3 "Consolidation").

At the PENNY Italy group of CGUs, the acquisition of three stores in December 2019 gave rise to
goodwill of 1.0 million euros.

The 7.0-million-euro reduction in goodwill of the Digital group of CGUs was due to the disposal of
60.0 per cent of the shares of commercetools GmbH, Munich. Due to the loss of control, this
subsidiary was deconsolidated with effect as at 30 November 2019 (see also note 3 "Consolidation").
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Measurement Model and Material Measurement Parameters

The recoverable amount of the CGU groups is determined based on the fair value less costs to sell
using the discounted cash flow method in application of level 3 inputs.

The key measurement parameters used to calculate the fair value of CGUs are the capital charges
(WACC) used to calculate the discount rate, the growth discount in the discount rate used for
calculating the perpetual annuity and the change in EBIT (excluding the effects of IFRS 16) in the
planning period as the basis for forecasting the cash flows of the CGUs.

The measurement of the fair value of the CGU groups is based on the forecasted cash flows, which
are derived on the basis of the three-year plan approved by the management. This three-year plan
was prepared on the basis of internal Company experience and expectations regarding future market
development and is used for internal purposes. Country-specific parameters, such as economic
growth, consumer prices, private consumption and the unemployment rate, are considered in the
three-year plan. The last planning year in the three-year plan is generally used as a basis for the
perpetual annuity in the measurement model.

A growth discount is factored into the discount rate for the perpetual annuity in the measurement
model. Growth rates forecast by international organisations for gross domestic product up to 2024
were used when determining the country-specific growth discounts. The discount rates used reflect
the special risks of the corresponding CGU groups. Capital charges (WACC) are determined based on
fair values. The specific beta coefficients were derived from capital market data for several
comparable companies.

The planning and determination of capital charges (WACC) was prepared without taking into
consideration the current economic uncertainties caused by the coronavirus crisis. Potential changes
in the weighted cost of capital (WACC), country-specific growth discounts or in the EBIT for the last
planning year were simulated by means of sensitivity analysis (see the section entitled "Sensitivity of
Material Measurement Parameters" below).

Comparison of Discount Rates and Growth Discounts

Discount rate per year

Growth discount

Group of cash-generating units

(WACC)
2019 2018 2019 2018

REWE 4.8% 4.8% 0.5% 0.5%
Travel and Tourism Central Europe 5.8% 5.6% 0.5% 0.4%
PENNY Czech Republic 6.5% 6.3% 1.3% 1.3%
Travel and Tourism Northern Europe 6.3% 6.1% 0.8% 0.8%
IKI Baltic states 5.5% - 1.0%

BILLA Czech Republic 6.5% 6.3% 1.3% 1.3%
BILLA Russia 9.5% 11.3% 2.5% 2.5%
EHA 4.8% 4.8% 0.5% 0.5%
DIY Stores 4.8% 4.8% 0.5% 0.5%
Digital - 4.8% - 0.5%
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Impairment tests were conducted in euros for the Travel and Tourism Central Europe and Travel and
Tourism Northern Europe groups of CGUs and average discount and growth rates were used; the
average of the country-specific parameters was calculated based on revenue ratios.

As at 31 December 2019, no impairment tests had been carried out on the PENNY Italy or Travel and
Tourism Eastern Europe groups of CGUs. Based on the proximity to the reporting date, it is assumed
that the carrying amount of goodwill added during the financial year will essentially correspond to
fair value. The Other Central Companies group of CGUs was likewise not tested for impairment as at
31 December 2019 due to the absence of cash flows that could reliably be forecast.

The three-year plans for internal management purposes are used for the forecast of future cash
flows of the CGU groups. The detailed planning period was expanded for some CGU groups. This is
done if the most recent budget year does not reflect long term results as a basis for the perpetual
annuity. This is primarily due to restructuring and expansion plans in the CGU groups.

The following assumptions were made in the detailed planning period with respect to the future
development of EBIT and revenue for the individual CGU groups:

Trend Indications for the Development of EBIT and Revenue

Forecast development

Detailed planning period
EBIT/Revenue & El

Group of cash-generating units

Revenue

REWE solid growth slight growth 10 years 3 and 10 years
Travel and Tourism Central Europe strong growth stable 3 years 3years
PENNY Czech Republic stable slight growth 3 years 3 years
Travel and Tourism Northern Europe strong growth slight growth 3 years 3years

IKI Baltic states solid growth solid growth 3 years

BILLA Czech Republic solid growth slight growth 3 years 3years
BILLA Russia strong growth slight growth 9 years 3years
EHA solid growth slight growth 3 years 3 years
DIY Stores solid growth slight growth 10 years 10 years

Sensitivity of Material Measurement Parameters

As part of sensitivity analyses, the potential effects from changes in the weighted cost of capital
(WACC), country-specific growth discounts or in the EBIT for the last planning year are analysed, as
are combinations of these significant measurement parameters to future cash flows.

At the following CGU groups, the sensitivity analyses showed the potential impairments of goodwill
in the event of changes in parameters presented in the table below:
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Potential Impairment Risk with a Change to a Significant Parameter

Table: Increase of the WACC by one percentage point

Impairments WACC

Group of cash-generating units in percentage
In million € points

2019 2019

REWE 308,0 5,75

Table: Reduction in EBIT by 10 percentage points
Impairments EBIT

Group of cash-generating units In million € Perpetual annuity
2019 2019

REWE 0,0 684,6

Table: Reduction of the growth discount by half a percentage point
Impairments Growth discount

Group of cash-generating units In million € in percentage points
2019 2019

REWE 0,0 0,0

Potential Impairment Risk with a Change to Two Significant Parameters
Table: One percentage point increase in WACC and half a percentage point reduction in growth discount
Impairments WACC Growth discount

Group of cash-generating units in million € in percentage points in percentage points
2019 2019 2019

REWE 797,5 5,75 0,0

Table: One percentage point increase in WACC and 10 percentage point decrease in EBIT
Impairments WACC EBIT

Group of cash-generating units in million € in percentage points Perpetual annuity
2019 2019 2019

REWE 1.057,3 5,75 616,1

Table: Reduction of EBIT by 10 percentage points and reduction of the growth discount by half a percentage point

Impairments EBIT Growth discount

Group of cash-generating units in million € Perpetual annuity in percentage points
2019 2019 2019

REWE 81,1 616,1 0,0

No realistic changes in parameters are expected for any of the CGU groups which would result in an

impairment.
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21.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Change in Property, Plant and Equipment

Cost

Asatl 018 7,589.1 2,071.4 m m 417.1 17,228.3

Currency Translation

Additions to/disposals from scope of
consolidation

Reclassifications of assets held for sale
Additions from acquisitions

Additions

Disposals

Reclassifications

Leasehold

Land and

buildings improvements

-25.6 -9.2
0.0 0.0
-13.1 -0.1
45.8 1.1
463.5 227.2
-84.6 -56.3
186.1 113

Technical
equipment and
machinery

-0.6

0.0

0.0
0.0
61.8
-11.0
19.8

Adjustments due to IFRS 16
Currency Translation

Additions to/disposals from scope of
consolidation

Reclassifications of assets held for sale
Additions from acquisitions

Additions

Disposals

Reclassifications

As at 31 Dec. 2019 18,899.7

Depreciation and impairments

8,898.5 0.0
20.7 115
-1.5 -0.1
-1.4 0.1
18.2 1.2

1,827.7 247.8

-102.0 -57.2
783 27.8

2,486.5

0.0
-0.3

0.0

0.0
0.0
47.3
-16.7
25.6

745.2

Currency Translation

Reclassifications of assets held for sale
Additions

Impairments

Disposals

Reversals of impairment losses

Reclassifications

As at 31 Dec. 2018

Adjustments due to IFRS 16

Currency Translation

Reclassifications of assets held for sale
Additions

Impairments

Disposals

Reversals of impairment losses

Reclassifications

As at 31 Dec. 2019
Carrying amount as at 1 Jan. 2018
Carrying amount as at 31 Dec. 2018

Carrying amount as at 31 Dec. 2019

-7.9 -3.5
-6.0 0.0
262.1 136.7
35.3 0.7
-55.1 -44.8
-18.1 -6.2
9.1 -2.0
481.4 0.0
9.2 5.9
-0.2 0.0
1,699.4 267.4
307.9 67.0
-55.0 -34.3
-127.2 -7.6
-1.4 -0.5

D

0.0
52.8
2.5
-12.4
0.0

0.2
353.1
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Other
equipment,
operating and
office
equipment

-13.1
0.6

0.0
34.5
783.3
-327.4
54.5
99.3
15.7

-0.1
700.0
4.7
-344.5
-0.1

4,718.1

0.1
2,711.3

Prepayments
and assets
under
construction

-0.6

0.0

-0.9

-49.1
0.6

-14.1
94.1
1,681.4
-487.9
3.5
8,997.8
48.5

38.3
-402.8
-26.2
6.9
481.4
21.8

-0.3
2,719.6
382.1
-446.2
-134.9
-1.6




The additions were due primarily to the recognition of right-of-use assets in respect of real estate as
part of the initial application of IFRS 16 (see note 2 "Application and Effects of New or Revised
Accounting Standards"). The other additions comprise in particular investments for expanding the
store network as well as capital expenditures for replacements and expansions at retail stores,
warehouse sites and production companies. The majority of the disposals resulted from the disposal
or scrapping of operating and office equipment.

During the financial year, borrowing costs in the amount of 0.4 million euros (previous year:

0.3 million euros) were recognised. These concern the establishment of logistics centres in the Retail
Germany business segment. The weighted average cost of capital was used as a basis for determining
the borrowing costs requiring capitalisation.

The cumulative cost and/or cumulative depreciation was reclassified if it was attributable to assets
that were recognised under other items of non-current assets and that must now be presented in
other items. With regard to the impairment losses taken on property, plant and equipment during
the financial year, please see the remarks under note 12 "Depreciation, Amortisation and
Impairments". With regard to the reversals of impairment losses, please see the remarks under note
9 "Other Operating Income".

Property, plant and equipment in the amount of 374.8 million euros (previous year: 204.3 million
euros) serves as collateral for financial liabilities. Purchase commitments of 114.8 million euros
(previous year: 234.2 million euros) were entered into for property, plant and equipment.
Compensation of 1.1 million euros (previous year: 0.6 million euros) was received and recognised in
net profit or loss for property, plant and equipment that was impaired, lost or removed from
operation.
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22.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Change in Investment Properties

Cost

Asat 11an. 2018

Disposals -33.7
Reclassifications -7.0
Additions

Disposals -0.6

Reclassifications

At 31 ec. 2019

Depreciation and impairments

Asat1Jan. 2013

Additions

Impairments 2.7
Disposals -22.4
Reversals of impairment losses -0.6
Reclassifications -6.9
Additions

Disposals -0.2
Reversals of impairment losses -0.1

Reclassifications

As at 31 Dec. 2019

Carrying amount as at 1 Jan. 2018
Carrying amount as at 31 Dec. 2018/1 Jan. 2019 m
Carrying amount as at 31 Dec. 2019

The change in the carrying amount of investment property resulted primarily from disposals,
reclassifications, depreciation and impairments in the Retail International business segment.

The rental income from these properties during the financial year was 5.3 million euros (previous
year: 5.1 million euros). The operating expenses for these properties amounted to 1.4 million euros
(previous year: 0.9 million euros). Operating expenses for properties not generating rental income
amounted to 0.3 million euros (previous year: 0.2 million euros).

The fair value of investment properties is 31.5 million euros (previous year: 32.0 million euros). The
change is due mainly to disposals of investment property in the Retail Germany and Retail
International business segments, which were partly offset by additions in the Retail International
business segment.

Accepted valuation techniques (discounted value of future earnings method) are used to determine
the fair value. Based on the inputs to the valuation techniques used, fair value measurement is
categorised to level 3 in accordance with the measurement hierarchy used to measure fair value. In
addition to reasonable management costs and market rents, rental income from current rental
agreements was also used as a key measurement parameter. The discount rate for properties factors
in the individual situation and condition of each property. More information on determining fair
value can be found in note 12 "Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairments". Appraisals are made by
independent experts in individual cases.
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23.LEASES

Leases from 1 January 2019 (IFRS 16)
a) REWE as Lessee

Within the Group, leases relate to real estate (in particular retail, management and warehouse
locations), vehicles and other items of operating and office equipment. In the Travel and Tourism
business segment, leases also relate to hotel commitments and aircraft. Depending on the respective
underlying asset, the lease term ranges from up to 16 years for moveable property to up to 87 years
for real estate. In a large number of cases the leases contain extension options. Leases may also
contain index-based lease payments that are linked to a variety of different indices.

Real estate leases often contain extension options that can be exercised based on the individual
contract. To ensure operational flexibility, where possible the Group strives to include extension
options when entering into leases. At the commencement date, the Group assesses whether it is
reasonably certain to exercise extension options. The certainty of exercising an extension option is
reassessed if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs during the lease term.

A large number of leasing agreements include the possibility of extending the term of the agreement
by actively exercising options or by not terminating the agreement - quasi automatically. These
options are available partly only to the lessee, partly only to the lessor and partly to both parties to
the contract. Due to the heterogeneous structure of the contracts and the additional coordination
between the parties to the contract, which is particularly common in the case of long contract
periods, it is difficult to estimate potential future lease payments under such contracts, insofar as
they are not already recognised in the balance sheet under lease liabilities. Assuming that all renewal
options, the exercise of which was not considered sufficiently certain at the balance sheet date, are
used, and assuming a term of 99 years for agreements with an automatic renewal if they can only be
terminated by the lessee, we assume potential future lease payments of approximately 12.9 billion
euros at the balance sheet date; a large number of agreements that can be terminated by either
party to the agreement were not taken into account in this calculation, because it cannot reliably
estimated whether or when the lessor will terminate the agreement.

The following section presents information on leases for which the Group is lessee.

The following items are recognised in the balance sheet in connection with leases:
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Right-of-use Assets by Asset Class

Right-of-use assets (in million €) 31 Dec. 2019

Undeveloped land 107.4
Developed land 8,828.9
Purchase obligation (Travel and Tourism) 39.3
Technical equipment and machinery 1.6
Passenger vehicles 11.7
Goods vehicles 13

62.4

Aircraft

Other assets, operating and office equipment

m

The additions to right-of-use assets amounted to 1,429.2 million euros in financial year 2019.

Maturity of Lease Liabilities

Lease liabilities (in million €) 31 Dec. 2019

Current lease liabilities 1,522.2

Non-current lease liabilities 8,583.0

m

The total payments made in respect of lease liabilities amounted to 2,057.1 million euros in the
financial year.

Undiscounted Future Payments for Leases Recognised in the Balance Sheet

Less than one year 1,984.7
One to two years 1,701.7
Two to three years 1,535.1
Three to four years 1,354.0
Four to five years 1,173.4

5,086.1

More than five years

Total amount of undiscounted lease payments 12,835.0

Future payment obligations under leases that were entered into before 31 December 2019 but that
do not commence until after the balance sheet date amounted to 172.9 million euros.
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Amounts Recognised in the Income Statement in Connection with Leases

Depreciation and impairment losses (in million €) 31 Dec. 2019

Undeveloped land 11.8
Developed land 1,470.0
Purchase obligation (Travel and Tourism) 15.8
Technical equipment and machinery 0.7
Passenger vehicles 9.0
Goods vehicles 0.5

8.2

Aircraft

Other assets, operating and office equipment

Other Amounts Recognised in the Income Statement

Income from subleasing right-of-use assets 772.9
Expense relating to short-term leases 9.8
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets 61
Expense relating to variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities 127

-542.6

Interest expense on lease liabilities

b) REWE as Lessor
Finance Leases

From the perspective of the lessor, all leases of property, plant and equipment are operating leases.
The exception are subleases, some of which are classified as finance leases. In the previous year, no
leases in accordance with IAS 17 were classified as finance leases.

The Group mainly uses its properties in the asset classes "Land and buildings" and "Buildings on
third-party land" for its own purposes. The right-of-use assets are likewise primarily used for own
purposes, although some are also subleased. Subleases relate primarily to leases as part of the REWE
partnership model in the Retail Germany business segment.
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Maturity Analysis of Undiscounted Future Lease Payments as at 31 December 2019

Less than one year

One to two years 8.1
Two to three years 8.0
Three to four years 7.8
Four to five years 5.7

18.9

More than five years

Total amount of undiscounted lease receivables _

Unearned finance income

Net investment in the lease _

The net investment was reduced by a write-down of 0.5 million euros. The carrying amount of lease
receivables amounted to 46.7 million euros.

The following income from the disposal of right-of-use assets and interest income from lease
receivables were recognised in 2019:

Amounts Recognised in the Income Statement in Respect of Finance Leases

Income from the disposal of right-of-use assets

Interest income from lease receivables 3.0

Operating leases

Income From Operating Leases Recognised in the Income Statement

Income from operating leases — fixed/index-based 2562

Income from operating leases — variable (based on revenue/use) 602.5
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Undiscounted Future Lease Payments to be Received After the Balance Sheet Date

Less than one year 845.0
One to two years 744.8
Two to three years 655.9
Three to four years 582.2
Four to five years 507.7

2,309.8

More than five years

Total undiscounted lease payments (receivable) 5,645.4

Leases until 31 December 2018 (IAS 17)

Real estate from finance leases was also presented under property, plant and equipment. It was
included in the "Land and buildings" item in an amount of 824.5 million euros.

Many of the leased properties were partially or fully subleased. A majority of the subleasing was
made to companies in connection with the REWE partnership model. The lease agreements had
varying terms and conditions, rent increase clauses and renewal options. Purchase options were not
normally included.

In addition, assets classified as other operating and office equipment were leased in connection with
operating leases with short-term termination clauses.

Finance Leases as Lessee

Reconciliation of Minimum Lease Payments to be Paid to the Recognised Present Value of the Obligation

31 Dec. 2018

Total minimum lease payments from finance leases 999.7

Discounting -145.3

Present value of liabilities from finance leases 854.4

Allocation of the Minimum Lease Payments, the Discounting and Present Value of the Minimum Lease
Payments by Residual Maturity

More than 5 31 Dec. 2018
Up to 1 year
years Total

Total minimum lease payments from finance leases 84.9 352.0 562.8 999.7

Discounting -19.9 -64.5 -60.9 -145.3

Present value of liabilities from finance leases m 287.5 m 854.4

The change in the present value of lease commitments arose in particular through scheduled

repayments of lease commitments.
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Operating Leases as Lessee

Total Future Minimum Lease Payments to be Paid Resulting from Non-Cancellable Operating Leases

Up to 1 year 1,896.9
1to 5years 5,850.1
More than 5 years 5,095.0

Future payments on operating leases 12,842.0

Operating Leases as Lessor

Total Future Expected Lease Payments Resulting from Non-Cancellable Operating Leases

Up to 1 year 759.6
1to 5years 2,218.4
More than 5 years 1,949.3

Future payments expected from operating leases 4,927.3

From the perspective as at 31 December 2018, the principal amount of minimum lease payments
that the Group would have received going forward from subleasing properties under operating
leases amounted to 4,791.0 million euros. Some of the subleasing income was secured through
security deposits and payment guarantees. The increase in future subleasing income to be received
and in expected future total leasing income resulted primarily from the conclusion of new sublease

agreements.

24. COMPANIES ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

Information Regarding Associates

Group's share of results from continuing operations 333 43.5
Group's share of comprehensive income 33.3 43.5
Carrying amount of shares in associates ( as at 31 Dec. ) 196.8 120.7

The associates are primarily 1,266 REWE partner companies (previous year: 1,214).

Of the decrease in the Group's share of the comprehensive income of 10.2 million euros, 13.6 million
was due to a company over which control was obtained as at 1 August 2018. The increases in
dividends at the other companies had an offsetting effect.

A 60.0 per cent interest in subsidiary commercetools GmbH, Munich, was sold as at 30 November
2019. From that date, the Group's remaining interest (40.0 per cent) was accounted for as shares in
associates (see note 3 "Consolidation").

The carrying amount of the equity investment changed as follows in the financial year:

Page 121



Change in Carrying Amount of the Equity Investment

in million €

As at 1Jan. 2019

Carrying amount on transition from full consolidation 22.6
Fair value adjustment 56.1

Pro rata results — 2019

As at 31 Dec. 2019 -

Information Regarding Joint Ventures

Group's share of results from continuing operations 15.8
Group's share of other comprehensive income 0.3 -0.4
Group's share of comprehensive income 8.2 15.4
Carrying amount of shares in joint ventures ( as at 31 Dec. ) 43.7 45.7

25. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Breakdown of Other Financial Assets

Remaining term

Remaining term

More than 1
Up to 1 year year

More than 1
Up to 1 year year

Claims from supplier compensation 678.7 0.0 678.7 266.1 0.0 266.1
Trade payables with debit balances 2215 0.0 221.5 648.8 0.0 648.8
Loans to associates 54.9 141.9 196.8 42.8 133.2 176.0
Other loans 23.6 110.6 134.2 18.1 69.0 87.1
Lease receivables 5.8 41.0 46.8 0.0 0.0 0.0
Loans to joint ventures 45.8 0.6 46.4 28.3 1.9 30.2
Receivables from derivative financial instruments 17.6 0.0 17.6 31.8 0.0 31.8
Other equity investments 0.0 5.0 5.0 0.0 352.8 352.8
Other receivables from financial transactions 49.9 9.8 59.7 315 9.7 41.2

1'097.8 EE 1'406.7 GocLs S8 1’634.0

Loans to associates include primarily shareholder and start-up loans and merchandise credits to
REWE partner companies. The increase is due primarily to the higher number of partner companies.

Other loans relate to, among other things, merchandise credits, loans to lessors and start-up loans to
other related parties.

The lease receivables recognised for the first time in the financial year included subleases classified
as finance leases.
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The loans to joint ventures essentially include short-term loans to REWE PETZ GmbH, Wissen, and to
EURELEC TRADING SCRL, Brussels, Belgium.

The receivables from derivative financial instruments primarily concern currency derivatives. They
essentially resulted from currency hedges of the Travel and Tourism business segment and Other
business segment (purchase of goods). Further explanations of changes in derivative financial
instruments can be found in note 39 "Financial Risk Management".

The decline in other equity investments was due primarily to the acquisition of 77.4 per cent of the
shares of RZAG and its subsequent initial consolidation (see note 3 "Consolidation"). Furthermore,

the remaining interest in DZ BANK AG Deutsche Zentral-Genossenschaftsbank, Frankfurt am Main,

was sold for 11.9 million euros.

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Breakdown of Trade Receivables

_ e -

Trade receivables from third parties 843.6 863.4
Trade receivables from associates 381.1 521.0
Trade receivables from joint ventures 10.5 16.0
Trade receivables from affiliated companies 33 3.5

Trade receivables from other long-term investments

The decrease in trade receivables from associates is primarily in relation to the balance sheet date.

27.0OTHER ASSETS

Breakdown of Other Assets

Remaining term Remaining term
More than 1 More than 1
Up to 1 year year Up to 1 year year
Deferred assets 43.8 86.3 130.1 46.1 73.2 119.3
Shares in associates 0.0 69.1 69.1 0.0 57.8 57.8
Receivables from other taxes 65.1 0.0 65.1 63.5 0.0 63.5
Receivables from prepayments and security deposits 34.9 15.2 50.1 28.3 17.7 46.0
Deferred commissions from travel agencies 48.8 0.0 48.8 28.7 0.0 28.7
Deferred discounts from central settlement 41.2 0.0 41.2 48.9 0.0 48.9
Interest on corporate income tax and trade tax reimbursements 39.6 0.0 39.6 3.6 0.0 3.6
Shares in affiliated companies 0.0 24.9 249 0.0 23.2 23.2
Receivables from former partners from partnership model 7.2 0.0 7.2 6.2 0.0 6.2
Reimbursement rights against trust associations 6.4 0.0 6.4 2.2 0.0 2.2
Miscellaneous 898.5 6.2 904.7 149.8 6.8 156.6
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The deferred assets include, among other items, prepaid rents, service fees, flat-rate maintenance
fees, as well as prepaid tourism payments. The increase was due mainly to building cost subsidies in
the Retail Germany business segment.

The increase in shares in associates primarily relates to associates added as a result of the inclusion
of RZAG and its subsidiaries from 1 May 2019.

Receivables from other taxes relate primarily to value-added tax.

The deferred commissions from travel agencies increased during the course of the financial year due
to a standardisation of the settlement system. Previously, some of the commissions were not paid
until commencement of the travel, while now they are always paid to the travel agency when the
customer makes a prepayment.

Of the rise in interest on corporate income tax and trade tax reimbursements, 39.6 million euros was
due to interest on trade tax receivables.

Allowances of 0.4 million euros were recognised on receivables from former partners of REWE
partner companies in the financial year (previous year: 0.5 million euros).

The miscellaneous other assets included a part payment of 761.9 million euros for the acquisition of
the Lekkerland Group as at 1 January 2020 (see note 42 "Events After the Balance Sheet Date").

28.INVENTORIES

Breakdown of Inventories

31 Dec. 2019

Finished goods and merchandise 3,633.8 3,255.6
Prepayments 275.1 275.2
Work in progress 180.2 156.9
Raw materials, consumables and supplies 63.1 61.7

The change in inventories is primarily attributable to the increase in finished goods and merchandise
as well as work in progress.

The increase in finished goods and merchandise was due mainly to the Other, Retail International
and Retail Germany business segments. The increase in the Other and Retail Germany business
segments was mainly attributable to the inclusion of RZAG and its subsidiaries as at 1 May 2019. In
the Retail International business segment, the expansion of the store network in Eastern Europe in
particular led to an increase in finished goods and merchandise.

The increase in work in progress relates primarily to the Travel and Tourism business segment and
was due among other things to an increase in booking volume at the German tour operators.

Allowances for slow-moving merchandise and for individual risks amounted to 235.7 million euros as
at the balance sheet date (previous year: 226.0 million euros). Reversals of impairment losses on
inventories amounted to 3.2 million euros in the Travel and Tourism business segment (previous
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year: 7.1 million euros); they were recognised as a reduction in material expenses. The reversal of
impairment was caused by hoteliers making repayments of advances, which had not been included in
the original estimate.

As in the previous year no inventories were pledged as collateral for financial liabilities during the
financial year.

29. CURRENT AND DEFERRED TAXES

For information on current and deferred taxes, see note 18 "Taxes on Income".

30.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Breakdown of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash-in-hand and store money 384.0 454.1
Bank balances 182.9 176.9
Cheques

Bank overdrafts

Funds according to cash flow statement 557.6 626.7

The cash-in-hand and store money essentially presented cash-in-hand at stores and funds in transit
at cash transportation companies. The decrease occurred in relation to the balance sheet date.

The bank balances include both current account balances and demand and time deposits.

The cash and cash equivalents, less the overdraft facilities presented under liabilities to banks, shown
here comprise the cash funds within the meaning of the cash flow statement. The change in cash
funds is presented in the cash flow statement (see note 37 "Cash Flow Statement").

31.EQUITY

The changes in equity are presented in the statement of changes in equity. The co-operative shares
in RZF are shown as debt capital under financial liabilities. The changes in this item between
reporting dates are explained in note 34 "Other Financial Liabilities".

Capital Reserves

The capital reserves relate to the premium on the capital increase at RZF as at 30 April 2019 as part
of the acquisition of 77.4 per cent of shares, less treasury shares acquired (see note 3
"Consolidation").

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings include the legal reserves, other revenue reserves, the unappropriated
consolidated profit, the reserve for pension obligations, the reserve for gains and losses from the
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remeasurement of equity instruments and the reserves from adjustment entries made for the
transition from local GAAP to IFRS accounting. Of the retained earnings, 755.9 million euros (previous
year: 661.8 million euros) is attributable to the legal reserve, which is not eligible for distribution.

The change in retained earnings is due primarily to the consolidated profit generated in the financial
year amounting to 528.4 million euros (previous year: 350.6 million euros), which is attributable to
the shareholders of the parent company, and -86.3 million euros from the remeasurement of defined
benefit pension commitments including the corresponding deferred taxes (previous year: 16.1
million euros). The change in retained earnings in the financial year was also due to the acquisition of
non-controlling interests (-112.8 million euros; previous year: 4.7 million euros) and other changes in
the scope of consolidation (-0.2 million euros; previous year: -0.7 million euros).

The initial application of IFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019 gave rise to an effect of -11.0 million euros.

Other Reserves

The statement of comprehensive income shows how changes in these reserves impact on profit or
loss.

The reserve for cash flow hedges includes the measurement gains or losses on cash flow hedges
taken directly to equity, which are discussed in note 39 "Financial Risk Management".

The costs of hedging reserve include the change in the fair values of forward elements as well as the
foreign currency basis spread of forward contracts as hedging expenses.

The reserve for financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
includes the effects from the change of financial instruments, for which the option to recognised the
change in equity was exercised and for which the changes in subsequent periods are recognised
through profit or loss.

The reserve for currency translation differences is the result of translating other currencies into euros
(see note 5 "Currency Translation").

The reserve for income components of equity-accounted companies recognised directly in equity
contains the accumulated other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures.

The deferred tax reserve includes the accumulated deferred taxes recognised in equity on the items
recognised in other reserves, as explained above.

Non-Controlling Interests

Non-controlling interests comprise third-party interests in the equity of consolidated subsidiaries.
The changes in non-controlling interests between reporting dates are detailed in the statement of
changes in equity. In financial year 2019, these resulted primarily from the sale of shares to the
shareholders of the parent company, the comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling
interests, and dividend distributions.

The value as at 1 January 2019 was adjusted by -6.2 million euros to 1,139.9 million euros due to the
initial application of IFRS 16.
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Of the acquisitions of non-controlling interests, -995.6 million euros was due to the acquisition of
interests in long-term investments of RZAG as part of the acquisition of shares in RZAG by RZF as at 1
May 2019.

A step-up amount of 51.6 million euros resulted from the acquisition of the remaining 30.0 per cent
interest in each of Supermaérkte Nord Verwaltungs GmbH and Supermarkte Nord Vertriebs GmbH &
Co. KG, both with registered office in Kiel (see note 3 "Consolidation").

Non-controlling interests amounted to 159.4 million euros as at 31 December 2019 (previous year:
1,146.1 million euros) and related primarily to non-controlling interests in REWE Dortmund SE & Co.
KG, Dortmund.

Appropriation of Profits

After the payment of interest on the co-operative shares and the statutory allocation of 43.6 million
euros (previous year: 21.6 million euros) to legal reserves, RZF's unappropriated commercial law
profit amounted to 246.9 million euros in the 2019 financial year (previous year: 122.6 million euros).
The Management Board and Supervisory Board of RZF will propose to the general meeting on 26
June 2020 to allocate from this profit an amount of 101.7 million euros (previous year: 50.5 million
euros) to legal reserves and an amount of 145.2 million euros (previous year: 72.1 million euros) to
other revenue reserves.

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Breakdown of Employee Benefits

Remaining term Remaining term
More than 1 More than 1
Up to 1 year year Up to 1 year year
Pensions 75.3 647.7 723.0 60.9 497.0 557.9
Severance pay and TFR 1.6 239.1 240.7 1.4 222.6 224.0
Service anniversary bonuses 12.0 176.8 188.8 12.0 152.5 164.5
Liabilities from employee benefits 136.2 0.0 136.2 137.9 0.0 137.9
Holiday provisions 135.7 0.0 135.7 133.8 0.0 133.8
Special annual bonuses 123.0 11.9 134.9 177.2 9.6 186.8
Employee termination benefits 42.3 0.1 424 46.2 1.0 47.2
Overtime and performance bonuses 323 0.0 323 25.8 0.0 25.8
Partial and early retirement 10.4 16.2 26.6 8.4 13.0 21.4
Retirement allowances 1.2 7.5 8.7 1.0 7.1 8.1
Survivors' benefits 0.0 7.2 7.2 0.0 6.3 6.3
Holiday/Christmas bonuses 5.1 0.0 5.1 7.3 0.0 7.3
Other 36.8 115 48.3 35.0 111 46.1

Disclosures of Defined Benefit Pension Plans

Depending on the respective national law, different retirement benefit systems are available to the
employees of the consolidated companies. These pension plans can be defined contribution or
defined benefit plans. Significant defined benefit pension plans are currently in place for
consolidated companies in Germany, Switzerland, the United Kingdom, Austria and Italy.
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a) Description of Defined Benefit Pension Plans

The defined benefit obligations consist of pensions and similar obligations, such as end-of-service
and Trattamento di Fine Rapporto (TFR) benefits, survivor benefits and retirement allowances.

Breakdown of Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations by Country

) Similar . Similar
Pensions L. Pensions o
obligations obligations
Germany 854.5 15.1 679.2 13.7
Switzerland 256.6 0.0 234.7 0.0
United Kingdom 29.4 0.0 31.2 0.0
Austria 13 233.1 1.2 216.7
Italy 0.0 6.8 0.0 6.8

Other 2.

1 1.6 3.1 1.2
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 31 December 1,143.9 256.6 949.4 238.4

The material pension plans break down into growing and fixed (closed) commitments as follows:

Germany

The major part of the obligations results from two different types of pension commitment: firstly
there is an active defined contribution commitment, whose volume is set to increase further in the
future, and secondly there is a pension commitment that was closed in 2008. Both commitments are
subject to guaranteed interest rates. For the consolidated companies, this entails the risk of not
generating the guaranteed interest rate of the pension commitment in the long term. The old
pension commitment was financed exclusively on the basis of deferred compensation. To reduce the
longevity risk, a lump-sum option was introduced for this commitment. The new pension
commitment is no longer financed exclusively, but still predominantly by deferred compensation as
well as by employer contributions. Risk is minimised by arranging it as a defined contribution
commitment. The longevity risk is reduced by granting generous lump-sum options at the start of
pension payments. In addition, the inflation risk for this pension commitment is minimised by
specifying the pension adjustments in advance. For the pension commitment, there are secured trust
assets, which are allocated to individual commitments and the pension commitment described here.
Since the trust assets are plan assets, these are netted against the corresponding obligations.

The other pension commitments made by consolidated German companies are exposed to inflation
risk because, pursuant to section 16 of the Company Pensions Act (Gesetz zur Verbesserung der
betrieblichen Altersversorgung, "BetrAVG"), pension adjustments must be made in line with the
consumer price index.

In addition, a large portion of the defined benefit obligations results from an overall benefit
commitment fixed back in 1992 and a pension commitment closed in 1997. Since most of the
beneficiaries already receive retirement benefits, these defined benefit commitments only represent
a small longevity and inflation risk for the consolidated companies.

In the Travel and Tourism business segment, there are moreover commitments that depend on
salary and length of service. Most of them are pension commitments, but some are overall benefit
commitments. Here the number of active beneficiaries means the consolidated companies are
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exposed to the risk of a disproportionate increase in the obligation due to salary increases. Since the
payment of the commitments is planned exclusively in the form of pensions, there is also a longevity
risk.

In addition, there are pension commitments based on length of service in Travel and Tourism; these
commitments were closed to new joiners in 2004. Since payments are planned in the form of
pensions, they are also exposed to a longevity risk. Plan assets are available to secure these pension
commitments. The plan assets available to Travel and Tourism in Germany primarily comprise real
estate and to a lesser extent cash and cash equivalents.

Furthermore, a large portion of the defined benefit obligations of the consolidated companies
consists of a direct pension commitment assumed as the result of a business acquisition; this relates
primarily to the Penny Germany business segment and is, at a low level, dependent on length of
service. The commitment was financed by a once-off payment by the seller as at the transfer date
and thereafter by employer contributions from the consolidated companies. To mitigate the
financing risk from salary adjustments, it has been agreed to fix the commitment as at a specified
date in the past by entering into individual agreements with a large number of employees.

In addition, there are defined benefit obligations with different pension commitments from other
company acquisitions. In most cases, they are financed by the employer and employees making
equal contributions. A portion of the commitments are funded by a support fund with back-to-back
reinsurance. The assets transferred to the support funds represent plan assets.

Finally, there are pension-related benefit commitments in the form of retirement allowances and
survivor benefits. The levels of these once-off payments depend on the length of service of the
employees concerned.

Switzerland

Retirement provisions, survivor benefits and loss of earnings provisions in Switzerland are based on a
three-pillar system, which is financed in different ways. In accordance with the Swiss Occupational
Pensions Act (Gesetz (iber die berufliche Vorsorge, "BVG"), the second pillar ensures disability
benefits or survivor benefits (in case of the insured person's death) for all employed persons of legal
age with an annual income of at least 21,330 Swiss francs. From the age of 25, there is also an
obligatory retirement pension component. This retirement provision is financed by the employer and
the employee on a funded basis as a percentage of the income insured. The Act prescribes minimum
benefits. At the consolidated Swiss companies, occupational benefit provisions are arranged through
the BonAssistus pension fund, Swiss Life BVG and the IGP-BVG Foundation. This plan is run jointly by
several employers. The above pension funds and foundations may amend their financing system
(contributions and benefits) at any time. If there is a shortfall, recovery contributions may be levied
on the employer. The plan assets deposited with the pension fund and the collective foundations
cover most of the obligations arising from the benefit obligations that exist under the BVG. The
assets the consolidated companies have contributed to the pension fund and the foundations is
determined in the same way as for a partial liquidation incorporating value fluctuation reserves: by
allocating the individual provisions to the beneficiaries and then assigning the assets of all insured
persons in active service to the respective companies in proportion to their retirement assets, while

Page 129



the assets of retired employees are allocated to them directly. The pension funds and foundations
have taken out reinsurance to ensure they can meet the legal benefit obligations.

United Kingdom

There is an employer's pension commitment in the Travel and Tourism business segment that has
been closed for new hires since 2002, but which continues to accumulate for the existing
beneficiaries. The commitment is based on salary and length of service and is currently covered by
plan assets. Upon retirement, up to 25.0 per cent of the pension entitlement may be paid out as a
one-off payment. However, there is a longevity risk due to the foreseen lifetime pension payments of
at least 75.0 per cent.

In the United Kingdom the plan assets in the trusts are remeasured at least every three years. As part
of this remeasurement, the trustees of the corresponding trusts use mostly very conservative
parameters and determine from them any existing financing surplus or shortfall and thus the future
payments by the employer.

Austria

In Austria, labour law requires all employment contracts that were entered into by 31 December
2002 and lasted for an uninterrupted period of at least three years to be included in a defined
benefit plan (old end-of-service benefit model), which provides for a once-off payment if an
employee's contract is terminated (except in cases of voluntary resignation) or upon retirement at
the latest. The amount of the once-off payment depends on the employee's average monthly
remuneration and length of service and varies between two and twelve times the monthly
remuneration. The payment arrangements range from immediate payment to payment in half-
monthly instalments.

The above model was amended with effect from 1 January 2003 and every employer is now obliged
to contribute 1.5 per cent of the employee's monthly remuneration to a statutory end-of-service
benefit fund. The new end-of-service benefit model therefore takes the form of a defined
contribution benefit model.

Italy

Similar to Austria, employees in Italy have a right to a severance payment if the employment contract
is terminated. This payment if referred to as "Trattamento di Fine Rapporto" (TFR). This is an
additional pension entitlement granted under public law. The entitlement is comparable to deferred
compensation and is based on the level of income and the number of years in service.

Before the TFR was reformed in 2005, it was a defined benefit plan. With effect from 1 January 2007,
all existing plans were closed and transferred to a defined contribution benefit system. The
amendment applied to both new joiners and to future years of service of beneficiaries in active
service. The defined benefit obligation of consolidated Italian companies therefore reflects the
extent of the obligation for beneficiaries' years in active service up to 2007.

Since the benefit models in Switzerland, Austria and Italy are statutory benefit systems, there are no
company-specific risks.
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b) Significant Actuarial Assumptions

The defined benefit obligations reported in the balance sheet are based on expert actuarial opinions.
The following parameters were used to measure the significant defined benefit obligations:

Country-specific Parameters for Measuring Significant Defined Benefit Obligations

Significant measurement

2019 2018
parameters
) Expected Rate of . Expected Rate of

Accounting i ) Accounting . .

X future salary pension Duration . future salary pension Duration

interest rate ) ) interest rate - -

increases increases increases increases

Germany 0.75% 3.00% 1.90% 16 years 1.75% 3.00% 1.90% 14 years
Switzerland 0.15% 0.50% - 14 years 0.90% 1.00% - 14 years
United Kingdom 2.10% 3.00% 3.00% 22 years 2.90% 3.50% 3.50% 22 years
Austria 0.50% 3.00% - 8 years 1.25% 3.00% - 8 years
Italy 0.60% - - 8 years 1.25% - - 8 years

The calculations of the German commitments are based on basic biometric values (probabilities of
death and disability) contained in the 2018 G mortality tables of Prof. Klaus Heubeck. The death and
disability probabilities contained in "Technische Grundlagen BVG 2015" were used for Switzerland,
the AVO 2018 P tables of Pagler & Pagler were used for Austria, and the Tavole IPS55 and Tavole
INPS 2000 were used for Italy.

c) Changes in the Net Defined Benefit Obligation and the Reimbursement Rights Against
Trust Associations

Calculation of Net Obligation Recognised in the Balance Sheet

Pensions S.imil-ar Pensions SimiSE
obligations obligations
Present value of unfunded obligations 686.8 256.6 529.6 238.4
Present value of obligations funded in whole or in part 457.1 419.8
Fair value of plan assets 427.3 3934
of which: reported as provision for pensions and similar obligations 723.0 256.6 557.9 238.4
of which: reported as other assets 6.4 0.0 1.9 0.0
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The net liability from pensions and similar obligations reported under provisions includes obligations
for end-of-service and TFR benefits of 240.7 million euros (previous year: 224.0 million euros),
obligations for retirement allowances of 8.7 million euros (previous year: 8.1 million euros) and
obligations for survivor benefits of 7.2 million euros (previous year: 6.3 million euros).

Other assets resulted from surpluses of defined benefit plans of DER Touristik UK Limited, Dorking,
United Kingdom, and RZAG.
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Change in Net Obligation from Defined Benefit Plans in the Financial Year

Similar Similar

obligations

Pensions

Pensions e
obligations

defined benefit pension plans as at 1 January

Current service cost

Net interest cost 9.5 2.8 8.0 2.5
Effects from remeasurements 118.6 17.1 -26.3 -3.5
of which: effects from plan assets excl. amounts reported under net
interest cost -13.4 0.0 -4.9 0.0
of which: effects from change to demographic assumptions -0.2 0.3 5.6 0.0
of which: effects from change to financial assumptions 133.7 17.0 -31.3 0.7
of which: effects from experience adjustments -1.5 -0.2 4.3 -4.2
Past service cost -1.4 0.0 -0.6 0.0
of which: from plan settlements -0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0
Effects from exchange rate changes 1.2 0.0 1.7 0.0
Contributions to pension plan -9.1 0.0 -5.2 0.0
of which: employer contributions -21.9 0.0 -15.5 0.0
of which: plan participant contributions 12.8 0.0 10.3 0.0
Benefits paid -21.0 -13.1 -13.9 -13.9
of which: benefits paid in the context of plan settlements -0.5 0.0 -0.6 0.0
Effects from business combinations and disposals 40.6 0.1 0.7 -0.9
Effects from asset transfers -0.1 0.0

y from defined benefit pension plans as at 31 December

716.6 256.6

Change in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation in the Financial Year

Similar Similar

Pensions

Pensions

obligations obligations
Present value of defined benefit obligation
Current service cost 223 11.3
Interest cost 15.2 2.8 12.5 25
Effects from remeasurements 132.0 17.1 -21.4 -3.5
of which: effects from change to demographic assumptions -0.2 0.3 5.6 0.0
of which: effects from change to financial assumptions 133.7 17.0 -31.3 0.7
of which: effects from experience adjustments -1.5 -0.2 4.3 -4.2
Past service cost -1.4 0.0 -0.6 0.0
of which: from plan settlements -0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0
Effects from exchange rate changes 9.8 0.0 9.1 0.0
Contributions to pension plan 19.7 0.0 16.9 0.0
of which: employer contributions 3.8 0.0 3.7 0.0
of which: plan participant contributions 15.9 0.0 13.2 0.0
Benefits paid -44.0 -13.1 -335 -13.9
of which: benefits paid in the context of plan settlements -7.6 0.0 -1.7 0.0
Effects from business combinations and disposals 42.2 0.1 1.1 -0.9
Effects from asset transfers -1.3 0.0 0.0 0.0

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 31 December 1,143.9 256.6 949.4 238.4

The impacts from business combinations in the financial year relate essentially to the acquisition of
the shares in RZAG (see note 3 "Consolidation").
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Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets in the Financial Year

foritone | an |
Fair value of plan assets as at 1 January 393.4 373.7
5.7

4.5

Interest income
Effects from remeasurements 13.4 4.9
Effects from exchange rate changes 8.6 7.4
Contributions to pension plan 28.8 22.1
of which: employer contributions 25.7 19.2
of which: plan participant contributions 3.1 2.9
Benefits paid -23.0 -19.6
of which: benefits paid from plan assets -15.9 -18.5
of which: benefits paid in the context of plan settlements -7.1 -1.1
Effects from business combinations and disposals 1.6 0.4
Effects from asset transfers -1.2 0.0

Fair value of plan assets as at 31 December 427.3 m

Plan assets consist primarily in connection with pension obligations in Germany, Switzerland and the
United Kingdom.

Composition of Plan Assets of the Consolidated Companies

Cash and cash equivalents 9.6 8.6
of which: quoted market price on an active market 9.6 8.6
Equity instruments 42.6 44.1
of which: quoted market price on an active market 42.6 44.1
Debt instruments 38.9 38.6
of which: quoted market price on an active market 37.9 37.6
Real estate 50.6 47.4
of which: quoted market price on an active market 13.2 11.6
of which: owner-occupied 1.6 1.8
Securities funds 88.4 65.8
of which: quoted market price on an active market 88.4 65.8
Reinsurance policies 181.2 172.6
Other 16.0 16.3
of which: quoted market price on an active market 12.5 11.9

Fair value of plan assets as at 31 December 427.3 m

Change in Reimbursement Rights from the Trust Assets of the Consolidated Companies Used to Secure the
Pension Obligations in the Course of the Financial Year

Fair value of reimbursement rights as at 1 January m m

Contributions to pension plan -0.4 -0.2

of which: employer contributions -0.4 -0.2

Fair value of reimbursement rights as at 31 December m m

The contributions to the pension plan concern amounts paid out to the employer.
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d) Effects of Defined Benefit Plans Recognised Directly in Equity and Effects Recognised in
the Income Statement

Effects from the Remeasurement of the Net Obligation from Defined Benefit Obligations and
Reimbursement Rights against Trust Associations on Retained Earnings.

Similar
obligations

Similar

Pensions Pensions

obligations

Remeasurement of present value of defined benefit obligation -132.0 -17.1 21.4 3.5

Remeasurement of plan assets 134

Composition of Expenses from Defined Benefit Plans

Similar
obligations

Similar

Pensions Pensions

obligations

Current service cost 22.3 11.3 19.4 11.1
Past service cost and effects from plan settlements -1.4 0.0 -0.6 0.0

Net interest cost

The past service cost and the effects from plan settlements are recognised under personnel
expenses, while the net interest cost is reported under the financial result.

e) Effects of Significant Actuarial Assumptions on the Present Value of the Defined
Benefit Obligation

The tables below show the effects of an isolated change to the significant actuarial parameters on
the present value of the defined benefit obligations for pensions and similar obligations. In each of
these scenarios, a change of 0.5 percentage points is assumed in the discount rate, in expected
future wage and salary increases and in expected future pension increases. In addition, a change in
the life expectancy of all beneficiaries, regardless of age, is simulated by shifting the review date by
one year.

Effects of Significant Actuarial Assumptions on Pensions

2019 2018
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 31 December 1,064.6 1,234.3 887.5 1,020.2
I
percentage points

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 31 December 1,146.9 1,141.1 952.9 946.1
I

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 31 December 1,190.6 1,112.0 989.9 922.0
I

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 31 December 1,178.0 1,110.3 975.9 922.9
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Effects of Significant Actuarial Assumptions on Similar Obligations

2019
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 31 December 245.2 269.4 229.8 248.2
I
percentage points

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 31 December 268.8 245.6 248.2 229.6
I

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 31 December 256.6 256.6 238.4 2384
I

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 31 December 256.6 256.6 238.4 238.4

In the same way as for the calculation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation in the
balance sheet, the projected unit credit method is also used to determine the changes in the defined
benefit obligation in relation to the above measurement parameters.

The expected payments under the defined benefit plans for the following financial year are 80.7
million euros (previous year: 42.8 million euros) for pensions and 7.9 million euros (previous year:
17.9 million euros) for similar obligations.

Disclosures of Other Employee Benefits

The consolidated companies have committed themselves to paying service anniversary bonuses on
the basis of a works agreement. The liability of 188.8 million euros (previous year: 164.5 million
euros) corresponds to the full amount of the obligation; it was determined in Germany in accordance
with financial engineering principles, assuming a discount rate appropriate to the maturity of 0.1 per
cent (previous year: 1.0 per cent), based on the 2018 G mortality tables of Prof. Klaus Heubeck. The
increase in service anniversary bonuses is due primarily to the increase in the amounts granted as a
result of including the financial year just concluded, the significant drop in interest rates and an
increase in the employee headcount.

Liabilities from employee benefits include 68.4 million euros (previous year: 68.2 million euros) in
liabilities to statutory social insurance funds. In addition, this item primarily comprises liabilities from
wages and salaries still to be settled as well as liabilities from merchandise vouchers to employees.

The provisions for partial retirement obligations amounting to 26.6 million euros (previous year:
21.4 million euros) are based on actuarial reports of Hamburger Pensionsverwaltung e.G., Hamburg.
They were measured on the basis of the 2018 G mortality tables of Prof. Klaus Heubeck, assuming a
discount rate appropriate to the maturity of 0.0 per cent (previous year: 0.0 per cent). Despite the
general expiry of the partial retirement models, the amount reported for provisions increased. This
was due to the fact that further new partial retirement agreements were signed in individual cases.

Other employee benefits include, as in the previous year, provisions for redundancy plan costs and
continued remuneration in the context of restructuring.
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33.OTHER PROVISIONS

Development of Other Provisions

... .. Changesin
As at 1Jan. Reclassificati Currency As at 31 Dec.

scope of Utilisations Reversals Additions Interest cost )
2019 ons o differences 2019
consolidation

Compensation to

130.4 0.0 27.6 -119.1 -2.7 130.3 0.0 0.0 166.5
customers
Restoration costs 42.6 0.0 0.0 -0.8 -2.7 5.6 0.1 0.1 44.9
Court, litigation, legal
. 37.0 0.0 0.0 -3.6 -9.5 9.5 0.0 0.0 33.4
consulting costs
Other taxes 283 0.0 0.4 -17.0 -1.5 13.5 0.0 11 24.8
Other expected losses 211 0.0 04 -8.2 2.8 10.7 0.0 0.0 21.2
Expected losses from equity
X 15.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 -7.8 7.9 0.0 0.0 15.4
accounting
Expected losses from lease
o 18.9 -1.1 0.0 -0.2 -12.7 3.6 0.0 0.0 8.5
obligations
Provisions for guarantees
. 7.3 0.0 0.0 -5.0 -0.5 5.3 0.0 0.0 7.1
and courtesy services
Rental risks 6.3 0.0 0.5 -2.0 -1.2 35 0.0 0.0 7.1
Interest on taxes 4.0 -0.5 0.1 -1.0 -0.2 3.0 0.0 0.0 5.4
Expected losses from
onerous contracts* 255 23 0.0 0.0 -28.4 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.0
Miscellaneous other
205.2 -1.1 2.5 -75.7 -22.7 79.0 -0.1 0.6 187.7

provisions

* Amount adjusted as at 1 January 2019 due to IFRS 16

Provisions for compensation to customers include compensation agreements not yet settled as at
the balance sheet date.

Due to the initial application of IFRS 16, the provisions for expected losses from onerous contracts
and the expected losses from rental obligations in the total amount of 630.3 million euros were
offset against the right-of-use assets as at 1 January 2019. In the previous year, a provision for
location-specific onerous contracts was recognised in the amount of the current contractual
obligation.

The provisions for expected losses from rental obligations relate primarily to the Retail International
business segment. These are outside the scope of IFRS 16 and as such were not offset.

The miscellaneous other provisions cover a large number of individual matters.
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Breakdown of Expected Maturities of Other Provisions

in million € 31 Dec. 2019

Between1  After more

Up to 1 year Total Up to 1 year
Expected maturity P v and 5 years than 5 years P v
Compensation to customers 166.5 0 0 166.5 130.4
Restoration costs 3.7 11.3 29.9 44.9 4.8
Court, litigation, legal consulting
costs 22.6 10.8 0.0 334 26.1
Other taxes 24.8 0.0 0.0 24.8 28.3
Other expected losses 19.9 13 0.0 21.2 211
Expected losses from equity
accounting 15.0 0.4 0.0 15.4 14.9
Expected losses from lease
obligations 0.5 1.6 6.4 8.5 30.3
Provisions for guarantees and
courtesy services 5.8 13 0.0 7.1 6.0
Rental risks 7.1 0.0 0.0 7.1 6.3
Interest on taxes 5.0 0.4 0.0 5.4 3.7
Expected losses from onerous
contracts 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 92.5
Miscellaneous other provisions 166.7 8.6 124 187.7 180.9

34. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Breakdown of Other Financial Liabilities

Remaining term

More than 1
Up to 1 year year
Lease liabilities 1,522.2 8,583.0 10,105.2
Liabilities to banks 563.8 1,436.8 2,000.6
Liabilities from other loans 33.9 297.9 331.8
Liabilities to associates 57.8 0.0 57.8
Interest rate swaps 0.0 8.6 8.6
Liabilities to other long-term investments 4.4 0.0 4.4
Other liabilities from financial transactions 32.2 0.2 324
Non-controlling interest in the net assets of companies 0.0 66.5 66.5
Accounts receivable with a credit balance 483 0.0 48.3
Liabilities from derivative financial instruments 18.3 0.0 18.3

Please see note 23 "Leases" for notes on the development of lease liabiliti

31 Dec. 2018

Between1  After more
and 5 years than 5 years

0.0 0.0 130.4
1.1 26.7 42.6
10.9 0.0 37.0

0.0 0.0 283

0.0 0.0 211

0.4 0.0 153
66.4 74.0 170.7

13 0.0 7.3

0.0 0.0 6.3

0.3 0.0 4.0

253.3 158.2 504.0
1.1 133 205.3
ELTR] 272.2 1,172.3

Remaining term

More than 1
Up to 1 year year

65.0 789.4 854.4

438.6 1,004.3 1,442.9

206.1 294.6 500.7

133 0.0 133

5.0 0.0 5.0

109.0 5.8 114.8

67.1 2.1 69.2

904.1 2,096.2 3,000.3

0.0 14.7 14.7
51.6 0.0 51.6
135 0.0 13.5

969.2 2,110.9 3,080.1

es.

Of the reported liabilities to banks, 169.9 million euros (previous year: 170.0 million euros) are

secured by land charges.
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Interest Rate Structure of Fixed-interest Liabilities to Banks

_ = n

Weighted
interest rate Volume

Interest rate

. asa % of as at balance
lock-in

original sheet date
borrowing
Up to 1 year 4.61 7.1
Liabilities to banks Fixed-interest million € 1to 5years 2.38 122.2
i More than 5
(excluding current account) 0.75 40.3

years

T S I e s

The interest rate lock-in of medium-term financial liabilities to banks and the interest rate
adjustment dates of all fixed-interest financial liabilities to banks correspond to the interest lock-in
periods shown. Interest rate adjustment dates for variable interest rates occur within one year.

Liabilities to banks essentially comprise promissory note loans for general corporate financing, loans
to finance real estate and short-term lines of credit. A further promissory note loan amounting to
537.0 million euros was raised in the financial year, of which 437.0 million had been paid out as at
the balance sheet date and reported under non-current liabilities to banks. The remaining 100.0
million euros will be paid out in January 2020. Of the 1,000.0-million-euro promissory note loan
raised in 2018, an amount of 881.5 million euros was recognised under non-current liabilities to
banks and 118.5 million euros under non-current liabilities from other loans. Furthermore, an
amount of 494.8 million euros (previous year: 379.0 million euros) had been drawn down from the
syndicated loan and other lines of credit.

Non-current liabilities from other loans include a promissory note loan totalling 175.0 million euros
(previous year: 175.0 million euros) and a portion of the promissory note loan raised in 2018 (118.5
million euros). Other short-term loans related primarily to the demand and term deposits set aside
for the short term by related parties. The change is attributable primarily to the initial consolidation
of RZAG (see note 3 "Consolidation").

Disclosures on the material debt financing available can be found under "Liquidity Risk" in note 39
"Financial Risk Management".

The loans from associates in the financial year related to current loan liabilities to REWE partner
companies.

A number of interest rate swaps were entered into to hedge against interest rate risk. The liabilities
from derivative financial instruments essentially concern currency derivatives. Further explanations
of changes in derivative financial instruments can be found in note 40 "Further Disclosures on
Financial Instruments".

The liabilities to other long-term investments include both liabilities from intercompany transactions
and loans. The change is primarily attributable to the initial consolidation of RZAG.

The other liabilities from financial transactions primarily consisted of liabilities from current
settlement accounts with related parties and loans from affiliates that are not fully consolidated for
reasons of immateriality. This change is likewise attributable primarily to the initial consolidation of
RZAG.
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Non-controlling interests in the net assets of companies relate to shares in consolidated companies
that guarantee the holder the right to return them to the issuer for cash or cash equivalents or other
financial assets. They include shares in partnerships and the co-operative shares in RZF. As at the
balance sheet date, the total of 505,412 (previous year: 432,000) co-operative shares with a par
value of 1.00 euro each were held by 16 members (previous year: 16). As part of the acquisition of
77.4 per cent of the shares of RZAG, there was an increase of 73,412 co-operative shares with a value
of 0.1 million euros. The total uncalled liability of all members amounted to 0.5 million euros as at 31
December 2019.

All financial liabilities, with the exception of liabilities from derivative financial instruments and
liabilities from finance leases (see note 23 "Leases") are recognised at the amount repayable.

35. TRADE PAYABLES

Breakdown of Trade Payables

Remaining term Remaining term
More than 1 More than 1
Up to 1 year year Up to 1 year year
Trade payables to third parties 6,978.5 131 6,991.6 6,650.6 9.1 6,659.7
Trade payables to associates 1.2 0.0 1.2 1.2 0.0 1.2
Trade payables to equity investments 0.0 0.0 0.0 70.9 0.0 70.9
Trade payables to joint ventures 0.0 0.0 0.0 5.9 0.0 5.9
Trade payables to affiliated companies 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

The increase in trade payables to third parties is primarily in relation to the balance sheet date.

Due to the initial consolidation of RZAG, trade payables to equity investments and joint ventures
were no longer recognised in financial year 2019. See note 3 "Consolidation" for further information
on the RZAG acquisition.
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36. OTHER LIABILITIES

Breakdown of Other Liabilities

Remaining term Remaining term

More than 1 More than 1
Up to 1 year year Up to 1 year year

Prepayments received on account of orders 593.7 0.0 593.7 559.6 0.0 559.6
Liabilities from advance travel services 197.0 0.0 197.0 192.6 0.0 192.6
Liabilities from other taxes 171.2 0.0 171.2 152.3 0.0 152.3
Provisions with the nature of a liability 157.8 0.0 157.8 135.6 0.0 135.6
Liabilities from customer loyalty programmes 128.2 0.0 128.2 106.8 0.0 106.8
Liabilities from merchandise/gift vouchers 117.4 0.0 117.4 95.2 0.0 95.2
Occupancy costs 78.7 0.0 78.7 69.5 0.0 69.5
Deferred income 341 40.4 74.5 25.7 245 50.2
Mutual indemnity society 43.4 0.0 434 42.2 0.0 42.2
Unfavourable contracts 39 1.1 15.0 17.9 121.9 139.8
Liabilities from prepayments and security deposits 8.4 0.0 8.4 10.6 0.0 10.6
Liabilities to cities and municipalities

(excluding taxes) 4.4 0.0 4.4 4.0 0.0 4.0
Miscellaneous 147.3 15 148.8 159.6 13 160.9

Prepayments received on account of orders are primarily recorded in the Travel and Tourism
business segment. They comprise deferred performance by tour operators for travel to be completed
after the balance sheet date. The increase was primarily attributable to the change in payment
terms. Booking numbers also increased slightly due to the insolvency of a competitor, which
increased the prepayments received.

Liabilities from advance travel services relate primarily to outstanding invoices for third-party
services that the tour operators use for their own travel products and that had not been billed by the
service providers as at the balance sheet date.

Liabilities from other taxes relate primarily to value-added tax as well as payroll and church tax.

The various provisions with the nature of a liability were recognised for, among other things, agent
commissions, lease obligations, administrative expenses and deferred income for power and gas
invoices. The increase was related primarily to outstanding electricity bills due to new regulatory
requirements on suppliers. At the same time, the share of invoiced electricity purchases within trade
payables declined slightly. In addition, the increase is also partly attributable to price increases for
electricity and network usage.

Liabilities from customer loyalty programmes increased due to factors including the introduction of
the "J6-Card" customer loyalty programme in Austria. Liabilities under the "Payback" customer
loyalty programme also increased.

Deferred income liabilities contain, among others, building cost subsidies and deferred service fees.

Liabilities from contracts are recognised for contracts assumed in the context of a business
combination, if their contractual conditions were less favourable than the market conditions at the
time of acquisition. Liabilities for unfavourable contracts are paid down on a straight-line basis over
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the remaining term of the underlying contract. The reduction in this item resulted from the
application of IFRS 16. For the most part, these liabilities were set off against the right-of-use assets
as at the date of initial application (see note 2 "Application and Effects of New or Revised Accounting
Standards")

37.CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The cash flow statement shows changes in cash and cash equivalents less overdraft facilities during
the financial year. A distinction is drawn between changes resulting from operating activities,
investing activities and financing activities. The discontinued operations' cash flows from operating
activities, investing activities and financing activities are reported separately from those of continuing
operations in accordance with IFRS 5. Currently, there are no discontinued operations.

The disclosures below relate to the cash flows of continuing operations.

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

During the period under review, the cash provided by operating activities increased from
1,473.1 million euros to 3,272.4 million euros. The 1,799.3 million euro increase resulted primarily
from the application of IFRS 16.

While in the previous year lease expenses were primarily reported within operating activities,
following the transition to IFRS 16 the principal portion of the lease liability is now reported within
financing activities (payments by lessees to reduce lease liabilities). The interest portion is reported
within operating activities (interest paid).

The cash flow from operating activities was also increased by a decline in receivables from direct
debits and card payments, which was in relation to the balance sheet date. Adjusted for working
capital effects (change in inventories and in trade receivables and payables), the cash flow from
operating activities increased from 1,067.7 million euros to 3,039.1 million euros.

In the financial year, the other non-cash transactions amounting to -354.4 million euros (previous
year: -1.2 million euros) related to non-cash measurement effects arising from the acquisition
achieved in stages of shares in REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG und REWE-Zentral AG GbR, Cologne, in the
amount of -166.1 million euros, as well as primarily the recognition directly in equity of -135.7 million
euros for the remeasurement of pensions and similar obligations (previous year: 29.8 million euros).

Of the interest paid in the amount of 583.1 million euros (previous year: 53.5 million euros), 542.6
million euros (previous year: 21.1 million euros) resulted from leases entered into as lessee.

The interest received in the amount of 15.9 million euros (previous year: 19.9 million euros) includes
3.0 million euros (previous year: 0.0 million euros) in interest received from leases entered into as
lessor.

During the financial year, borrowing costs in the amount of 0.4 million euros (previous year:
0.3 million euros) were recognised.
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Cash Flow from Investing Activities

The cash used in investing activities amounted to -2,392.4 million euros in the financial year,
compared with -1,863.0 million euros in the previous year. The 529.4-million-euro increase in cash
used as against the previous year resulted primarily from increased payments for business
combinations and the acquisition of shares in consolidated companies.

The proceeds from disposals of financial assets and companies accounted for using the equity
method included an amount of 170.3 million euros (previous year: 153.8 million euros) that arose
from the repayment of loans. Of this figure, 141.3 million euros (previous year: 120.4 million euros)
related to loans to associates.

Proceeds from the repayment of loans amounting to 59.7 million euros were also received in the
financial year (previous year: 89.8 million euros). Of this figure, 4.7 million euros (previous year:
14.3 million euros) related to loans to joint ventures.

Investments in non-current assets amounted to 1,752.0 million euros, (previous year: 1,791.4 million
euros). They related mainly to expansion investments in the store network and replacement and
expansion investments at stores, warehouse locations and manufacturing companies.

Under purchases of financial assets, an amount of 191.6 million euros (previous year: 171.1 million
euros) related to loans granted. Of this figure, an amount of 152.5 million euros (previous year: 126.5
million euros) was granted to associates. In addition, payments of 122.5 million euros (previous year:
111.3 million euros) were made for the grant of loans.

Of the proceeds from the sale of shares in consolidated companies amounting to 117.0 million euros
(previous year: -0.8 million euros), 95.0 million euros resulted from the sale of shares in
commercetools GmbH, Munich, and 22.0 million euros resulted from the sale of shares in DER
Business Travel GmbH, Cologne. See also note 3 "Consolidation" for details of the sales.

The excess proceeds from business combinations and the acquisition of shares in consolidated
companies amounting to 13.5 million euros (previous year: 20.8 million euros) resulted from the
acquisition of shares in RZAG and its subsidiaries.

Of the payments for business combinations and the acquisition of shares in consolidated companies
amounting to 769.7 million euros (previous year: 103.7 million euros), 761.8 million euros resulted
from a payment to acquire shares in Lekkerland AG, Frechen, and limited partner shares in
Lekkerland AG & Co. KG, Frechen, with transfer of the shares taking economic effect as at 1 January
2020. See also note 42 "Events Occurring After the Balance Sheet Date" for details of the acquisition.

In addition, payments of 4.3 million euros resulted from the acquisition of shares in K 2
Liegenschaftsverwertungsgesellschaft mbH, Klagenfurt, Austria, and payments of 2.8 million euros
were made to acquire shares in Travel Brands S.A., Bucharest, Romania. Further payments of 0.8
million euros resulted from the acquisition of shares in travelXperts ag, Oberuzwil, Switzerland, and
in its subsidiary Travel Partner AG Uzwil, Uzwil, Switzerland, and shares in Online Travel Information
AG, Koblenz, Switzerland. Please likewise see note 3 "Consolidation" for details of the acquisitions.
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Cash Flow from Financing Activities

The cash flow from financing activities was -951.3 million euros. The change of -1,323.0 million euros
as against the previous year resulted primarily from the application of IFRS 16, as already mentioned,
and the associated changes to how lessees present lease payments.

With respect to the payments by lessees to reduce lease liabilities amounting to 1,486.3 million
euros (previous year: cash repayments of finance lease liabilities amounting to 66.9 million euros),
please see note 23 "Leases". The payments only relate to the principal portion of the lease liability
payable by the lessee. The interest payments are presented under interest paid within the cash flow
from operating activities.

In contrast to the payments by lessees to reduce lease liabilities, the raising and repayment of loans
resulted in a net cash inflow of 553.7 million euros (previous year: 524.4 million euros).

A promissory note loan totalling 537.0 million euros was raised in connection with the prepayment
for the acquisition of shares in Lekkerland AG, Frechen, and the limited partner shares in Lekkerland
AG & Co. KG, Frechen. This resulted in a cash inflow of 437.0 million euros in the financial year.

Further cash inflows of 400.0 million euros resulted from drawing down the syndicated loan.

In addition, the drawdown and repayment of other lines of credit gave rise to proceeds of 14.8
million euros and payments of 299.0 million euros.

Furthermore, cash proceeds of 19.8 million euros (previous year: 9.5 million euros) and cash
repayments of 4.9 million euros (previous year: 2.1 million euros) in relation to borrowings from
affiliated companies and associates also contributed to the cash inflows from financing activities.

In addition, the raising and repayment of loans to related parties led to cash proceeds of 76.0 million
euros (previous year: 748.2 million euros) and cash payments of 96.7 million euros (previous year:
617.6 million euros).

The paid dividends, compensation obligations and other interests of 5.4 million euros (previous year:
31.8 million euros) resulted from payments to non-controlling interests.

The payments from changes in non-controlling interests included payments of 31.3 million euros to
acquire the remaining interests in Supermarkte Nord Verwaltungs GmbH and Supermarkte Nord
Vertriebs GmbH & Co. KG, both with registered office in Kiel. See also note 3 "Consolidation". By
contrast, proceeds of 18.0 million euros were received from the sale of shares in real estate

companies.

In the previous year, the change in cash funds due to changes in the scope of consolidation was
attributable to the initial consolidation of Xtravel AB, Stockholm, Sweden.

Liabilities from Financing Activities
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Liabilities from financing activities related in particular to lease liabilities, loans and demand and time
deposits from banks, and promissory note loans. In addition, the Group also had loans from
affiliated, associated, related and joint entities.

Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities

Other financial liabilities as at 1 Jan. 3,080.1 2,685.6

Effects of initial application of IFRS 16 9,295.2 0.0
Other financial liabilities as at 1 Jan. after initial application of IFRS 16 b
Non-interest bearing financial liabilities -79.9 -92.2
Financial liabilities as at 1 Jan. m
Liabilities from operating intercompany transactions -169.2 -254.0
Bank overdrafts -4.4 -1.8
Other liabilities from operating activities -10.5 -10.3
Liabilities from financing activities as at 1 Jan. m
Net change in cash funds -932.6 457.6

of which cash proceeds from borrowings 996.1 1,772.1

of which cash repayments of borrowings -442.4 -1,247.6

of which cash payments of finance lease liabilities -1,486.3 -66.9

Net change in non-cash funds 1,282.4 31.2

of which additions from leases (lessee) 1,422.6 0.0

of which additions from finance leases 0.0 21.6

of which due to changes in the scope of consolidation -126.7 0.0

of which due to currency translation 8.4 -1.1

of which due to reclassifications -24.8 0.0

of which due to other changes 2.9 10.7

Liabilities from financing activities as at 31 Dec.

Liabilities from operating intercompany transactions 49.7 169.3
Bank overdrafts 9.4 4.4
Other liabilities from operating activities 20.6 10.5
ol

Non-interest bearing financial liabilities 133.1 79.8

Other financial liabilities as at 31 Dec. 12,673.9 3,080.1

Other non-cash changes in liabilities from financing activities amounting to 2.9 million euros in the
financial year were due primarily to the change in non-controlling interests.
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Other Disclosures

38. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES

The purpose of the Group's financial management is to ensure a maximum degree of financial
flexibility as well as sufficient scope for action regarding the Group's operational, financial and
strategic business development at all times. REWE Group is committed to maintaining a strong
financial profile and a solid credit rating. In maintaining the financial profile, REWE Group focuses on
internationally accepted, rating-relevant financial ratios. All strategic business decisions are reviewed
with regard to their impact on these key figures.

A financial policy has been defined for REWE Group that specifies its most important key figure as
follows:

Net financial debt
Leverage factor* =

EBITDA

* The leverage factor is not a component of IFRS accounting standards and may be defined and calculated differently by different companies.

The basis for calculating the debt factor changed with the introduction of IFRS 16 on January 1, 2019.
The leverage factor is the ratio of net debt to EBITDA of the REWE Group. Due to the accounting
requirements of IFRS 16, lease liabilities are recognised directly in the balance sheet and do not have
to be taken into additional consideration as against the previous year. The definition of this key
figure therefore takes into account the liabilities recognised in the balance sheet, including lease
liabilities in accordance with IFRS 16. At the same time, IFRS 16 has changed the calculation of
EBITDA as lease expenses are no longer included in EBITDA and it is no longer necessary to adjust
rents by means of EBITDAR. A maximum leverage factor of four (previous year: three) has been
specified for REWE Group. It was necessary to increase the maximum leverage factor in order to
maintain the same headroom as in previous years after applying IFRS 16.

Should an extraordinary market situation force management to exceed this debt limit, measures
must be developed to bring the ratio back to the target level. As at 31 December 2019, the first-time
newly determined ratio is 3.2 (previous year: 2.5 according to the old calculation basis).

Based on capital market principles, long-range capital management is also guided by the decision
with respect to variable and fixed-rate borrowing.

Short-term liquidity management for REWE Group is conducted on a monthly basis for the
subsequent year and is updated continuously. The medium-term liquidity requirement is calculated
for each calendar year based on the medium-term plan and thus serves as the basis for the financing
strategy.

REWE Group has assigned a central treasury committee to manage financial risks (e.g. foreign
exchange risks, interest rate risks and credit risks). Treasury committees also exist at the level of the
business segments. These bodies serve to further the mutual exchange of information, shaping
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opinions and encouraging close consultation among the different corporate units on issues and
strategies of overall importance.

Moreover, the expertise concentrated in REWE Group is used to advise and support domestic and
international REWE Group companies in all relevant financial matters. Relevant issues range from
fundamental considerations concerning the financing of acquisition and investment projects to on-
site support for local financial officers of individual group companies in discussions with banks and
financial services providers.

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to various financial risks through its operating activities, particularly foreign
exchange risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, commaodity price risk and credit risk.

These risks are systematically managed in accordance with the Group financial management
guidelines. Financial risks are identified, assessed and hedged in close co-operation with the
operating units. A central treasury committee discusses and decides on risk policy and strategy.

The operational framework, lines of responsibility, financial reporting and control mechanisms for
financial instruments are defined in detail in the respective guidelines. These guidelines call in
particular for a clear functional separation between trading and settlement activities.

Comprehensive management of financial risks focuses on the unpredictability of developments on
the financial markets and aims to minimise the potential for negative impact on the financial position
of the Group. Mitigating risk generally takes precedence over considerations of profitability.

Forward contracts, swaps and options are used to hedge interest rate, foreign exchange, and
commodities price risks. These are recognised under other financial assets or other financial
liabilities.

Fair Values of the Derivative Financial Instruments

Fair value Fair value
- Assets - - Liabilities -
31 Dec. 2019 31 Dec. 2018 31 Dec. 2019 31 Dec. 2018
Interest rate swaps 0.0 0.0 8.6 5.0
Currency derivatives 17.2 31.8 18.3 11.7
of which: within cash flow hedges 143 25.8 6.9 7.2
of which: outside a hedging relationship 2.9 6.0 11.4 4.5

Commodity derivatives 0.

4 0.0 0.0 1.8

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group has international operations and is therefore exposed to potential foreign exchange risks.
Foreign exchange risks (i.e. potential impairment losses on financial instruments due to exchange
rate changes) exist in particular where assets and liabilities are denominated or will routinely arise in

a currency other than the Group's functional currency. In accordance with the Group financial
management guidelines, receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies are hedged by
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means of derivatives in accordance with the defined strategies. The Group's counterparties in
transactions involving derivative financial instruments are top-rated banks.

Foreign exchange risks may be hedged using only marketable derivative financial instruments whose
correct financial engineering and accounting treatment must be assured in the Group's treasury
systems.

In the Travel and Tourism business segment and at RZAG, future payments from foreign currency
transactions are hedged through the conclusion of corresponding derivatives and reported as cash
flow hedges. In both cases, these are hedging procedures (hedging of highly probable forecast
transactions).

In the context of managing foreign exchange risks associated with the tourism business, liabilities
denominated in foreign currency (hedged items) resulting from procuring tourism services are
hedged by using exchange rate hedges to mitigate the risk of exchange rate factors negatively
impacting on earnings. These foreign exchange transaction risks arise on the date on which the
calculation rates for the various seasonal classifications are set. The hedged transactions on these
dates are planned foreign exchange liabilities that are realised only as the corresponding account
entries are subsequently made. As part of currency hedging, the hedged transactions are offset
against forward exchange contracts, currency swaps and currency options. intended to hedge the
underlying transaction against exchange rate movements recognised in profit or loss. If the
requirements for applying hedge accounting in accordance with IFRS 9 are met, the hedging
relationship is recognised as a cash flow hedge. 100% of the notional volume is designated upon
conclusion of forward exchange contracts and currency swaps. If the companies assume that there is
no longer a high probability that the hedged transaction will occur (for example, if payments are
postponed to another season), the hedge is de-designated and hedge accounting is discontinued.
The current currency options in this context are recognised as stand-alone derivatives.

RZAG also concludes forward exchange contracts and currency swaps. These are used to hedge
against exchange rate fluctuations arising from merchandise management contracts. As at the date
of the hedge, the hedged items are planned purchases in foreign currencies, which materialise over
time from master contracts to individual orders. If the requirements for applying hedge accounting in
accordance with IFRS 9 are met, the hedging relationship is recognised as a cash flow hedge.
However, this only applies to forward exchange contracts that have been concluded. 90.0% of the
notional volume is designated upon conclusion and designation of the derivatives. 10.0% of the
notional volume of the derivatives is not designated in the hedging relationship and is recognised as
a stand-alone derivative. If RZAG does not assume that the expected hedged transaction will occur
(for example, if the delivery is postponed to the subsequent month or if there is no delivery), the
corresponding derivative hedging instruments are de-designated and hedge accounting is
discontinued. Currency swaps are recognised as stand-alone derivatives.

Moreover, short-term forward exchange contracts and currency swaps are entered into to hedge the
foreign exchange risk arising from foreign-currency receivables and liabilities already recognised.
These are recognised as stand-alone derivatives at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notional Amounts of the Currency Derivatives Used in Cash Flow Hedges for Each Currency

1SO code

AED
AUD
CAD
CHF
CNY
DKK
GBP

INR
JpY
MAD
NOK
NzD

RUB
SEK
SGD
THB
TND
usb
ZAR

Country

United Arab Emirates
Australia
Canada
Switzerland
China

Denmark
United Kingdom
Hong Kong
India

Japan

Morocco
Norway

New Zealand
Qatar

Russian Federation
Sweden
Singapore
Thailand
Tunisia

USA

South Africa

Currency

Dirham
Dollar
Dollar
Franc
Yuan
Krone
Pound Sterling
Dollar
Rupee
Yen
Dirham
Krone
Dollar
Riyal
Rouble
Krona
Dollar
Baht
Dinar
Dollar
Rand

Purchase Sale

Notional amount

Notional amount
in million units —

in million units —

2019 2019
153.0
20.6
223
12.5 92.5
21.8 0.0
8.0 132.5
6.7 50.5
5.1 0.0
326.0 0.0
348.0 0.0
12.1 0.0
38.7 585.0
19.9 0.0
213 0.0
2.0 0.0
22.0 1,699.5
213 0.0
2,039.7 0.0
4.7 0.0
346.0 0.0
358.1 0.0

Purchase
Notional amount

in million units —
2018

Sale

Notional amount

in million units —

2018

199.9

26.0

25.3
10.7 95.8
8.5 0.0
7.0 195.0
10.6 43.0
8.5 0.0
419.0 0.0
206.3 0.0
23.7 0.0
38.8 760.0
22.4 0.0
0.0 0.0
0.0 0.0
95.7 1,519.6
4.2 0.0
2,689.8 0.0
8.8 0.0
265.6 0.0
463.9 0.0

As at the reporting date, the currency derivatives used mature in a total of up to 17 months. The

applicable average exchange rates in the financial year were as follows:

Average Exchange Rate of the Currency Derivatives Used in Cash Flow Hedges

1SO code

AED
AUD
CAD
CHF
CNY
DKK
GBP
HKD
INR
JPY
MAD
NOK
NzD

RUB
SEK
SGD
THB
TND
usb
ZAR

United Arab Emirates
Australia
Canada
Switzerland
China

Denmark
United Kingdom
Hong Kong
India

Japan

Morocco
Norway

New Zealand
Qatar

Russian Federation
Sweden
Singapore
Thailand
Tunisia

USA

South Africa

Currency

Dirham
Dollar
Dollar
Franc
Yuan
Krone
Pound Sterling
Dollar
Rupee
Yen
Dirham
Krone
Dollar
Riyal
Rouble
Krona
Dollar
Baht
Dinar
Dollar
Rand

Average rate per € J Average rate per € ] Average rate per € ] Average rate per €

3.235 :
1.674 :
1.494 :
1.095 1.049
7.793 :
6.749 0.702
0.895 0.827
8.933 :
81.230 :
122.251 E
11.232 E
9.489 0.949
1.771 E
3.716 E
72.154 E
10.223 10.142
1.548 E
29.166 E
3.581 :
1.124 :
17.649 :

3.699 g
1.639 g
1.524 g
1.147 1.069
7.885 g
6.478 0.734
0.868 0.824
9.317 g
85.008 g
124.845 g
11.535 g
9.194 0.947
1.760 g

9.331 9.784
1.602 |
34.436 g
3.633 g
1.211 g
17.214 g

Gains and losses from the measurement of stand-alone derivatives are reported under other

operating income and other operating expenses. The currency translation effects from the hedged

items are also reported in the operating result. The fact that measurement effects may arise from

stand-alone derivatives before the corresponding hedged items (such as advance travel services) are

recognised may cause shifts in the operating result. However, since the volume of stand-alone

derivatives is low, the associated effects on earnings are immaterial.
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Gains and losses from the measurement of stand-alone derivatives also include effects from
terminating previously existing hedges. No de-designation expenses were incurred in the financial
year (previous year: 0.1 million euros), however de-designation income of 0.1 million euros was
recognised (previous year: 0.3 million euros).

The carrying amounts of the hedging instruments are presented in the table in note 39 "Financial Risk
Management". The change in value used to determine ineffective portions amounted to -6.4 million
euros (previous year: 27.6 million euros) for hedging instruments and -6.0 million euros (previous
year: 27.3 million euros) for hedged items. The amount of hedged risk (existing hedges) recognised in
other comprehensive income amounted to -5.1 million euros.

Ineffective portions from changes in the value of the designated components of hedges can result
from credit valuation adjustments relating to the own default risk or the risk of the counterparty
(debit and credit valuation adjustments). Furthermore, these can arise from gains or losses upon
initial recognition resulting from exchange rate fluctuations between the trading date and the
conclusion of the transaction with the bank (day one gains or losses). The effects of these ineffective
portions are also recognised in other operating expenses or other operating income.

Effects of ineffective portions on the income statement

S T T
R —— Y] R

of which from designated components
of which from non-designated components 0.2 0.0

of which: other effects

T — m

of which: other effects

e YT BT

The conclusion of currency derivatives meant that fluctuations in exchange rates did not have any
significant impact on the result.

For an explanation of the effects of cash flow hedges on the equity attributable to the shareholders
of the parent companies, please refer to the changes in the reserve for cash flow hedges presented
in the statement of changes in equity. In addition, the statement of comprehensive income presents
for all shareholders the amounts recognised in the income statement and those taken directly to
equity and thus the impact of cash flow hedges on other comprehensive income and on net income
for the year.

The result from currency transactions would have been approximately 18.5 million euros (previous
year: 18.9 million euros) lower if the euro had been ten percentage points stronger against the key
foreign currencies on the balance sheet date. If the euro had been ten percentage points weaker
against the key foreign currencies, the result from currency transactions would have been
approximately 18.5 million euros (previous year: 18.9 million euros) higher. Interest rate effects have
not been taken into account.

The equity from currency transactions would be approximately 12.1 million euros lower (previous
year: 7.2 million euros) if the euro had been ten percentage points stronger against the key foreign
currencies on the balance sheet date. If the euro had been ten percentage points weaker against the
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key foreign currencies, equity from currency transactions would have been approximately

12.1 million euros higher (previous year: 7.2 million euros). Of this figure, 32.2 million euros
(previous year: 22.8 million euros) is attributable to changes in the euro exchange rate against the
dollar. Interest rate effects have not been taken into account.

Liquidity Risk
The aim of liquidity management is to ensure that, through RIF the consolidated companies always

have access to sufficient liquidity on the basis of adequate undrawn lines of credit so that no liquidity
risk exists should unexpected events have a negative financial impact on liquidity.

Loans, fixed-term deposits and overnight money are used as financial instruments.

The Group essentially has access to the following debt capital funds currently available:

31 Dec. 2019

3 December 2024;

Syndicated loan 2,000.0 2,000.0 max. term 3 December 2025
Promissory note loan 1,000.0 1,000.0 28 February 2021 to 28 February 2028
Promissory note loan 537.0 0.0 20 December 2022 to 20 December 2029
Promissory note loan 175.0 175.0 2 September 2024

The Group has access to a syndicated loan that includes credit lines of 500 million euros. The
syndicated loan was drawn down in the amount of 400 million euros as at the balance sheet date
(previous year: no drawdown); the credit lines were drawn down in the amount of 14.8 million euros.

A promissory note loan amounting to 537.0 million euros was raised in the financial year, of which
437.0 million euros had been paid out as at the balance sheet date. The remaining 100.0 million
euros will be paid out in January 2020. The promissory note loan comprises various maturity tranches
of three to ten years.

The three bilateral credit lines totalling 275.0 million euros as of the prior-year reporting date
(drawdown of 204.0 million euros as at 31 December 2018) were no longer in place as at the balance
sheet date.

In addition, there are other bilateral lines of credit between individual companies and banks.

Internal cash pooling is aimed at reducing the amount of debt financing and at optimising cash and
capital investments. Cash pooling allows the use of the excess liquidity of individual companies to
internally finance the cash requirements of other consolidated companies. The financial control
system ensures the optimal use of the group companies' financial resources.

The Group did not significantly offset financial assets and financial liabilities with non-group
companies. There are global netting agreements in connection with the central settlement business.

The following tables provide information on the contractually agreed, undiscounted interest and
principal payments for financial liabilities. Where there is a right to terminate a loan agreement, a
cash outflow on the earliest possible termination date has been assumed.
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Liquidity Analysis of Financial Liabilities

31 Dec. 2019

2025 and
beyond

in million €

Carrying
amount

Primary financial
instruments

Contractually
agrees cash

1 year and less 1to 2 years 2 to 3 years 3 to 4 years 4 to 5 years More than 5

flows years

Other non-current

financial liabilities 16.9 1,283.6 1,341.0 1,363.4 1,079.0 5,366.6
Non-current trade

payables 0.0 5.2 33 2.3 1.3 1.0
Other current

financial liabilities 2,270.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Current trade

payables 6,979.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Loan commitments 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 100.7 0.0

31 Dec. 2018 2024 and
beyond

in million €

Carrying
amount

Primary financial
instruments

Contractually
agrees cash 1 year and less 1to 2 years 2 to 3 years 3 to 4 years 4 to 5 years More than 5
flows years

Other non-current

financial liabilities 2,110.9 13.8 137.2 194.3 1345 428.0 1,440.3
Non-current trade

payables 9.1 0.0 3.1 25 1.2 1.9 0.5
Other current

financial liabilities 950.2 977.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Current trade

payables 6,728.6 6,728.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Loan commitments 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Cash outflows from primary financial instruments include the interest component in addition to the
principal repayment, so that the sum of the cash outflows may exceed the carrying amount in the
financial year under review.

The loan commitments are loans firmly committed in the financial year, with a term beginning in
2020.

All financial liabilities in the liquidity analysis relate to primary financial instruments. In addition,
derivative financial instruments amounting to 27.3 million euros (previous year: 19.0 million euros)
are reported on the balance sheet.
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Liquidity Analysis of Derivatives

2020

2021 and

beyond

Cash flows

Cash flows

Financial assets

Proceeds 973.6 4.8

Payments 955.4 4.7
Financial liabilities

Proceeds 1,048.5 214

Payments 1,067.3 213
I
Financial liabilities

Proceeds 0.0 0.0

Payments 1.4 7.3

2019

2020 and

beyond

Cash flows

Cash flows

Financial assets

Proceeds 1,121.0 8.0

Payments 1,087.4 8.0
Financial liabilities

Proceeds 908.8 1.2

Payments 918.2 1.2

Financial liabilities
Proceeds 0.0 1.2
Payments 1.4 8.7

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is generally caused by fluctuations in market interest rates for interest-bearing
assets and interest-bearing liabilities. All assets and liabilities with variable interest rates or short-
term interest rates that are fixed expose the Group to cash flow risk. Fixed interest-bearing liabilities
with extended fixed interest periods result in a fair-value interest-rate risk. At the end of the year,
8.5 per cent (previous year: 11.8 per cent) of liabilities to banks had fixed interest rates.

Interest-bearing assets and liabilities may impact earnings and equity as a result of interest rate
fluctuations. These risks are reported on the basis of a sensitivity analysis, which shows the effects
that would result from changes in the relevant risk variables — in particular interest rates. These
changes are determined on the balance sheet date, using reasonable discretion.

Under the agreements dated 28 February 2018, RIF concluded four interest rate swaps with different
external banks to hedge variable interest payments on various tranches of a promissory note loan.
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Payment terms for interest rate swaps

Notional Fixed interest
Maturity volume rate
in million € in%

28 February 2025 35.0 0.878
28 February 2026 35.0 0.897
28 February 2027 455 0.873
28 February 2028 31.0 1.225

These interest rate swaps are accounted for as cash flow hedges. Since the critical contractual terms
of the hedged item and the hedging instrument as well as the term and the notional volume match,
no ineffective portions are recognised. The reserve for cash flow hedges in the statement of changes
in equity includes 5.4 million euros (previous year: 2.8 million euros) in losses attributable to the
aforementioned interest rate swaps at RIF.

In terms of interest rate hedging transactions entered into as part of cash flow hedge accounting,
equity would have been approximately 8.8 million euros higher (previous year: 9.8 million euros) if
the interest rate level had been 100 basis points higher at the balance sheet date. If the interest rate
level had been 100 basis points lower, equity would have been approximately 9.5 million euros lower
(previous year: 10.8 million euros). Since a decrease of 100 basis points in no longer expected, the
calculation for 2019 is additionally based on a decrease of 50 basis points. If the interest rate level
had been 50 basis points lower, equity would have been approximately 4.7 million euros lower
(previous year: 5.3 million euros).

In addition, there is an interest rate risk from primary, variable-rate financial instruments. If interest
rate levels had been 100 basis points higher, the interest result would have been 7.4 million euros
lower (previous year: 6.4 million euros). If interest rate levels had been 100 basis points lower, the
interest result would have been 7.4 million euros higher (previous year: 6.4 million euros). Since a
decrease of 100 basis points in no longer expected, the calculation for 2019 is additionally based on a
decrease of 50 basis points. If the interest rate level had been 50 basis points lower, the financial
result would have improved by approximately 3.7 million.

Commodity Price Risk

Nova Airlines AB, Stockholm, Sweden, is exposed to commodity price risks. The hedging strategy
provides for the management of the company to estimate how much aviation fuel will be needed for
the next season and to hedge up to 90.0 per cent of the net exposure on a progressive basis over a
hedging period of 18 months prior to the start of the season. Since the contracts are denominated in
US dollars, currency hedges are also concluded.

The hedges are only concluded for Nova Airlines AB since the fuel prices in other transport contracts
are already fixed at the time the contracts are negotiated prior to the start of a season, rendering
hedges unnecessary.

In the financial year, Nova Airlines AB used derivatives in the form of commodities futures to hedge
the price of aviation fuel. The commodity hedges concluded were used to hedge a total volume of
24,100 metric tonnes (previous year: 22,000 metric tonnes) of aviation fuel. The derivatives used
currently have a maximum term of 17 months. The hedges are accounted for as cash flow hedges.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk from financial assets arises from the potential failure of a counterparty to meet its
obligations in whole or in part, thereby causing financial losses to the other party.

Potential credit risk exists in relation to cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, loans, other
receivables and derivative financial instruments with positive fair values.

Credit risk related to cash deposits, derivative contracts and financial transactions are mitigated by
entering into such transactions subject to fixed limits and only with banks that have a good to
excellent credit rating, which corresponds to an independent minimum rating of "investment grade".
Payment transactions are also settled through such banks. The credit rating and risk-bearing capacity
of the partner banks is monitored systematically on an ongoing basis. The functions of setting and
monitoring the limits are separated for trading and settlement operations.

Minimum credit rating requirements and individual caps on financial exposure have been established
as part of accounts receivable management, operational monitoring of debtors and ongoing
receivables monitoring.

Business dealings with large corporate customers are subject to a separate solvency monitoring
system. Compared with the overall exposure to credit risk, receivables from these counterparties are
not so large individually that they would create an exceptional concentration of risk. Sales to retail
customers are settled in cash or with EC cash cards or conventional credit cards. Cash logistics in the
retail trade are subject to a separate monitoring system.

Material loans are monitored by external rating agencies in order to identify potential credit risks
early.

In addition, sureties received (e.g. bank guarantees, transferred inventories) amounted to 157.3
million euros (previous year: 151.6 million euros).

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group applies the requirements of multi-step impairment model under IFRS 9 to financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The initial recognition of such financial receivables is based on a loss
allowance at an amount equal to the 12-month expected credit loss. If the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, a loss allowance at an amount equal to the lifetime expected
credit loss is recognised.

The credit risk of trade and lease receivables is calculated using the simplified approach for using a
provision matrix based on historical default rates adjusted for current and forward-looking
information. Objective indications of impairment are identified through the ongoing monitoring of
debtors and reflected in specific valuation allowances. If it can be reasonably expected that the
receivable is no longer realisable, it is derecognised. Indicators that a receivable — based on
reasonable assessment — is no longer realisable include, among others, the debtor's failure to agree
to a repayment plan with the Group.

Due to the large number of customers at different locations, there is no concentration of credit risk.
The change in loss allowances on trade receivables as at 31 December 2019 is presented in the table
below:
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Change in Loss Allowances on Trade Receivables

N I B

Additions 14.4 11.0
Reversals/utilisations -35.8 -20.7
Changes in scope of consolidation 0.5 -1.4
Exchange rate effects and other changes -1.0 0.4

As described above, trade receivables on which no loss allowances have been recognised are
recognised at their expected credit loss using a provision matrix.

The age structure of trade receivables on which no loss allowances have been recognised is
presented in the table below:

Breakdown of the Age Structure of Overdue Receivables on Which no Loss Allowances Have Been
Recognised in accordance with IFRS 9

31 Dec. 2019 Of which past due as at the balance sheet date and not impaired

Carrying Less than 30 Between 30 and [l Between 60 and i More than 90
amount days [N EW 90 days [.EW

Expected losses 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Trade Receivables 921.4 870.3 24.6 6.6 19.9
Impairments 2.2 1.6 0.0 0.0 0.6

31 Dec. 2018 Of which past due as at the balance sheet date and not impaired

Carrying Less than 30 Between 30 and [l Between 60 and i More than 90

amount days 60 days 90 days days

Expected losses 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Trade Receivables 723.3 690.3 12.2 4.6 16.2
Impairments 2.9 1.4 0.0 0.0 1.5

The lease receivables amounted to 46.7 million euros as at the balance sheet date and were neither
impaired nor overdue. Credit risk amounted to 0.5 million euros as at the date of initial application of
IFRS 16. It was recognised directly in equity as at 1 January 2019. Further information on the initial
application of IFRS 16 can be found in note 2 "Application and Effects of New or Revised Accounting
Standards". As at the balance sheet date, credit risk of 0.5 million euros was determined based on
the expected losses of 1.0 per cent.

The other financial assets within the scope of the general impairment model have a low credit risk.

Due to the large number of vendors at different locations, there is no risk concentration, which
means that the identified 12-month expected credit loss on other receivables from vendors is
immaterial. For an overview of financial assets measured at amortised cost, please refer to the
balance sheet by classes.

Only immaterial impairment losses were identified for cash and cash equivalents.
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The change in loss allowances on other financial assets as at 31 December 2019 is presented in the
table below:

Change in Loss Allowances on Other Financial Assets

T RN BT BT

As at 31 Dec. 2018 0.0 32.7 7.4
Additions 0.0 8.4 25.2
Reversals/disposals 0.0 -8.8 -2.5
Other change 0.0

T BTN BT BT

As at 1Jan. 2018 0.0 19.1 2.5
Additions 0.0 14.8 4.9

Reversals/disposals

As at the balance sheet date there were loans amounting to 142.2 million euros (previous year: 130.0
million euros) that had not been impaired because assignment agreements for inventories are in
place.

Expenses from impairment losses on financial assets are reported in the operating result together
with income from reversals of impairment losses recognized in previous years.
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40. FURTHER DISCLOSURES ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial Instruments by Class and Measurement Category as at 31
December 2019

Carrying amounts by class and measurement category

Carrying amount pursuant to IFRS 9 Carrying
amount

Carrying
pursuant to IFRS

16

amount 31 Dec.
2019

Amortised cost Fair value Fair value
through other recognised through
comprehensive profit or loss

income

ASSETS - Financial assets

Other financial assets

Other receivables from suppliers 900.2 0.0 0.0 0.0
Loans 3359 0.0 0.0 0.0
Shareholder loans to partner companies 0.0 0.0 55.3 0.0
Receivables from derivative financial instruments 0.0 14.7 2.9 0.0

Derivatives not included in hedge accounting 0.0 0.0 2.9 0.0

Derivatives with hedging relationship* 0.0 14.7 0.0 0.0
Shares in corporations and other securities 0.0 1.6 8.4 0.0
Interest in partnerships 0.0 0.0 2.6 0.0
Lease receivables* 0.0 0.0 0.0 46.7
Other financial assets 383 0.0 0.0 0.0

Trade receivables 0.0
Cash and cash equivalents 0.0
LIABILITIES - financial liabilities
Liabilities to banks 2,000.6 0.0 0.0 0.0
Lease liabilities* 0.0 0.0 0.0 10,105.2
Liabilities from derivative financial instruments 0.0 15.4 11.4 0.0
Derivatives not included in hedge accounting 0.0 0.0 11.4 0.0
Derivatives with hedging relationship* 0.0 15.4 0.0 0.0

541.3 0.

0 0.0 0.0
6,992.9 0.0 0.0 m

Other financial liabilities

Trade payables

* Not a measurement category pursuant to IFRS 9
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Financial Instruments by Class and Measurement Category as at 31
December 2018

Carrying amounts by class and measurement category

Carrying
amount

pursuant t
IAS 17

Carrying amount pursuant to IFRS 9

Carrying
amount 31
Dec. 2018

Fair value Fair value

through other

Amortised cost
recognised through
comprehensive profit or loss

income

ASSETS - Financial assets

Other financial assets m

o

Other receivables from suppliers 914.8 914.8 0.0 0.0 0.0
Loans 262.0 262.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Shareholder loans to partner companies 47.1 0.0 0.0 47.1 0.0
Receivables from derivative financial instruments 31.8 0.0 25.8 6.0 0.0
Derivatives not included in hedge accounting 6.0 0.0 0.0 6.0 0.0
Derivatives included in hedge accounting 25.8 0.0 25.8 0.0 0.0
Shares in corporations and other securities 358.7 0.0 348.4 10.3 0.0
Interest in partnerships 2.6 0.0 0.0 2.6 0.0
Lease receivables* 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Other financial assets 17.0 17.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Trade receivables 1,404.2 1,404.2 0.0 0.0 0.0
LIABILITIES - financial liabilities
Liabilities to banks 1,442.9 1,442.9 0.0 0.0 0.0
Liabilities from finance leases 854.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 854.4
Liabilities from derivative financial instruments 19.0 0.0 14.5 4.5 0.0
Derivatives not included in hedge accounting 4.5 0.0 0.0 4.5 0.0
Derivatives included in hedge accounting 14.5 0.0 14.5 0.0 0.0
Other financial liabilities 763.8 763.8 0.0 0.0 0.0

* Not a measurement category pursuant to IFRS 9

IFRS 7 requires financial instruments measured at fair value to be assigned to a fair value hierarchy.

There are three hierarchy levels. Level 1 comprises financial instruments whose fair values can be
derived from quoted prices. Level 2 comprises financial instruments whose fair values cannot be
derived from quoted prices, but whose measurement-related inputs are directly or indirectly
observable on the market. Financial instruments that cannot be assigned to either level 1 or level 2
are assigned to level 3. Fair value in this case is determined using factors that are not based on
observable market data.

Shares in corporations and other securities include securities amounting to 1.6 million euros
(previous year: 348.4 million euros) that are measured at fair value. They are assigned to level 1.
These measurement effects recognised in other comprehensive income are not reclassified to the
income statement upon subsequent disposal of the equity instrument. These are strategic financial
investments. The Group considers the option to measure them at fair value through other
comprehensive income to be more meaningful.

This relates to the shares in home24 SE, Berlin.
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In the financial year, the remaining shares in DZ BANK AG Deutsche Zentral-Genossenschaftsbank,
Frankfurt am Main, were sold at their fair value of 11.9 million because this financial investment was
no longer in line with the Group's investment strategy.

Furthermore, on 30 April 2019 RZF acquired a further 77.4 per cent of the shares of RZAG (see note 3
"Consolidation"). Until initial consolidation, the interest previously held had been reported under
shares in corporations and other securities.

The assets and liabilities from derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value and
assigned to level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The remaining financial assets, which are recognised at fair value, are measured using established
valuation techniques and are assigned to level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. There were no material
measurement effects as at 31 December 2019.

Fair Value Disclosures

Comparison of the Carrying Amounts and Fair Values of the Financial Instruments for Each Class

31 Dec. 2019 31 Dec. 2018
Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value

ASSETS

hoveren
Non-current other financial assets 308.9 310.9 566.6 567.2
Non-current trade receivables 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

e
Current other financial assets 1,097.8 1,098.7 1,067.4 1,067.7
Current trade receivables 1,238.7 1,238.7 1,404.2 1,404.2
Current Cash and cash equivalents 567.0 567.0 631.1 631.1

LIABILITIES

hovamen o o
Other non-current financial liabilities 10,393.0 10,520.6 2,110.9 2,212.0
Non-current trade payables 131 131 9.1 9.1

eren
Other current financial liabilities 2,280.9 2,281.7 969.2 969.6
Current trade payables 6,979.8 6,979.8 6,728.6 6,728.6

Due to the short remaining maturities, the carrying amounts of current trade receivables and trade
payables as well as of cash and cash equivalents approximate their fair values.

Non-current trade receivables and trade payables are discounted to present value. In this case, the
carrying amounts largely reflect the fair values.

Market prices are generally used to measure other financial assets and liabilities. In the absence of a
market price, the approved discounted cash flow methods are used to calculate fair value. The
valuation model is based on the yield curves and exchange rates that apply on the balance sheet
date.
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Net Result from Financial Instruments

Breakdown of Income and Expenses from Financial Instruments in Accordance with IFRS 9 Measurement
Categories

Income (+)/expenses (-) 2019
in million €

Financial assets at amortised cost -3.1 38.6
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value 52.4 -6.7
Financial liabilities at amortised cost -53.1 -103.7

The expenses relating to financial assets at amortised cost primarily include write-downs on financial
assets recognised as current assets, as well as losses due to impairment of financial receivables.
Foreign exchange gains and losses and income from receivables previously written down had an
offsetting effect within this item. The result of financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
includes the result from the measurement of derivative financial instruments and income from
equity investments. Expenses from financial liabilities measured at amortised cost primarily include
interest expenses and exchange losses.

Interest income on financial instruments not measured at fair value through profit or loss amounted
to 6.7 million euros (previous year: 5.9 million euros), while corresponding interest expenses
amounted to 22.7 million euros (previous year: 42.1 million euros).

41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES/RECEIVABLES AND OTHER FINANCIAL
OBLIGATIONS

Contingent Liabilities as at the Balance Sheet Date

Contingent liabilities from guarantees 567.7 412.3
Contingent liabilities from warranties 13.4 15.8
Other contingent liabilities 172.0 69.1

Contingent liabilities from guarantees essentially concern a guarantee from RIF for outstanding
merchandise liabilities of EURELEC TRADING SCRL, Brussels, Belgium, and guarantees assumed by RZF
for various Kuoni companies in the Travel and Tourism business segment. In some countries in which
the Kuoni companies operate, local laws require that travel guarantees and payment guarantees be
given by the tour operator in order to hedge against the default risks of the organiser vis-a-vis the
customer. These guarantees have virtually all been assumed by way of guarantee contract by RZF for
the Kuoni companies vis-a-vis the banks. The item also includes rent guarantees from the Retail
Germany business segment.

The increase in guarantees is due primarily to the higher merchandise liabilities of EURELEC TRADING
SCRL, Brussels, Belgium, on the back of expanded business volumes.

Contingent liabilities from guarantee agreements include primarily letters of comfort to financial
institutions for possible use by REWE partner investment companies as general partners of the
associated REWE partner companies taking out the loans.
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Additional other contingent liabilities arose in the financial year from the acquisition of shares in
Lekkerland AG, Frechen, and limited partner shares in Lekkerland AG & Co. KG, Frechen (see note 42
"Events Occurring After the Balance Sheet Date"). On entering into the purchase agreement, the
purchaser undertook to assume various obligations of the seller. The other contingent liabilities
furthermore include contingent liabilities from del credere assumptions. They arose from the joint
assumption of liabilities from goods purchased from member operations and invoiced only in the
subsequent year.

In addition, there are obligations in the Travel and Tourism business segment amounting to
252.8 million euros (previous year: 394.0 million euros) from guaranteed quota contracts with hotels
and various airlines as well as prepayment obligations agreed with hotels.

42.EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

In accordance with the purchase agreement dated 28 May 2019, REWE Beteiligungs-Holding-National
GmbH, Cologne, acquired all shares of Lekkerland AG, Frechen, and the limited partner shares in
Lekkerland AG & Co. KG, Frechen. The transition to control in accordance with IFRS 10 took place as
at 1 January 2020. The preliminary purchase price amounts to 761.9 million euros. The acquisition is
aimed at further expanding the new Convenience business segment established in 2020. Lekkerland
supplies filling stations and kiosks. It has an extensive logistics system for the convenience sector and
the intention is to leverage this in expanding the business activities. Lekkerland generated revenue of
12,384.0 million euros in 2018, net income for the year of 69.0 million euros and cash flows from
operating activities of 180.2 million euros.

With effect as at 1 January 2020, REWE-Projektentwicklung GmbH, Cologne, acquired all shares of
REWENTA Fonds 6 s.r.o., Prague, Czech Republic, and REWENTA Fonds 7 s.r.o., Prague, Czech
Republic.

In addition, as at 1 January 2020, S+R Fejlesztési Kft. acquired all shares of REWENTA 7
Ingatlankezel6-és forgalmazé Kft. and P+R Projekt Fejlesztési Kft., all domiciled in Alsénémdi,
Hungary. As at the same date, the company also acquired 99.64 per cent of the shares of REPRIS
Projekt Fejlesztési Bt., Alsobnémedi, Hungary.

The purchase prices for the companies domiciled in the Czech Republic and Hungary include variable
purchase price components, meaning that the final purchase prices cannot yet be disclosed.

In accordance with the agreement dated 19 September 2019, EXIM HOLDING a.s., Prague, Czech
Republic, acquired all shares of Cestovni kanceldr FISCHER a.s., Prague, Czech Republic. In addition to
a fixed amount of 55.2 million euros, the purchase price also includes variable purchase price
components that cannot yet be finalised. 2 January 2020 has been agreed as the earliest possible
date for transfer with economic effect.

Due to incomplete accounting, no further disclosures in accordance with IFRS 3 can be made for the
above-mentioned acquisitions.

On 7 April 2020, the Group entered into a new syndicated loan agreement for 1,000.0 million euros
with a term of 15 months. The new syndicated loan was guaranteed by RZF, REWE Deutscher
Supermarkt AG & Co. Kommanditgesellschaft auf Aktien, Cologne, and REWE Markt GmbH, Cologne.
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The current economic uncertainty caused by the coronavirus crisis will have a material impact on the
Group's development. From today's perspective it is difficult to visualise the overall development for
the Group. This depends primarily on the extent and duration of the pandemic. Legal measures and
restrictions will become the hallmark of peoples' daily routine and influence all aspects of public life.
The intensity and diversity of the measures taken in individual countries adds further uncertainty
and, as a result, predicting how the crisis will unfold can only be a matter of guesswork.
Consequently, in this situation the previous expectations as to earnings growth will certainly be
missed. For example, food retail recorded significant revenue growth due to stockpiling by members
of the public and a reduction in takeaway sales. By contrast, reservations in the travel sector came to
almost a complete standstill. Travel and Tourism applied for short-time working for the period from 1
April to 30 September 2020.

The current situation may cause revenue in the food retail sector to increase in 2020 due to
stockpiling. However, this assumes that supply chains can be maintained. The temporary closure of
DIY stores means that revenue and earnings will be adversely effected in this sector. In the tourism
sector, revenue will fall far short of the prior-year figures since the travel industry is currently at a
standstill and it cannot be predicted how long the situation will last. The lack of new travel
reservations and the cancellations caused by the coronavirus crisis will significantly reduce the Travel
and Tourism business segment's contribution to the liquidity position of the REWE Group in financial
year 2020. Appropriate countermeasures are being put in place in the operating business in order to
react to the change in demand and reduce the likely effects on revenue and earnings development.
This also includes the already substantially reduced guarantees described under 41 “Contingent
liabilities/receivables and other financial obligations”. In addition, in the current special situation, the
contractually agreed "force majeure" clause, which provides the possibility to revoke guarantees
received or to convert the guarantee contracts into more flexible allotment contracts (quota
contracts), applies. Management currently assumes that the revocation or conversion of the
guarantees will be enforceable in the vast majority of cases. The obligations in the period that is
currently safe as a non-travel period were able in any case to be completely renegotiated or
converted into flexible allotment contracts. Nevertheless, impairment may arise with respect to
prepayments for inventories and right-of-use assets from purchase obligations for hotels in the
Travel and Tourism business segment, or inventories in the DIY Stores business segment, in particular
seasonal goods.

43. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

In accordance with IAS 24, parties related to the Group are non-consolidated subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates, including their subsidiaries, as well as other entities and persons defined as
follows: Management Board and Supervisory Board of RZF and entities controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by these persons or close members of their families. The shareholdings are
listed in the annex to the notes to the financial statements.

There were major changes in the other related parties due to the fact that RZAG is no longer
classified as an other related party as a result of its consolidation and that of its subsidiaries from 1
May 2019. The other related parties primarily include FUR SIE Handelsgenossenschaft eG Food — Non
Food, Cologne, and the regional REWE cooperatives via the members of the Supervisory Board of
RZF.
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In addition to subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements, RZF has direct or indirect
relations with non-consolidated companies and associates in the course of its normal business
activities; these companies are considered related parties of the Group. The Group maintains
significant business relationships with the REWE partner companies. These are associates in which
RZF has an indirect interest under the REWE partnership model. The supply of goods and services
conducted as part of normal business activities primarily comprises the delivery of goods, leasing and
other services.

Goods and Services Received from or to Related Parties

Volume of goods and services Volume of goods and services

provided received
2019 2018 2019 2018
Subsidiaries (non-consolidated) 3.4 0.0 0.0 -0.1
Joint ventures 223.8 2123 0.7 23.2
Associates 8,293.5 7,468.6 Bi5 5.7
Other related parties 311 13.6 1,748.9

The volume of goods and services provided to joint ventures relates mainly to goods deliveries
amounting to 207.8 million euros (previous year: 198.5 million euros).

Goods and services supplied to associates are attributable mainly to deliveries of goods amounting to
7,261.9 million euros (previous year: 6,663.5 million euros) and to leases and services amounting to
667.7 million euros (previous year: 618.7 million euros) provided to the REWE partner companies.

The goods and services provided to other related parties relates mainly to goods deliveries
amounting to 0.3 million euros (previous year: 13.8 million euros).

The goods and services received from associates primarily comprise expenses for services used.

The goods and services received from other related parties result primarily from leases amounting to
8.8 million euros (previous year: 1,465.7 million euros). The difference is due to the inclusion of RZAG
and its subsidiaries from 1 May 2019.

Composition of Receivables from Related Parties

Subsidiaries (non-consolidated) 17.4 19.6
Joint ventures 64.2 49.3
Associates 593.8 721.2
Other related parties 77.7 81.7

Receivables from non-consolidated subsidiaries are included in other receivables from financial
transactions and trade receivables from affiliated companies (see note 25 "Other Financial Assets"
and note 26 "Trade Receivables").

Receivables from associates relate primarily to goods supplied to REWE partner companies
amounting to 348.5 million euros (previous year: 477.4 million euros) as well as loans to associates
amounting to 196.8 million euros (previous year: 176.0 million). The loans mainly comprise
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shareholder loans and start-up loans to REWE partner companies (see note 25 "Other Financial
Assets").

The receivables from other related parties primarily include receivables from central settlement of
50.6 million euros (previous year: 54.7 million euros) and loan receivables of 25.7 million euros
(previous year: 24.9 million euros).

Composition of Liabilities to Related Parties

Subsidiaries (non-consolidated) 11.2
Joint ventures 0.4 12.1
Associates 76.8 17.2
Other related parties 37.0 2239

Liabilities to non-consolidated subsidiaries are included in liabilities to affiliated companies and trade
payables to affiliated companies (see note 34 "Other Financial Liabilities" and note 35 "Trade
Payables").

The liabilities to other related parties mainly include loans and demand and time deposits. The
difference is due to the inclusion of RZAG and its subsidiaries from 1 May 2019.

Remuneration for Key Management Personnel

Total Remuneration for Key Management Personnel at RZF as well as for Supervisory Board Members

17.1

Management Board 13.4

Supervisory Board

Breakdown of Remuneration for Key Management Personnel

Short-term benefits due 13.0
Post-employment benefits* 33 1.7

Other long-term benefits due

*Total costs

A short-term and long-term performance-based profit-sharing and bonus programme is in place for
the Management Board. As at 31 December 2019, a total of 10.6 million euros (previous year:
10.4 million euros) for this programme was recognised as liabilities.

Employee representatives elected to the Supervisory Board of RZF continue to be entitled to a
regular salary under their employment contract. The amount of remuneration is based on provisions
agreed in the employment contract.

Pension Obligations for Key Management Personnel
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Pension obligations of 10.7 million euros (previous year: 8.7 million euros) were recognised for
current Management Board members and 28.2 million euros (previous year: 18.3 million euros) for
former Management Board members. Pension payments of 0.9 million euros (previous year: 0.8
million euros) were made to former Management Board members in the financial year.

44. AUDIT FEES ACCORDING TO SECTION 314 (1) NO. 9 OF THE GERMAN
COMMERCIAL CODE (HGB)

The overview below shows the total fee for PricewaterhouseCoopers GmbH
Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft, Cologne, the auditor of the consolidated financial statements,
recognised as an expense during the financial year.

Total Fee for the Auditor in the Financial Year

Fees for financial statement audit services

Fees for other services

e YT BT

The fees for financial statement audit services include in particular the fees for the statutory audit of
the consolidated financial statements and the annual financial statements of the Group companies.
The transfer of shares in RZAG to RZF streamlined the Group structure, which was the main reason
for the decline in fees for financial statement audit services. The transfer of Supermarkte Nord
Vertriebs GmbH & Co. KG, Kiel, to Rewe Markt GmbH, Cologne, also reduced costs.

Fees for other services mainly include audit-related consulting and other consulting services.

45. EXERCISE OF EXEMPTIONS PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 264 (3), 264B AND
291 HGB

The following German subsidiaries organised in the legal form of a corporation or partnership
exercise the exemptions provided for under section 264 (3) HGB and section 264b HGB, and as such
have opted not to publish their annual financial statements for 2019, prepare a management report
and, in the majority of cases, prepare notes to the financial statements. The exercise of an exemption
in accordance with section 291 HGB is indicated by a footnote:
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Company, Registered Office

Ademus Grundstlcksverwaltungsgesellschaft mbH & Co. KG, Cologne
akzenta GmbH & Co. KG, Wuppertal*
Amero Grundstiicksverwaltungsgesellschaft mbH & Co. KG, Cologne

Avigo GmbH, Cologne

Becker Projektierungsgesellschaft mbH, Cologne*

Campina Verde Deutschland GmbH, Cologne*

clevertours.com GmbH, Cologne
DEGOR Grundbesitzverwaltung GmbH & Co. KG, Pullach i. Isartal
DELUS GmbH & Co. Objekt Frankfurt KG, Pullach i. Isartal

DELUS Verwaltung GmbH & Co.
DELUS Verwaltung GmbH & Co.
DELUS Verwaltung GmbH & Co.
DELUS Verwaltung GmbH & Co.
DELUS Verwaltung GmbH & Co.
DELUS Verwaltung GmbH & Co.
DELUS Verwaltung GmbH & Co.
DELUS Verwaltung GmbH & Co.
DELUS Verwaltung GmbH & Co.
DELUS Verwaltung GmbH & Co.
DELUS Verwaltung GmbH & Co.
DELUS Verwaltung GmbH & Co.
DELUS Verwaltung GmbH & Co.

Objekt Buttenheim KG, Pullach i. Isartal
Objekt Dreieich KG, Pullach i. Isartal
Objekt Giellen KG, Pullach i. Isartal
Objekt GroBbeeren KG, Pullach i. Isartal
Objekt Ko6In-Langel KG, Pullach i. Isartal
Objekt Neuhausen KG, Pullach i. Isartal
Objekt Norderstedt oHG, Pullach i. Isartal
Objekt Rosbach oHG, Pullach i. Isartal
Objekt Riisseina KG, Pullach i. Isartal
Objekt Stelle KG, Pullach i. Isartal

Objekt Wiesloch KG, Pullach i. Isartal
Objekte Dietzenbach KG, Pullach i. Isartal
Vermietungs-KG, Pullach i. Isartal

DER Deutsches Reisebiiro GmbH & Co. OHG, Frankfurt am Main*
DER Reisebiiro Service GmbH, Cologne

DER Touristik Airport Services GmbH, Disseldorf

DER Touristik Central Europe GmbH, Cologne*

DER Touristik Deutschland GmbH, Cologne*

DER Touristik DMC GmbH, Cologne*

DER Touristik Group GmbH, Cologne*

DER Touristik Hotels & Resorts GmbH, Cologne*
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31
32.
33.
34.
35.
36.
37.
38.
39.
40.
41.
42.
43,
44,
45.
46.
47.
48.
49.
50.
51.
52.
53.
54,
55.
56.
57.
58.
59.
60.
61.
62.
63.
64.
65.
66.
67.
68.
69.
70.

DER Touristik Immobilien GmbH, Cologne

DER Touristik Online GmbH, Frankfurt/Main

DER Touristik Partner-Service Verwaltungs GmbH, Cologne
Dienstleistungszentrum Stidmarkt GmbH & Co. oHG, Starbach

-EHA- Energie-Handels-Gesellschaft mbH & Co. KG, Hamburg*
Entsorgungsgesellschaft Handel "Pro Umwelt" mbH, Cologne

GBI Gesellschaft flr Beteiligungs- und Immobilienverwaltung mbH, Cologne*
Gebrider Mayer Produktions- und Vertriebs GmbH, Wahrenholz
Glockenbrot Backerei GmbH & Co. Immobilien KG, Pullach i. Isartal
Glockenbrot Backerei GmbH & Co. oHG, Cologne*

Glockenbrot Backerei Verwaltungs GmbH, Cologne*

Glockenbrot Immobilien 1 GmbH & Co. KG, Cologne
Grundstlicksgesellschaft Herborn mbH, Cologne

HD Handelsdienstleistungs GmbH, Cologne

Heiliger & Kleutgens Gesellschaft mit beschrankter Haftung, Cologne
Heimo Handelsgesellschaft mbH, Cologne

HLS Handel und Lager Service Gesellschaft mbH, Cologne

IMPULS Grundstucksverwaltungsgesellschaft Objekte Nord mbH, Cologne
IMPULS Grundstlicksverwaltungsgesellschaft Objekte Siid mbH, Cologne
ITS Reisen GmbH, Cologne

ja-Lebensmittelvertriebsgesellschaft mbH, Cologne

Koban Grundbesitzverwaltung GmbH & Co. Objekt Egelsbach KG, Cologne
KOBAN Grundbesitzverwaltung GmbH & Co. Vermietungs KG, Cologne
Latscha Filialbetriebe Gesellschaft mit beschrankter Haftung, Cologne
LUPOS GmbH & Co. KG, Cologne

NeuMarkt Lebensmittel GmbH, Cologne*

NeuMarkt Lebensmittel-Vertriebsgesellschaft mbH & Co. KG, Cologne
NORIL Verwaltung GmbH & Co. Vermietungs-KG, Pullach i. Isartal

Penny Dienstleistung GmbH, Cologne

Penny Immobilien EINS GmbH, Cologne

Penny Spedition GmbH, Cologne

Penny-Markt Gesellschaft mit beschrankter Haftung, Cologne*

REMUS Grundbesitzverwaltung GmbH & Co. KG, Pullach i. Isartal

REWE Berlin Logistik GmbH, Cologne

REWE Card GmbH, Cologne

REWE Digital Fulfilment Services GmbH, Cologne*

REWE Digital GmbH, Cologne*

REWE Dortmund SE & Co. KG, Dortmund*

REWE DORTMUND Vertriebsgesellschaft mbH, Dortmund*

REWE Finanz-Kontor GmbH, Cologne
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71. REWE GroRflachengesellschaft mbH, Cologne*

72. REWE Group Card Service GmbH, Cologne
73. REWE Group Fruchtlogistik GmbH, Cologne
74. REWE Group Marketing GmbH, Cologne

75. REWE Grundstlicks-Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH, Cologne*
76. REWE Immobilien 1 GmbH, Cologne

77. REWE Immobilien 2 GmbH & Co. KG, Cologne
78. REWE Immobilien 3 GmbH & Co. KG, Cologne
79. REWE International Warenhandels GmbH, Cologne
80. REWE LOG 1 GmbH, Cologne

81. REWE LOG 10 GmbH, Cologne

82. REWE LOG 11 GmbH, Cologne

83. REWE LOG 12 GmbH, Cologne

84. REWE LOG 13 GmbH, Cologne

85. REWE LOG 14 GmbH, Cologne

86. REWE LOG 3 GmbH, Cologne

87. REWE LOG 30 GmbH, Cologne

88. REWE LOG 31 GmbH, Cologne

89. REWE LOG 32 GmbH, Cologne

90. REWE LOG 4 GmbH, Cologne

91. REWE LOG 5 GmbH, Cologne

92. REWE LOG 50 GmbH, Cologne

93. REWE LOG 52 GmbH, Cologne

94, REWE LOG 6 GmbH, Cologne

95. REWE LOG 7 GmbH, Cologne

96. REWE LOG 9 GmbH, Cologne

97. REWE Markt GmbH, Cologne*

98. REWE Markte 1 GmbH, Cologne

99. REWE Markte 10 GmbH, Cologne

100. REWE Markte 11 GmbH, Cologne

101. REWE Markte 12 GmbH, Cologne

102. REWE Markte 13 GmbH, Cologne

103. REWE Markte 14 GmbH, Cologne

104. REWE Markte 15 GmbH, Cologne

105. REWE Markte 16 GmbH, Cologne

106. REWE Markte 17 GmbH, Cologne

107. REWE Markte 18 GmbH, Cologne

108. REWE Markte 19 GmbH, Cologne

109. REWE Markte 2 GmbH, Cologne

110. REWE Markte 21 GmbH, Cologne
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111. REWE Markte 22 GmbH, Cologne

112. REWE Markte 24 GmbH, Cologne
113. REWE Markte 3 GmbH, Cologne
114. REWE Markte 30 GmbH, Cologne
115. REWE Markte 32 GmbH, Cologne
116. REWE Markte 33 GmbH, Cologne
117. REWE Markte 34 GmbH, Cologne
118. REWE Markte 35 GmbH, Cologne
119. REWE Markte 36 GmbH, Cologne
120. REWE Markte 38 GmbH, Cologne
121. REWE Markte 39 GmbH, Cologne
122. REWE Markte 4 GmbH, Cologne
123. REWE Markte 40 GmbH, Cologne
124. REWE Markte 41 GmbH, Cologne
125. REWE Markte 42 GmbH, Cologne
126. REWE Markte 43 GmbH, Cologne
127. REWE Markte 44 GmbH, Cologne
128. REWE Markte 45 GmbH, Cologne
129. REWE Markte 46 GmbH, Cologne
130. REWE Markte 47 GmbH, Cologne
131. REWE Markte 5 GmbH, Cologne
132. REWE Markte 51 GmbH, Cologne
133. REWE Markte 52 GmbH, Cologne
134. REWE Markte 53 GmbH, Cologne
135. REWE Markte 54 GmbH, Cologne
136. REWE Markte 55 GmbH, Cologne
137. REWE Markte 56 GmbH, Cologne
138. REWE Markte 57 GmbH, Cologne
139. REWE Markte 58 GmbH, Cologne
140. REWE Markte 59 GmbH, Cologne
141. REWE Markte 6 GmbH, Cologne
142. REWE Markte 7 GmbH, Cologne
143. REWE Markte 70 GmbH, Cologne
144. REWE Markte 71 GmbH, Cologne
145. REWE Markte 72 GmbH, Cologne
146. REWE Markte 73 GmbH, Cologne
147. REWE Markte 8 GmbH, Cologne
148. REWE Markte 9 GmbH, Cologne
149. REWE Partner GmbH, Cologne
150. REWE Regiemarkt GmbH, Cologne
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151.
152.
153.
154.
155.
156.
157.
158.
159.
160.
161.
162.
163.
164.
165.
166.
167.
168.
169.
170.
171.
172.
173.
174.
175.
176.
177.
178.
179.
180.
181.
182.

REWE Spedition und Logistik GmbH, Hurth*

REWE Siidmarkt GmbH, Cologne*

REWE Systems GmbH, Cologne*

REWE Warenhandelsgesellschaft mbH, Cologne*

REWE Wein online GmbH, Cologne

REWE-Centermanagement und Verwaltungs GmbH, Cologne
REWE-Immobilien-Beteiligungs-Verwaltungs GmbH, Cologne
REWE-Projektentwicklung GmbH, Cologne*

Rewe-Verlag Gesellschaft mit beschrankter Haftung, Cologne*
REWE-Versicherungsdienst-Gesellschaft mit beschrankter Haftung, Cologne
REWE-Zentrale-Dienstleistungsgesellschaft mbH, Cologne

Rheika Lebensmittel Alois Sans GmbH & Co., Cologne
SANS-Verwaltungs-GmbH & Co. KG, Cologne

SEKANS Grundstiicks-Gesellschaft mit beschrankter Haftung, Cologne*
Smart People GmbH, Cologne

SUDEMA Grundbesitz GmbH & Co. KG, Pullach i. Isartal

Stdmarkt Olching GmbH & Co.oHG, Cologne

toom Baumarkt Beteiligungsgesellschaft mbH, Cologne

toom Baumarkt GmbH, Cologne*

toom Baustoff-Fachhandel GmbH, Cologne

"toom"-Markt Gesellschaft mit beschrankter Haftung, Cologne

Wilhelm Brandenburg GmbH & Co. oHG, Cologne*

Wilhelm Brandenburg Immobilien 1 GmbH, Cologne

Wilhelm Brandenburg Immobilien 2 GmbH & Co. KG, Cologne

Wilhelm Brandenburg Immobilien 3 GmbH & Co. KG, Cologne

Wilhelm Brandenburg Verwaltungs GmbH, Cologne*

Willi Gleichmann GmbH. & Co. KG., Cologne

WISUS Beteiligungs GmbH & Co. Vierte Vermietungs-KG, Pullach i. Isartal
WISUS Beteiligungs GmbH & Co. Zweite Vermietungs-KG, Pullach i. Isartal
WISUS Objekt Wangen GmbH & Co. KG, Pullach i. Isartal

WTS Grundstiicksverwaltung GmbH & Co Vermietungs KG, Pullach i. Isartal
ZooRoyal GmbH, Cologne

* The company and its subsidiaries are included in the EU/EEA consolidated financial statements of REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG, Cologne,
and the company is exempted from the requirement to prepare consolidated financial statements and a group management report.
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46. MANAGEMENT BOARD AND SUPERVISORY BOARD

In the financial year and the period until the preparation of the consolidated financial statements for
2019, the Management Board of REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG, Cologne, comprised the following

members:

Lionel Souque

Jan Kunath

Soren Hartmann

Dr. Christian Mielsch

Chairman of the Management Board of REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG,
Cologne, and REWE - Zentral-Aktiengesellschaft, Cologne

Retail Germany including REWE Group Buying and REWE Digital,
Lekkerland, Coopernic/EURELEC, Legal Entity and Cooperative, Group Audit,
Corporate Affairs, Executive HR

Deputy Chairman of the Management Board of REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG,
Cologne, and REWE - Zentral-Aktiengesellschaft, Cologne
Retail International, Corporate IT including REWE Systems

Member of the Management Board of REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG, Cologne,
and REWE - Zentral-Aktiengesellschaft, Cologne
Travel and Tourism

Member of the Management Board of REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG, Cologne,
and REWE - Zentral-Aktiengesellschaft, Cologne

DIY Stores, Business Administration, Finance, Taxes, Investment
Management/M&A and Group Controlling, Corporate Security & Services at
Headquarters

In the financial year and the period until the preparation of the consolidated financial statements for
2019, the Supervisory Board of REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG, Cologne, comprised the following

members:

Page 172



Erich Stockhausen

Fritz Aupperle

Michael Fricke

Jurgen Lang

Stefan Lenk

Matthias Peikert

Robert Schafer

Sven Schéfer

René Schneider

Christoph Steverding

Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Businessman and member of the Management Board of REWE West eG,
Hirth

Businessman and member of the Management Board of REWE
Sud/Sidwest eG, Fellbach

Businessman and member of the Management Board of REWE Handels eG
Hungen, Hungen

Businessman and member of the Management Board of REWE
Sud/Siudwest eG, Fellbach

Businessman and Chairman of the Supervisory Board of REWE DORTMUND
GrofRhandel eG., Dortmund

Businessman and member of the Management Board of REWE Nord-Ost
eG, Teltow

Businessman and member of the Management Board of REWE West eG,
Hirth

Businessman and Chairman of the Supervisory Board of REWE Handels eG
Hungen, Hungen

Businessman and Chairman of the Supervisory Board of REWE Nord-Ost eG,
Teltow

Businessman and member of the Supervisory Board of REWE DORTMUND
GroRhandel eG., Dortmund, and of DOEGO Fruchthandel und Import eG,
Dortmund

The members of the Supervisory Board of REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG, Cologne, also included the
following employee representatives:
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Helmut Gottmann

Michael Adlhoch

Josef Czok

Alfred Daubenmerkl

Bernhard Franke

Roland Gerstenberg

Jutta Mirtezani

Vivien Schmitt

Lutz Staude

Angelika Winter

Deputy Chairman

Works Council member exempted from regular duties, REWE Deutscher
Supermarkt AG & Co. KGaA, Cologne,

Works Council Chairman, REWE Markt GmbH/Penny-Markt GmbH, Cologne

Works Council chairman exempted from regular duties, REWE Markt GmbH,
Central 2 region, Logistics and Administration, Rosbach

Works Council chairman exempted from regular duties, REWE Markt GmbH,
West Il region, Hiirth

Works Council chairman exempted from regular duties, REWE Markt GmbH,
South region, Eching

Secretary at the ver.di union, Stuttgart

Works Council chairman exempted from regular duties,
REWE Markt GmbH, West | region, Hiirth

Works Council chairwoman exempted from regular duties, REWE Markt
GmbH, North region, Norderstedt

Head of Executive HR, REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG, Cologne

Works Council chairman exempted from regular duties,

REWE Markt GmbH, North region, Lehrte

Works Council Deputy Chairman, REWE Markt GmbH/Penny-Markt GmbH,
Cologne

Works Council deputy chairwoman exempted from regular duties, REWE
Markt GmbH, West Il region, Hiirth
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The preparation of these consolidated financial statements was concluded on 8 April 2020.

Cologne, 8 April 2020

The Management Board

Soéren Hartmann Jan Kunath

Dr. Christian Mielsch Lionel Souque
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REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG, Cologne

Overview of the Shareholdings of the Group Companies and Other Long-term Investees and
Investors as at 31 December 2019

a) Consolidated Companies

Percentage share

Company name and registered office Country S B, ST ¥ B, SR
% %

100.0 100.0
51.1 51.1
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
87.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
85.0 74.0
100.0 100.0
87.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 -
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
100.0 100.0
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Company name and registered office
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Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0
100.0

94.0

100.0

81.0
87.0
87.0
87.0
87.0
87.0
85.5
87.0
86.0
86.0
87.0
87.0
87.0
87.0
49.0
100.0
100.0
50.0
100.0
66.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
75.0
100.0
75.0
75.0
100.0
100.0

100.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0
100.0

94.0

100.0

94.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

98.5
100.0

99.0

99.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

49.0
100.0
100.0

50.0
100.0

66.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

75.0
100.0

75.0

75.0
100.0
100.0

100.0



Company name and registered office
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Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

99.0
100.0

75.0

75.0

75.0

90.0

50.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

60.0
100.0

70.0
100.0

90.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

85.0

87.0

100.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
99.0
100.0
75.0
75.0
75.0
90.0
50.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0

100.0

70.0
100.0

90.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

85.7
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

90.0
100.0

100.0



Company name and registered office
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Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

100.0

87.0

100.0

100.0
60.1
65.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0
85.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0
85.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0
81.0
81.0

100.0

100.0
85.0

100.0
51.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0
60.1

65.0

100.0
100.0
100.0

76.7
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

94.0

94.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

51.0
100.0
100.0

100.0



Company name and registered office
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Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

60.0
60.0
60.0
100.0

100.0

60.0

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0

31 Dec.
%

2018

60.0
60.0
60.0
100.0

100.0

60.0

100.0
100.0
100.0

98.0
100.0
100.0

100.0

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

93.4
100.0
100.0

62.5

68.0
100.0
100.0

94.0
100.0

40.0
100.0
100.0

100.0

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0



Company name and registered office
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Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

20.0
100.0

20.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

60.3
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

87.0
100.0

87.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

12.5
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0

31 Dec.
%

2018

100.0
100.0

100.0

20.0
100.0

20.0

100.0
100.0

100.0

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

40.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0
100.0
100.0

66.7
100.0

100.0

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0



Company name and registered office
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Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0



Company name and registered office
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Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

50.1
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

87.0
100.0
100.0

81.0

100.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0

76.6
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0

100.0

50.1

100.0
19.6
100.0
100.0
100.0
50.0
89.2
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
94.0

100.0
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Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

100.0

100.0

81.8

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
0.0
100.0
100.0
51.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
93.8
100.0
60.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
87.0
87.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
0.0
81.9
0.0
0.0
60.0
100.0
100.0

100.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

100.0

100.0

81.8

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
0.0
100.0
100.0
51.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0

100.0
100.0

93.8
100.0

60.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0

100.0
100.0
0.0
94.9
0.0
0.0
60.0
100.0

100.0
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Country

Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

31 Dec. 2018

%

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

50.0

334

40.0

50.0

249

49.0

40.0

19.9

20.0

60.0

20.0

35.0

20.0

25.0

50.0

49.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

50.0
33.4
100.0
50.0

2491

40.0 *
2532
19.9 2
20.0 2
62.5 2

60.0 2

35.0

25.0

50.0 !
50.0 *
49.0 1
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2
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Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2
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Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2
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Country

%

31 Dec. 2019

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
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Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2
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Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2
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Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

28.6

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
28.6 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2
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Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

50.0

33.6

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

80.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
2001
50.0

33.6

2001
20.0

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
50.0

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2
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Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2
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Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2
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Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2
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Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
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Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2
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Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2
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Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2
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Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2
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31 Dec. 2019 31 Dec. 2018

% %
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Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

19.9

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

19.9

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
19.9 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
19.9 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2
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20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2
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20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2
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20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2
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20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2



Company name and registered office

Page 207

Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

50.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
50.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2
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%

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

26.0

20.0

40.8

39.0

54.6

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
2511
39.01
54.6 1
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2
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%

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
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%

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2
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%

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

40.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
40.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2
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%

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2
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20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

44.4

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
44.4 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2
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20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0
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20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0
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20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2



Company name and registered office

Page 215

Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

50.0

50.0

20.0

24.9

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

50.0 2
50.0 2
20.0 2
24.9

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
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%

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.0

0.0

67.9

31 Dec. 2018

%

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
20.0 2

20.0 2

19.9 2
20.0 2
20.0 2
0.01

148 t



d) Non-consolidated Affiliates

Company name and registered office

Page 217

Country

Percentage share

31 Dec. 2019

%

100.0
100.0

100.0

99.9
100.0
100.0
100.0

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

51.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

811
100.0
100.0
100.0

98.0
100.0

31 Dec. 2018

%

100.0

100.0
99.9

100.0
100.0

100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

51.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0

81.1
100.0
100.0
100.0

98.0



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG, Koln
Audit Opinions

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG, Koln and its
subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise: the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019 and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
profit or loss, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the financial year from 1 January to 31 December 2019, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. In addition, we have audited the
group management report of REWE-ZENTRALFINANZ eG, Koln for the financial year from 1 January to
31 December 2019.

In our opinion, on the basis of the knowledge obtained in the audit,

e the accompanying consolidated financial statements comply, in all material respects, with the
IFRSs as adopted by the EU, and the additional requirements of German commercial law pursuant
to § [Article] 315e Abs. [paragraph] 1 HGB [Handelsgesetzbuch: German Commercial Code] and, in
compliance with these requirements, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, and financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its financial performance for the financial
year from 1 January to 31 December 2019 and

e the accompanying group management report as a whole provides an appropriate view of the
Group’s position. In all material respects, this group management report is consistent with the
consolidated financial statements, complies with German legal requirements and appropriately
presents the opportunities and risks of future development.

Pursuant to § 322 Abs. 3 Satz [sentence] 1 HGB, we declare that our audit has not led to any
reservations relating to the legal compliance of the consolidated financial statements and of the group

management report.
Basis for the Audit Opinions

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements and of the group management report
in accordance with § 317 HGB in compliance with German Generally Accepted Standards for Financial
Statement Audits promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprifer [Institute of Public Auditors in
Germany] (IDW). Our responsibilities under those requirements and principles are further described
in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements and of the
Group Management Report” section of our auditor’s report. We are independent of the group entities
in accordance with the requirements of German commercial and professional law, and we have
fulfilled our other German professional responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinions on the consolidated financial statements and on the group management report.
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Other Information

The executive directors are responsible for the other information.

The other information comprises further the remaining parts of the publication , Geschaftsbericht”,
which we obtained prior to the date of our auditor’s report,— excluding cross-references to external
information — with the exception of the audited consolidated financial statements, the audited group
management report and our auditor’s report.

Our audit opinions on the consolidated financial statements and on the group management report do
not cover the other information, and consequently we do not express an audit opinion or any other

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in so doing, to

consider whether the other information

e is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements, with the group management
report or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or

e otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of the Executive Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements and
the Group Management Report

The executive directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that comply, in all material respects, with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the additional requirements
of German commercial law pursuant to § 315e Abs.1 HGB and that the consolidated financial
statements, in compliance with these requirements, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities,
financial position, and financial performance of the Group. In addition the executive directors are
responsible for such internal control as they have determined necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the executive directors are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. They also have the responsibility for
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern. In addition, they are responsible for
financial reporting based on the going concern basis of accounting unless there is an intention to

liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or there is no realistic alternative but to do so.

Furthermore, the executive directors are responsible for the preparation of the group management
report that, as a whole, provides an appropriate view of the Group’s position and is, in all material
respects, consistent with the consolidated financial statements, complies with German legal
requirements, and appropriately presents the opportunities and risks of future development. In
addition, the executive directors are responsible for such arrangements and measures (systems) as

they have considered necessary to enable the preparation of a group management report that is in

Page 219



accordance with the applicable German legal requirements, and to be able to provide sufficient
appropriate evidence for the assertions in the group management report.

The supervisory board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements and of the group management report.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements and of the

Group Management Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
whether the group management report as a whole provides an appropriate view of the Group’s
position and, in all material respects, is consistent with the consolidated financial statements and the
knowledge obtained in the audit, complies with the German legal requirements and appropriately
presents the opportunities and risks of future development, as well as to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our audit opinions on the consolidated financial statements and on the group management

report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with § 317 HGB and in compliance with German Generally Accepted Standards for
Financial Statement Audits promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprifer (IDW) will always detect
a material misstatement. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements and this group management

report.

We exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements and
of the group management report, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinions. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit of the consolidated financial
statements and of arrangements and measures (systems) relevant to the audit of the group
management report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an audit opinion on the effectiveness of these systems.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used by the executive directors and the
reasonableness of estimates made by the executive directors and related disclosures.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the executive directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
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attention in the auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
and in the group management report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
respective audit opinions. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to be
able to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements present the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and financial performance of the Group
in compliance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the additional requirements of German
commercial law pursuant to § 315e Abs. 1 HGB.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express audit opinions on the consolidated financial
statements and on the group management report. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinions.

Evaluate the consistency of the group management report with the consolidated financial
statements, its conformity with German law, and the view of the Group’s position it provides.

Perform audit procedures on the prospective information presented by the executive directors in
the group management report. On the basis of sufficient appropriate audit evidence we evaluate,
in particular, the significant assumptions used by the executive directors as a basis for the
prospective information, and evaluate the proper derivation of the prospective information from
these assumptions. We do not express a separate audit opinion on the prospective information
and on the assumptions used as a basis. There is a substantial unavoidable risk that future events
will differ materially from the prospective information.

Page 221



We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

Cologne, April 28, 2020

PricewaterhouseCoopers GmbH
Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft

sgd. Jorg Sechser sgd. Matthias Kirschke
Wirtschaftspriifer Wirtschaftspriifer
(German Public Auditor) (German Public Auditor)
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